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MISREPRESENTATION OF THE FACTS
ON THE PART OF

THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION
COMMISSION STAFF

Sec. 24A-8. (a) of the Montgomery County Code states, in pertinent
part, that:

The commission shall instruct the director to deny a
permit if it finds, based on the evidence and information
presented to or before the commission {by, in this case,
the Historic Preservation Commission Staff} that the
alteration for which the permit is sought would be [ ... ]

detrimental to the preservation, enhancement or ultimate
protection of the historic site or historic resource [ ... ]

The Historic Preservation Commission Staff claimed, in its report
dated 9/17/03, that-- and I quote-- "the house was designated for
its unique pre-cast concrete panel and design. As such, destroying
these architectural features destroys the integrity of the historic
resource." END OF QUOTE Furthermore, and I quote: "It should be
noted that because of the uniqueness of the building materials any
cut through the building will cause irreparable damage and will be
destroying historic materials that characterize the property which
include the cornice, gable detail, the concrete panel and original
window." END OF QUOTE And yet further I quote: "These alterations
will not be reversible and once complete the original building will
never be able to be restored to its original configuration." END OF
QUOTE

The cited assertions made in the aforesaid report are
misrepresentations because:

1) the affected segment of the cornice can be
removed and saved;

2) the gable detail will not be destroyed in
any way, shape, or form;

3) the concrete panel (plain portion of the
wall) can be reconstructed;

4) the original window will not be destroyed
in any way, shape, or form.
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Here is my DETAILED REFUTATION:

The addition will be attached to an existing window area, which will
be transformed into a door. To achieve this, a portion of the wall
(below the window) and a segment of the cornice (above the window)
will have to be removed.

1) The segment of the cornice will be cut out for safekeeping, and
considering that such cornice runs all around the perimeter of
the house and is largely covered by the gutters, the removal of

three feet of it can hardly represent an irreparable loss.

2) The decorative motif of the gable will not be destroyed; much
less, it will not be removed at all; instead, it will be
covered by the addition (a point the Society has repeatedly
refused to acknowledge). Should anyone, in the non-foreseeable
future, decide to get rid of the bathroom, this motif will be
easily returned to the light of day. This gable has been the
source of much trouble, and indeed is at the heart of the
contention.

3) The plain portion of the wall can be rebuilt in the aforesaid
non-foreseeable future through saving the original material and
by incorporating it again in the facade.

Neither Item 2 nor Item 3 constitutes a unique
feature that will be lost. As for Item 2, that
portion of it that would be affected by the
addition does not constitute a unique feature
at all since it is identically repeated four
times around the house (another point that the
Society has consistently ignored), not to
mention on the replica of my house, which
replica is located in Washington, D.C. On the
subject of Item 3, let it be stated for the
record that the original building will be able
to be restored to its original configuration.

4) The original window will not be destroyed at all, it will be
removed and subsequently inserted in the outer wall of the new
bathroom.
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DECISION OF THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

RUNS COUNTER TO 24A-8.(b) (3)

Said subsection of the referenced Code states, in pertinent part, that:

The proposal would enhance the [ ... ] private utilization of the historic
site or historic resource f ... ] in a manner compatible with the
historical, archeological, architectural or cultural value of the historic
site ( ... ]

The Commission's decision runs counter to the above-cited subsection
because:

The proposed bathroom would be built in proper Art-Deco style, on the
model of the bathroom which adorns Polychrome House #1. And because of
the strategic position occupied by the bathroom with respect to the rest
of the house, a sort of separate wing (this is a crucial point) would come
into being, providing privacy and independence to guests, friends, and
family members alike.
Furthermore, the Commission's decision indicates that it gives no
consideration at all to the fact that, besides raising the value of the
house itself, an additional bathroom would make the place more desirable
to live in: this is the only way to protect a house, historic or not;
otherwise, it will eventually fall into disrepair. Now then, one Mr. Wayne
Goldstein made certain statements during the hearing on 09/24/2003, among
which: "I would like that this applicant [ ... ] either accept the
alternative version that will have a minimal effect on the building, or
think about moving." END OF QUOTE To Mr. Goldstein's uncalled-for claim
that I should sell the house and move out if the lack of a second bathroom
is too much of a stress or inconvenience, I say that if my house is to be
sold for that reason, then it will have to be bought at a comparable price
by the Society: I do not run a museum for them. The living standards of
today are very different from what they used to be in the 30 1s, and
anything within reason that can be done to update any of these houses--not
just mine--should be welcomed as a guarantee for their future. Earley
himself would be the first one to approve this line of conduct: let us
not forget that he built these houses to help people live better, NOT to
enclose people into a sort of temple! Respect for the existing structure
is, naturally, of paramount importance. Thus, in my particular case,
every external detail (shape, color, decoration) would receive the
greatest attention and care. In short, no effort would be spared to make
the addition harmonize with the whole. I have no need to emphasize this
point: the Society knows me well enough! As for Mr. Goldstein's remark
to the effect that I should accept-- and I quote-- "the alternative
version that will have a minimal effect on the building," I'll come to
that in my discussion of subsection (b) (5) of the Code.



DECISION OF THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

RUNS COUNTER TO 24A-8.(b)  (5 )

Said subsection of the referenced Code provides that:

The proposal is necessary in order that the owner of the subject property

not be deprived of reasonable use of the property or suffer undue

hardship.

The Commission's decision runs counter to the above-cited subsection

because:

Due to the sudden change of heart on the part of the Preservation Society,
namely, the last-minute decision to recommend to the Commission that my .

request be denied, the Society has caused no end of problems to my family
members, problems that go far beyond lacking the obvious convenience of a

second bathroom. Looking at the issue close up, I wish to emphasize the
point that their subsequent attempt to force me to accept an alternative

design is clearly a hardship. Each of their suggested alternative designs
runs from the impractical to the absurd to the ridiculous: nothing
surprising, after all, considering that they air their views and opinions
from the comfort of their chairs, without having a clue as to the
configuration of the building. (Incidentally, if in 2001, at the very
beginning of this affair, someone from the Society had taken the time to
come and assess the situation, I feel sure that I would not be here

today.) To continue, during the 09/24/03 hearing it was contended by Mr.
Harbit that the Commission had-- and I quote-- "gone to extraordinary
lengths over the last couple years to try and help this applicant find a
solution that would work." END OF QUOTE The reality of the situation,
however, is rather different; namely, the central reason why the Society
offered the pro bono services of a second architect is because their
negligence during the phase leading up to the 09/24/01 hearing caused me
to lose $4,000 spent on the work of the original architect. As well, in
the 11/3/03 Decision and Opinion of the Commission, one reads, and I
quote: Mr. Harbit felt that the Commission had heard and seen several
alternatives which would meet the applicant's needs and would be
appropriate from a historic-preservation perspective. END OF QUOTE.
Furthermore, in the transcript of the 09/24/03 hearing, Ms. Velasquez
commented on the fact that the drawings done by GTM Architects-- and I
quote-- "seem to provide some sort of solution to your problem. You
would have a hallway, you would have closets, you would have bathrooms,
but it would not pierce the fabric of the house." END OF QUOTE And there
is, lastly, a third person whose remarks I wish to address in this
connection- I wish to return at this juncture to a certain challenging
remark made by Mr. Wayne Goldstein at the 9/24/03 hearing, to wit: that I
should accept-- and I quote-- "the alternative version that will have a
minimal effect on the building." END OF QUOTE To all three-- Mr. Harbit,



Ms. Velasquez, and Mr. Goldstein--, I state that: a) the alternatives
offered would destroy a good portion of my garden (NOT yard); b) they
would ruin the spatial relationship of the rear side of the house; c) they
would entail the removal of a larger wall panel. An evaluation of my
original project shows, conversely, that a) the garden would remain
undisturbed; b) the spatial relationship would suffer no alterations; c)
the affected wall panel would be smaller. Indeed, it is my original
project that would have the least effect on the layout of the house and
grounds, unlike an addition based on either of the aforesaid alternatives.
Who has ever heard of two bathrooms attached to each other, as they would
be in the alternatives? And what good would this do to the person
occupying the bedroom upstairs? This person would still have to come down
six steps, cross the kitchen, cross the dining room, cross the living
room, and finally reach the hall, where the original bathroom is located.
Although I hate to do so, I must contemplate retirement, inasmuch I cannot
hope to be so lucky as to die at my desk. As such, it may come to happen
that, due to a considerably reduced income, I may have to decide to take
in a boarder. Hence, the necessity of a second bathroom built in such a
spot where it can provide the most in privacy and convenience. (This issue
of unacceptable alternatives in no way should be taken as a criticism
directed at the pro bono work of the architect Mr. George Myers; he simply
did what he was asked to do-- that is, find another spot where a bathroom
can be built.) Having made that parenthetic statement, I now continue by
saying that all this only goes to prove, once again, what I have stated
earlier, to wit: all these people who have the power to interfere in my
private life have no idea of what they are talking about! And now I should
like to make a few remarks about two suggestions that have been made in
addition to the official alternatives designed by Mr.
Meyers ....................

I must re-emphasize that what represents the stumbling block in my
project should not .have been allowed to become an issue at all: the
undeniable fact is that the gable would be covered, hidden from sight, but
not destroyed. But this coverage is a small price to pay if it is a
question of upgrading the house without letting it become a source of
ridicule.

But, of course, at the core of the hardship visited upon me is my
frustration over not having been given a chance to decide whether or not
to sign an official instrument, by which I would be binding myself to the
Society's wishes. Because of this denied choice, my rights as a homeowner
have been stripped from me. I have become a sort of caretaker: I am
allowed to live there, and in return I pay high taxes! And it is a
shameful thing to compel a senior citizen to pay high taxes while forcing
her to live with an injustice! If I stand before you all today, it is
because my rights as a citizen have been trampled on. The abrogation of my
constitutional rights as a property owner in the State of Maryland without
a trial in a court of justice or without a contract signed by me
invalidates the judgment of the Society. Hence, I am requesting one of
two things: either that my house be removed from the Historic
Preservation Society's register or that I be allowed to build the bathroom
according to my original design.
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SUBJECT HOUSE AT 9904 COLEVILLE ROAD
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OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ATTORNEY

Douglas M. Duncan
County Executive

January 21, 2004

Renata M. Gould
9904 Colesville Road
Silver Spring, Maryland 20901

RE: Appeal of HPC Decision to Deny an Historic Area Work Permit

Dear Ms. Gould:

Charles W_ Thompson, Jr.
County Attorney

This letter serves to follow up on my January 14, 2004 letter to you concerning the
County's prehearing statement.

Specifically, in my prehearing statement, I did not include information concerning two
witnesses that the County proposes to call during our hearing before the Board of Appeals on
Wednesday, January 4, 2004 at 1:30 p.m. Therefore, I am supplementing the Prehearing
Statement with the following information. The County may also call one or both of these
witnesses:

c) Lee Burstyn, Commissioner, Historic Preservation Commission, 8787 Georgia
Avenue, Silver Spring, MD 20910-3760. The Commissioner may testify about the HPC's
consideration of Ms. Gould's application for a HAWP, the determination to deny the application
for a HAWP and the HPC's reasons for the determination.

d) Nancy Witherell, an independent historian and an Architectural Historian employed in
the Federal Preservation Office of the National Capital Planning Commission, 401 9 h Street,
N.W., Suite 500-North Lobby, Washington, D.C. 20576. Ms. Witherell is an expert concerning,
among other things, the work of John Early who was the architect and fabricator of Ms. ,Gould's
house. She may testify about the unique construction materials and construction techniques of
the Polychrome houses and the importance of John Early's architectural accomplishments,
including the Polychrome houses located in Silver Spring's Polychrome District.

Also, I have received both your telephone message with your contact information and
your January 20, 2004 letter containing the documents that you intend to use during the hearing.
Because it appears that you did not forward copies of your letter and the accompanying
documents to the Board of Appeals, I have taken the liberty of doing so.

101 Monroe Street, Rockville, Maryland 20850-2540.240-777-6716•TTD 240-777-2545•Fax 240-777-6705
vickie.gaul@montgomerycountymd.gov



Renata M. Gould
January 21, 2004
Page 2

Finally, I am enclosing copies of all of the documentation that the HPC was able to locate
concerning the designation of your property as an historic resource. I hope you find this
information helpful.

Thank you.

Very truly yours,

ji( 
V"e L, 

~-j
Vickie L. Gaul
.Associate County A -orney

Enclosures

cc: Board of Appeals
Michele Naru
Gwen Wright

101 Monroe Street, Rockville, Maryland 20850-2540,• 240-777-6716•TTD 240-777-2545 • Fax 240-777-6705
vickie.gaul@montgbmerycountymd.us





PLEASE ,NOTE:, When Montgomery_ County Schools. are closed due, to the, weather',Board of
Appeals hearings may not be held When Montgotnsry,Cotnty"Schools announce a late opening,
Board of"Appeals tiearirigs inayPafiso be delayed ',plea~se,call to ,confirm:.:'

BOARD OF APPEALS
for

MONTGOMERY COUNTY

Stella B. Werner Council Office Building
100 Maryland Avenue

Rockville, Maryland 20850 .
(240) 777-6600

www.montgomeryoountvmd.gov/content/coUncil`/boa/board.asp

Case No. A-5950

APPEAL OF RENATA M.. GOULD

Notice is hereby given that a public hearing will be held by the Board of Appeals
for Montgomery County, Maryland, in the Stella B. Werner Council Office Building, 100
Maryland Avenue, Rockville, Maryland, in the Second Floor Davidson Memorial Hearing
Room, on Wednesday, the 0 day of February, 2004, at 1:30 p.m., or as soon
thereafter as this matter can be heard, on the application pursuant to Section 2-112 of
the Montgomery County Code.

The appellant charges administrative error on the part of the Historic Preservation
Commission in its approval, with conditions, of Historic Area Work Permit number 257831,
dated September 24, 2001. Appellant contend that Section 24A-8(b) (3) and 24A-8(b) (5)
of the Montgomery County Codes were misinterpreted. In accordance with Chapter 2A,
Administrative Procedures Act, a copy of the "charging document" (appeal) is attached to this
notice.

The Board will hold a pre-hearing t conference on °, the appeal at its
Worksession on Wednesday, January 7 2004 at 9:00 a.m. The subject of the
conference will be pre-hearing submissions by the parties, pursuant to Section
2A-7(a) of the Montgomery County Code.

The subject property is located at 9904 Colesville`Road, Silver Spring, Maryland,
20901

Notices forwarded this 11"' day of December, 2003 to:

Renata M. Gould`
Charles W. Thompson, Jr., Esquire, County Attorney
Clifford Royalty, Esquire, Assistant County Attorney
Malcolm Spicer, Jr., Esquire, Assistant County Attorney
Martin Klauber, Esquire, People's Counsel
Robert Hubbard, Director, Department of Permitting Services
Reginald T. Jetter, Chief, Casework Management, Department of Permitting Services
Susan Scala-Demby, Permitting Services Manager, Department of Permitting Services



CASE NO. A-5950

Members, Board of Appeals
Contiguous and confronting property owners
Historic Preservation Society
Historic Preservation Commission
North Hills of Slogo Civic Association
Indian Springs Citizens Association
South Four Comers Citizens Association
Columbia Road Association
Cloverly/Fairland/White Oak CAC
Sligo Woods Civic Association
Northwood-Four Corners Civic Association
Greater Bethesda-Chevy Chase,Coal.
Wheaton Citizens Coalition
Coalition of Kensington Communities
Montgomery County Taxpayers League
Montgomery County Preservation, Inc.. ,
Spanish Speaking People of Montgomery
Citizens fora Better Montgomery
Montgomery County Civic Federation

County Board of Appeals

by.
Katherine Freeman
Executive Secretary to the Board

NOTE: All parties who make submissions, after an initial
filing, in Special Exception, Variance and Administrative,.
Appeals cases, must furnish copies of the submission to all
other parties in the case.. For the.purpose of this requirement,
a party includes: (1) Counsel of record who have, formally
entered. their appearance; (2) The People's Counsel for
Montgomery County if, he has, filed Notice of Intention to
Participate in the case; (3) Any person to whom the Board of
Appeals has granted Intervener status; and (4) The Applicant,
Petitioner or Appellant in the case.

Submissions must be accompanied by a written
statement certifying that copies have been sent to all parties.
Failure to supply such written certification will result in refusal
of the submission.

Page 2
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4; BOA Form_ 3 (Revised 07109/03) Docket No. A- 5 O
Date Filed

BOARD OF APPEALS Hearing Date - -a
FOR Time '

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
(240) 777-6600

APPEAL CHARGING ERROR
IN ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION OR DETERMINATION

Please note instructions on reverse side.
Attach additional sheets if required for answers.

Appeal is hereby made pursuant to Section 2112 of the Montgomery County Code 1994, as amended, from the decision
or other action of an official or agency of Montgomery County specified below which Appellant contends was erroneous.

Offc al or agency from whose action or determination this appeal is made: 14* 4 yi~ /~e*eS~r✓a fio r. ~OC r ~~y.
Wrsfor►;e- NeserUafioh Corn wtission

Brief description of action or determination from which this appeal is made (attach document indicating such action or

i~ne- ~ac s a"a aYA-g (b) (1)
Date of that action or determination: Yep . a. q, aZ. b 0.3
Brief description of what, in appellant's view, the ruling or action should have been: PERMIT 9110 t i)

NAVE SUM Crkh-VIED

Number of Section, and Subsection, if any, of the Montgomery County Code 1994, as amended, or citation orpther statutory
provision, which appellant contends was misinterpreted: i) i 3 
Reason for appeal:

Description of real property, if any, involved in this appeal: Lot a-ft of 4 Block_ Parcel
Subdivision ,Street and NumberCity 

$i it tier Or ~n a Ztp o2 D 9 D ~► ,, Zone Classification

Name of Property owner. (~Z t1 ct %f~ / -1 • (T OGc rd
Mailing address of property owner if different from above address:

Appellant's present legal interest in above property, if any: ✓ Owner (including joint owner-ship) Lessee
Contract to lease or rent Contract to purchase Neighbor Civic Association Other

Explain

I hereby affirm that all of the statements and information contained in or filed with this appeal are true and correct.

G© C/
Signature of Attorney (Please print next to signature) Signature of Appellant (Pleas in next to signature)

Address of Attorney

Telephone Number

q9 a q C 014_5 tl ll e, S; IV" Spr, n~
Address of Appellant(s) Jvl p .1001

13-Do 01- So ys
Home Tel hone Number
(a.oa~ 3,2a- a.`I~/

Work Telephone Number
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BOARD OF APPEALS
100 Maryland Avenue
Rockville, Maryland 20850

A-5950
M-NCPPC Historic Preservation Society

1109 Spring Street, Ste. 807

Silver Spring, MD 20910

4

rd. lr.l S '1 V$ 'ir+` ~i£1£i~i£i1S31£#i'ii kl iii£i li3 iF iYi ffkii iii~3l~ii!£it!£3i31

• .a



40

BEFORE THE BOARD OF APPEALS
FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND

Appeal of CASE NO. A-5950

Renata M. Gould

PREHEARING SUBMISSION OF THE
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

The Montgomery County Historic Preservation Commission submits the following

information pursuant to §2A-7 of the Montgomery County Code, 1994, (as amended).

I. SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

a) Decision and Opinion of the Commission dated November 3, 2003 denying Ms.

Gould's 2003 application for an Historic Area Work Permit (HAWP).

b) Excerpt of the transcript of the September 24, 2003 Historic Preservation Commission

(HPC) hearing at which Ms. Gould's application for a HAWP was unanimously denied.

c) Staff report for the HPC's September 24, 2003 hearing concerning Ms. Gould's

application for a HAWP. The staff report includes among other things, a copy of Ms. Gould's

application for a HAWP which was identical to the application she submitted in 2001 and which

was denied by the HPC in 2001, and copies of architectural drawings for alternative construction

options provided to Ms. Gould by GTM Architects (George Myers, Principal) at the request of

the HPC and at no cost to Ms. Gould (circles 25 through and including 29) following the HPC's

denial of Ms. Gould's 2001 application for a HAWP. (Please note that the HPC's presentation at

the February 4, 2004 hearing before the Board will likely include a PowerPoint presentation of

the photographs included in this staff report).

d) Decision and Opinion of the Commission dated October 9, 2001 denying Ms. Gould's

2001 application for a HAWP.

e) Excerpt of the transcript of the September 24, 2001 HPC hearing at which Ms.
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Gould's application for a HAWP was unanimously denied.

f) Staff report for the HPC's September 24, 2001 hearing concerning Ms. Gould's 2001

application for a HAWP.

g) Chapter 24A of the Montgomery County Code.

h) Historic Preservation Commission Regulation 27-97 "Rules, Guidelines and

Procedures".

i) The Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation and Guidelines, adopted by

the Commission by Resolution in November 1997.

j) Any and all documents identified by the Petitioner and any interveners in their

prehearing submissions, or otherwise produced or relied upon by other parties at the hearing of

this matter.

The HPC may introduce any of the referenced documents, exclusive of those used for

impeachment or rebuttal. The HPC reserves the right to use enlargements, excerpts, or other

presentations of any designated document. Because the Board is hearing this matter de novo,

and the HPC cannot anticipate what documents might be introduced by the Petitioner that were

not previously presented by the Petitioner to the HPC, the HPC further reserves the right to

supplement this list as fairness requires to ensure a complete hearing by the Board.

II. LIST OF THE HPC'S PROSPECTIVE WITNESSES AND SUMMARIES OF EXPECTED
TESTIMONY

The HPC may present testimony from any of the following witnesses, exclusive of

impeachment or rebuttal witnesses:

a) Gwen Marcus Wright, Coordinator, Historic Preservation, 8787 Georgia Avenue,

Silver Spring, MD 20910-3760. Ms. Wright may testify about the application submitted to the

Historic Preservation Commission by the Ms. Gould, and the staff's technical evaluation of the

application. Ms. Wright may also testify about the requirements of the historic preservation plan

under County law and in accordance with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for

2
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Rehabilitation and Guidelines, adopted by the HPC by Resolution in November 1997.

b) Michelle Naru, Historic Preservation Planner, Historic Preservation, 8787 Georgia

Avenue, Silver Spring, MD 20910-3760. Ms. Naru may testify about the Application submitted

to the Historic Preservation Commission by the Applicant, and the staff's technical evaluation of

the Application.

C) , Commissioner, and/or other Commissioners from the Historic

Preservation Commission, 8787 Georgia Avenue, Silver Spring, MD 20910-3760. The

Commissioner may testify about the HPC's consideration of the application, the determination to

deny Ms. Gould's application for a HAWP and the reasons for the determination. PLEASE

NOTE THAT AT THE DATE OF THIS FILING, IT HAS NOT BEEN DETERMINED

WHICH COMMISSIONER WILL TESTIFY FOR THE HPC. THE HPC INTENDS TO

NOTIFY MS. GOULD AND THIS BOARD OF THE NAME OF THE COMMISSIONER

BEFORE MS. GOULD IS REQUIRED TO SUBMIT HER PREHEARING STATEMENT.

DEPENDING UPON THE COMMISSIONER SELECTED, THE COMMISSIONER

WILL ALSO BE AVAILABLE AS AN EXPERT IN HISTORIC PRESERVATION TO

ANSWER ANY QUESTIONS THE BOARD MAY HAVE ON THAT SUBJECT IN

RELATION TO THE APPLICATION THAT WAS CONSIDERED BY THE HPC AND

DENIED.

d) , an expert in the field of architectural history and/or Art Deco

architecture. PLEASE NOTE THAT AT THE DATE OF THIS FILING, THE HPC HAS

NOT DETERMINED ITS EXPERT WITNESS BECAUSE THE WITNESS REQUESTED

TO APPEAR AT THE HEARING BY THE HPC WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE ON

FEBRUARY 4, 2004. THE HPC WILL NOTIFY MS. GOULD AND THIS BOARD OF

THE NAME OF ITS EXPERT BEFORE MS. GOULD IS REQUIRED TO SUBMIT HER

PREHEARING STATEMENT.



III. THE HPC'S REQUESTS FOR SUBPOENAS AND SUMMONSES

None.

IV. ESTIMATED TIME FOR PRESENTATION OF CASE

The HPC estimates it will take approximately one hour to present its case, exclusive of

cross-examination and questions from the Board.

Respectfully submitted,

CHARLES W. THOMPSON, JR.
COUNTY ATTORNEY

Vickie L. Gaul
Associate County Attorney

Attorneys for Respondent Historic
Preservation Commission
101 Monroe Street, Third Floor
Rockville, MD 20850
(240) 777-6700

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that, on this 14th day of January, 2004, a copy of the foregoing

Prehearing Submission of the Historic Preservation Commission was mailed, first class, postage

prepaid, to:

Renata M. Gould
9904 Colesville Road
Silver Spring, Maryland 20901 ! 

if 
i
q~

Vickie L. Gaul
Associate County Attorney
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HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION STAFF REPORT

Address: 9904 Colesville Rd, Silver Spring

Resource: Outstanding Resource
Polychrome Historic District

Review: HAWP

Case Number: 32/05-03A

Applicant: Renata Gould

PROPOSAL: Rear Addition

PROJECT HISTORY:

Meeting Date: 09/24/03

Report Date: 09/17/03

Public Notice: 09/10/03

Tax Credit: None

Staff: Michele Naru

RECOMMEND: Denial

The applicant came before the HPC on September 24, 2001 with a Historic Area Work
Permit (HAWP) application for a frame rear addition, identical to the proposal being presented in
this current HAWP application. The Commission denied the HAWP application at this meeting.
(circles 30-55). They noted that the house was designated for.its unique pre-cast concrete panel
construction and design. As such, destroying these architectural features destroys the integrity of the
historic resource.

Subsequent to this meeting, staff asked a local architect in the area to assist the homeowner

(pro bono) in developing some design alternatives for the proposed addition. The architect
developed drawings that provided a rear addition with the required square footage for the owner,
which also did not require penetration into the house's historic fabric — which would help to retain

the historic integrity of the existing resource (circles 25-29). The applicant has reviewed the
proposed drawings and does not find them to accomplish the needs and requirements of her current
household. She has applied for the attached ..HAWP application in the hopes that since she has

explored all potential viable alternatives, the HPC will determine that the homeowner's needs
outweigh the need to maintain the historic integrity of the subject building.

BACKGROUND:

"The five single-family dwellings that comprise the Polychrome Historic District were built

in 1934-35 by master craftsman John Joseph Earley (1881-1945). These unique houses ,are

outstanding examples of the Art Deco-style and reflect Earley's artistry and craftsmanship.

Conventional wood frames were clad with prefabricated "mosaic concrete" panels utilizing a process

Earley developed and patented in which the concrete was stripped to expose the brilliantly colored

aggregate particles, creating an effect similar to impressionist or pointillist painting. In addition to

their striking, richly ornamented appearance, these houses. represent a relatively rare example of pre-

cast concrete" panel construction in single-family housing';for"the time period Earl ey's .patented
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structural system led to the widespread use of pre-cast architectural concrete as a major exterior
cladding material. The legacy of the Polychrome houses can be seen in thousands of curtain-wall
buildings nationwide."

"Earley was a master builder who culminated nearly three decades of engineering and
architectural experience in the design and construction of the Polychrome houses. From 1906 to
1933, he was responsible for such complex and demanding projects as the stucco work for Meridian
Hill Park (Washington, D.C., 1916); the casting of Lorado Taft's sculpture, "The Fountain of Time"
(Chicago, 1920-22); the rebuilding of the replica of the Parthenon at Nashville (1925); and the Baha'i
Temple of Light in Wilmette, Illinois (begun in 1932). Earley created a new medium for the
decorative arts--mosaic concrete--in designing the richly detailed interior of the Shrine of the Sacred
Heart (Washington, D.C. 1923), the same material used in executing the intricate design of the
ceilings for the Department of Justice (1933) and in the Polychrome houses. Earley wrote eloquently
about the social changes taking place in the United States during the 1930s and the demand for what
he termed "social justice." The polychrome houses represent his attempt to solve the "small house
problem" by providing innovative housing at modest cost during the economic and social upheaval
of the Great Depression." — from National Register Nomination

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

SIGNIFICANCE: Outstanding Resource in the Polychrome Historic District.
STYLE: Art Deco
DATE: 1935

"Polychrome 11, built by John Joseph Early, is a one-story six-room house consisting of a
main block running north to south and a attached garage extending beyond the north end of the main
block to the west, and a small wing at the south end of the front elevation facing east. The gable
roof, originally tiled, is now clad in asphalt shingles. There is a loft room over the one-car attached
garage [area which is the subject of this HAWP]. The exterior walls are comprised of two-inch thick
pre-cast mosaic concrete panels, each four to eight feet wide and nine feet high. Metal casement
window and doorframes were imbedded in the panels before casting. The panels are attached to a
conventional wood frame and anchored to the foundation by u-shaped hangers and threaded with
reinforcing rods, with reinforced concrete columns cast in place behind each joint. The panels are
rosey-pink in color, the result of exposing surface aggregates of red j asperite. There are three large
metal —frame porthole windows, two in the front overlooking the open porch, and one at the rear on
the west wall of the living room. The circular frames are inset with standard casement windows.
The front porch is partially enclosed by a low concrete mosaic wall with decorative geometric
inserts in deep red. The same decorative wall treatment is used on a small porch and the side door on
the north side of the house."

"A driveway runs along the north property line to the entrance of the attached garage, which
faces north. Large decorative mosaic concrete planters are affixed to the south and west walls of the
wing attached to the south end of the main block." — description from National Register Nomination

PROPOSAL:

The applicant is proposing to construct a one-story bathroom addition at the rear of the house.
The addition will be constructed of 2x6 wood frame construction with exterior painted wood siding



and- asphalt roof shingles to match existing. The addition will be supported by steel support
columns, which will be placed in reinforced concrete footings. The existing steel casement window
from the rear elevation will be salvaged and reused in the new addition. Connection to the new
bathroom will be though the existing window opening in the existing bedroom exterior wall.

The proposed new addition would not be visible from the front fagade. No existing trees will
be removed with the construction of the proposed addition.

STAFF DISCUSSION

This house has been in continuous use as a single-family residence on the original site
since construction and has not undergone any major exterior alterations.

As an outstanding resource within a Historic District, this building is subject to the
highest level of design review.

The proposal being presented requires that original decorative elements including the
cornice detail, the window surrounds, a portion of the rear panel and the rear gable with its highly
decorative details will be lost. In rehabilitation, historic building materials and character-
defining features are protected and maintained.. This resource was designated as part of a historic
district. It as well as the rest of the houses in the district identifies a form and detailing of
architectural features that are important in defining the structure's historic character, and these
features must be retained in order to preserve this character. The character of these buildings is
defined by the form and detailing of their interior and exterior features and structural systems.
The Historic Preservation Commission has jurisdiction on the exterior features only.

It is a concern of staff that this alteration, though to the rear of the resource, will be
detrimental to the existing structure. As explained above, the house was built with concrete
panels. These panels were designed in such a way to support each other. If a weak point is bored
into the panels....what effect will this alteration have on the structural integrity of the resource?
The architect and his engineer have worked extensively on this method of construction and have
assured staff that an appropriate header and door surround will support the remaining panel and
will not negatively affect the surrounding panels.

The Polychrome Houses were designated as historically significant because of their
distinctive physical characteristics of design, construction and form as well as their association
with the Art Deco movement in this country. Staff has struggled with this project, mainly
because of the nature of the existing building materials and their importance to the integrity and
historic significance of this resource. It should be noted that because of the uniqueness of the
building materials any cut through the building will cause irreparable damage and will be
destroying historic materials that characterize the property which include the cornice, gable
detail, the concrete panel and original window.

Staff is aware that generally we do approve additions to outstanding resources within our
historic districts if they are located at the rear of the historic site, are not visible from the right-of
way and the proposed addition would be constructed in such a manner that "if removed in the

- 'future-the essential form and integrity of the historic property would be unimpaired."
_.__:__ _ _Additionally, staff does realize that exterior alterations to a historic building are generally needed



9 0 6

to assure a building's continued use, but emphasizes the fact that such alterations should not

radically change or destroy character defining materials, features or finishes. Staff feels that the
proposal as presented will do irreparable damage to the historic materials and the distinctive
details that characterize the building. These alterations will not be reversible and once complete
the original building will never be able to be restored to its original configuration.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Commission deny the HAWP application as not being consistent with

Chapter 24A-8(b)2:

The Commission shall instruct the director to deny a permit if it finds, based on the evidence and information

presented to or before the commission that the alteration for which the permit is sought would be inappropriate or

inconsistent with, or detrimental to the preservation enhancement or ultimate protection of the historic site, or historic

resource within an historic district, and to the purposes of this chapter,

nor with the Secretary of the Interior Guidelines 42, #5, #6, and #9:

The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of distinctive materials or
alteration of features, spaces, and spatial relationships that characterize the property will be avoided.

Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or example of craftsmanship that characterize a

property shall be retained and preserved.

Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of deterioration requires

replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities

and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated by documentary physical, or

pictorial evidence.

New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic materials, features, and

spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and will be
compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the

property and its environment.
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301/563-3400

APPLICATION FOR
HISTORIC AREA WORK PERMIT

Contact Person:

n 

Daytime Phone No.:

Tax Account No.: D-1 I l/ R V 

~j
Name of Property Owner: _r2c } —/,%q  A4. ~t7(~~ Daytime Phone No.: V -~i

Address- 446a 11~,n; 4'7)' I V ~IC ~~ f'C ~l'~~l'~ . Nl~l l ;✓/~ Y/
r 'Street Number 

11 
City
, 

Staet lip Code 1

Contracton: G l ,A
/ 
e Phone No.: 

 6-5-

Contractor Registration No.: n 
{'13 Agent for Owner: ~~ C le OS Daytime Phone No.: %~ (%~ ^'

IV VMIIVI~ V~ V

House Number: Street C o r% ES
Town/City:S~ t/ Nearest Cross Street uzVlV C 2C (/'J 

r

Lot: F 
a s 

Block: Subdivision: .SAC 0

Lber: Folio: Parcel:

PART ONE: TYPE OF PERMIT ACTION AND USE

1A. CHECK ALL APPLICABLE: CHECK ALL APPLICABLE:

onstruct ❑ Extend ❑ Alter/Renovate ❑ A/C ❑ Slab 'Room Addition ❑ Porch O Deck ❑ Shed

❑ Move O Install O Wreck/Raze ❑ Solar ❑ Fireplace ❑ Woodbuming Stove O SingleFamdy/

❑ Revision ❑ Repair ❑ Revocable ❑ Fence/Wall (complete Section 4) O Other.

18. Construction cost estimate: $ 

) 

/ 1~ l

1 C. If this is a revision of a previously approved active permit, see Permit #

PART TWO- COMPLETE FOR NEW CONSTRUCTION AND EXTEND/ADDITIONS

2A. Type of sewage disposal: 01 VWSSC 02 ❑ Septic 03 ❑ Other:

2B. Type of water supply: Ol O WSSC 02 ❑ Well 03 O Other:

PART THREE: COMPLETE ONLY FOR FENCElRETAINING WALL

3A. HeigM feet inches N
38. Indicate whether the fence or retaining wall is to be constructed on one of the followin locations:

❑ On party line/property line O Entirely on land of owner O On public right of way/easement

I hereby certify that I have the authority to make the loregoing application, that the application is correct and that the construction will comply with plans
approved by all agenciejjistOd and I hereby ackrpwledge and accep{ this to be a condition for the issuance of this permit.

Approved: / 11 For Chairperson, Historic Preservation Commission / , /



1. WRITTEN DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

a. Description of existing structure(s) and e 3tal,setdpg, including their Ilistpr
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ures .apd.,significance:

i+=t Pk- c*s*r CoNL?_F_'r6
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b. General description of project and its effecton the historic resource(s), the environmental setting, and, where applicable, the historic district:
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.. !W?I y.orJ...&j, L , Nyr. -. c'-yisluch-OM..:."gaq ti.t-~..._F1~.~i: Ia►~'~ Nl:re4', = Wi W, ac pcme'✓ p.
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2. SITE PLAN '16 LOSE Oi Ci.' Ui I IJb llS f l nlu TatcAsr gE P' I t g i ri vlG ,

Site and environmental setting, drawn to scale. You may use your plat: Your site plan must include:

a. the scale, north arrow arid date;

b. dimensions of all existing and proposed structures; and

c. site features such as walkways, driveways, fences, ponds, streams, trash dumpsters, mechanical equipment,nd.landscapfag 

3. PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

You must submit 2 copies of plans and elevations in a format no larger than 11" x 17 Plans on 8 1/2"- x 11 ° paper are preferred. .

a. Schematic constructlon.plarrs, with marked dimensions, indicating location, size and general type of ,walls, window and door openings, and other
fixed features of both the existing resourcejs) and the proposed work.

b. Elevations (facades), with marked dimensions, clearly indicating proposed work in relation to existing construction and, when appropriate, context
All materials and fixtures proposed for the exterior must be noted on the elevations drawings. An existing and a proposed elevation drawing of each
facade affected by the proposed work is required.

4. MATERIALS SPECIFICATIONS

General description of materials and manufactured items proposed for incorporation in the work of the project This information may be included on your
design drawings. -

5. PHOTOGRAPHS 

..-........ ._ ..... ,. 
•,;f:~fi`:ti~t~"= - ,

a. Clearly labeled photographic prints of each facade of existing resource, including details of the affected portions. All labels should be placed on the
front of photographs.

• ~•~• M6. ht"c ..nf tho rp-m irre'as viewed from the public right-of-way•and of -the adjoining properties. All labels should be placed on



r

HAWP APPLICATION: MAILING ADDRESSES FOR NOTIFING
[Owner, Owner's Agent, Adjacent and Confronting Property Owners]

Owner's mailing address Owner's Agent's mailing address
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Adjacent and confronting Property Owners mailing addresses
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EROSA J '
RCHITECTURE

M.N.C.C.P.C.
Historic Preservation Society
1109 Spring Street
Suite 807
Silver Spring, NM

DATE: August 31, 2001

ATTN: Michelle Naru

Project Description:
9904 Colesville Road
Silver Spring, MD 20901
"Polychrome District"

Mrs. Renata Gould, home owner of the historic residence located at 9904 Colesville Road
plans to add a one story bathroom addition (16'-11" wide x 6'-9'/2" deep) connected to
her existing rear bedroom located at the rear of the existing residence.

The proposed one story bathroom addition would be constructed of 2 x 6 wood frame
construction with exterior painted wood siding and asphalt roof shingles to match
existing. The addition would be supported by steel support columns placed in reinforced
concrete footings. The existing steel casement window from the rear elevation would be
salvaged and reused in the new addition. Connection to the new bathroom addition will
be through the existing window opening in the existing bedroom exterior wall. The
proposed new addition would not be visible from the front of the residence. No existing
trees will be removed with the construction of the proposed addition.

JOSEPH D. DEROSA, A.I.A. 10120 PIERCE DRIVE SILVER SPRING, MD 20901 ~ 301) 593-x366FAX (301) 593 4079
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HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

of

MONTGOMERY COUNTY

8787 Georgia Avenue
Silver Spring, Maryland 20910

301-563-3400

Case No. 32105-03A Received August 1, 2003

Public Appearance September 24, 2003

Before the Montgomery County Historic Preservation Commission

Application of Ms. Renata Gould
9904 Colesville Road, Silver Spring

DECISION AND OPINION OF THE COMMISSION

Decision of the Commission: DENY the Applicant's proposal to construct a rear frame addition.

Commission Motion: At the September 24, 2003 meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission.
(H PC), Commissioner Harbit presented a motion to deny the proposed
Historic Area Work Permit application to construct a rear. frame addition.
Commissioner Fuller seconded the motion. Commissioners llarbit.
O'Malley, Williams, Velasquez, Burstyn, Fuller, Analltar, Watkins and
Breslin voted in favor of the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

BACKGROUND

The following terms are defined in Section 24A-2 of the Code:

Appurtenances and environmental setting: The entire parcel, as of the date on which the
historic resource is' designated on the master plan, and structures thereon, on which is located
a historic resource, unless reduced by the District Council or the commission, and to which it
relates physically and/or visually. Appurtenances and environmental settings shall include,
but not be limited to, walkways and driveways (whether paved or not), vegetation (including
trees, gardens, lawns), rocks, pasture, cropland and waterways.

Commission: The historic preservation commission of Montgomery County, Maryland.

1



Director: The director of the department of permitting services of Montgomery County,
Maryland or his designee.

Exterior features: The architectural style, design and general arrangement of the exterior of
an historic resource, including the color, nature and texture of building materials, and the
type and style of all windows, doors, light fixtures, signs or other similar items found on or
related to the exterior of an historic resource.

Historic District: A group of historic resources which are significant as 
a cohesive unit and

contribute to the historical, architectural, archeological or cultural values within the
Maryland-Washington Regional District and which has been so designated in the master
plan for historic preservation.

Historic Resource: A district, site, building, structure or object, including its appurtenances
and environmental setting, which is significant in national, state or local history,
architecture, archeology or culture.

On August 1, 2003, Ms. Renata Gould completed an application for a Historic Area Work Permit
(HA)AT) to enlarge the size of her house by constructing a 6'9" by 16' 11" frame rear addition.

9904 Colesville Road 
is an Outstanding Resource within the Polychrome Historic District

designated on the Master Plan For Historic Preservation in Montgomery County in 1985 and on the
National Register of Historic Places in 1996.

HISTORY OF RESOURCE:

The National Register nomination for the Polychrome Historic. District includes the following
description:

The five single-family dwellings that comprise the Polychrome Historic District were built in 1934-35
by master craftsman John Joseph Earley (1881-1945). These unique houses are outstanding examples
of the Art Deco-style and reflect Earley's artistry and craftsmanship. Conventional wood frames were
clad with prefabricated "mosaic concrete" panels utilizing a process Earley developed and patented in
which the concrete was stripped to expose the brilliantly colored aggregate particles, creating an effect
similar to impressionist or pointillist painting. In addition to their striking, richly ornamented
appearance, these houses represent a relatively rare example of pre-cast concrete panel construction in
single-family housing for the time period. Earley's patented structural system led to the widespread use
of pre-cast architectural concrete as a major exterior cladding material. The legacy of the Polychrome
houses can be seen in thousands of curtain-wall buildings nationwide.

Earley was a master builder who culminated nearly three decades of engineering and architectural
experience in the design and construction of the Polychrome houses. From 1906 to 1933, he was
responsible for such complex and demanding projects as the stucco work for Meridian Hill Park
(Washington, D.C., 1916); the casting of Lorado Taft's sculpture, "The Fountain of Time" (Chicago,
1920-22); the rebuilding of the replica of the Parthenon at Nashville (1925); and the Baha'i Temple of
Light in Wilmette, Illinois (begun in 1932). Earley created a new medium for the decorative arts--
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mosaic concrete--in designing the richly detailed interior of the Shrine of the Sacred Heart (Washington,
D.C. 1923), the same material used in executing the intricate design of the ceilings for the Department
of Justice (1933) and in the Polychrome houses. Earley wrote eloquently about the social changes
taking place in the United States during the 1930s and the demand for what he termed "social justice."
The polychrome houses represent his attempt to solve the "small house problem" by providing
innovative housing at modest cost during the economic and social upheaval of the Great Depression.

Polychrome 11, built by John Joseph Early, is a one-story six-room house consisting of a main block
running north to south and a attached garage extending beyond the north end of the main block to the
west, and a small wing at the south end of the front elevation facing east. The gable roof, originally
tiled, is now clad in asphalt shingles. There is a loft room over the one-car attached garage [area which
is the subject of this HAWP]. The exterior walls are comprised of two-inch thick pre-cast mosaic
concrete panels, each four to eight feet wide and nine feet high. Metal casement window and door
frames were imbedded in the panels before casting. The panels are attached to a conventional wood
frame and anchored to the foundation by u-shaped hangers and threaded with reinforcing rods, with
reinforced concrete columns cast in place behind each joint. The panels are rosey-pink in color, the
result of exposing surface aggregates of red jasperite. There are three large metal-frame porthole
windows, two in the front overlooking the open porch, and one at the rear on the west wall of the living
room. The circular frames are inset with standard casement windows. The front porch is partially
enclosed by a low concrete mosaic wall with decorative geometric inserts in deep red. The same
decorative wall treatment is used on a small porch and the side door on the north side of the house.

A driveway runs along the north property line to the entrance of the attached garage, which faces north.
Large decorative mosaic concrete planters are affixed to the south and west walls of the wing attached
to the south end of the main block.

EVIDENCE IN THE RECORD:

The applicant originally came before the HPC on September 24, 2001 with a Historic Area Work
Permit (HAWP) application for a frame rear addition, identical to the current proposal, which is the
subject of this report. The Commission denied that HAWP application at the 2001 meeting. They
noted that the house was designated for its unique pre-cast concrete panel construction and design.
As such, destroying these architectural features destroys the integrity of the historic resource.

Subsequent to this meeting, historic preservation staff asked a local architect in the area to assist the
homeowner (pro bono). in developing some design alternatives for the proposed addition. The
architect developed drawings that provided a rear addition with the required square footage for the
owner, but which required minimal penetration into the house's important character defining
features. The applicant reviewed the proposed drawings and did not find them acceptable.

The applicant submitted a second HAWP application on August 1, 2003. This application, as stated
above, is identical to the original proposal reviewed and denied by the HPC on September 24, 2001.

A written staff recommendation on this case was prepared and sent to the Commission on
September 17, 2003. At the September 24,2003 HPC meeting, staff person, Michele Naru showed



a Powerpoint presentation of photos of the site and presented an oral report with staff
recommendations. Staff recommended the HAWP application be denied.

The staff's specific concerns were:

1. The house is an Outstanding Resource within the Polychrome Historic District and
the building is subject to the highest level of design review.

2. The proposal would require original decorative elements to be lost.
3. The alterations would not be reversible. The original building would never be able to

be restored to its original configuration.
4. The proposal would radically change and destroy the character defining materials that

characterize the building.

The applicant, Ms. Gould, attended the meeting. Ms. Gould testified that the issues that brought the
original proposal to the Commission in September of 2001 have not improved. In her assessment,
the addition has become. more necessary than before. She indicated that the addition is to be
constructed to provide an additional bathroom and closet space, since the existing house was built
with only one bathroom. She further explained that the proposed addition would be completely to
the rear of the house and not visible from the street. Additionally, Ms. Gould admitted that one of
the cast concrete pediments would be irreversibly altered as a result of this project, yet noted that the
majority of the pediment would remain behind the new roof of the addition. The applicant's
position is that the proposed sacrifice of the subject historic fabric provides a substantial gain for her
and her family and in the monetary value of the house.

The applicant's neighbor, Ursula Allen, also attended and testified the meeting. The neighbor's
testimony focused on her viewpoint as a Realtor. She indicated that from a real estate perspective,
having one bathroom in was considered a hardship. She additionally noted that a one-bathroom
dwelling has a resale disadvantage and encouraged the Commission to approve the project so it will
improve her neighbor's lifestyle and value of the property.

The President of Montgomery Preservation, Inc., who is also the. Preservation Chair of the Art Deco
Society of Washington and a Montgomery County resident, Wayne Goldstein, also attended and
testified at the meeting. Mr. Goldstein spoke first of being a resident of Montgomery County and an
owner of a two-bedroom, one-bath, 672 sq. ft. house in Kensington. His testimony focused on his
property value increase since he purchased the property in 1993 — from $120,000 to $240,000. Mr.
Goldstein further testified about the remarkable resources the Polychrome Houses are to
Montgomery County's history. He expressed concern over the owner's desire to destroy the
resource's integrity. He stated that it was his opinion that if families have outgrown a historic
property and if you cannot enlarge the building without destroying its integrity then the family
should move to a larger house. Mr. Goldstein concluded his testimony asking the Commission to
deny the proposal and asking the applicant to accept an alternate version for the addition — as
developed by the architect who provided pro bono design services - which will have minimal impact
to the historic property or to think about relocating to a house more suitable to her family's needs.

Commissioner Anahtar questioned the applicant about the habitability of the proposed addition in
terms of building codes. Based on her knowledge as an architect, she explained that the proposed
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ceiling height at the ridge is 8 feet, leaving less than 6' along the sides of the gable, which is not
acceptable by building code requirements. Commissioner Anahtar questioned whether the drawings
submitted by the applicant were accurate.

Commissioner Fuller stated that he did not want the Commission to do anything to discourage the
owner from staying in the house. He further expressed that he felt that the owner was a good
steward of the property and supports the owner's desire to build an addition behind her house. His
concerns about the proposal were the applicant's desire to destroy permanently one of the most
unique parts of the house, namely the highly ornate pediment. He further indicated that he would
like to see the owner utilize a design that would add an addition to the house without destroying one
of the pre-cast panels. He recommended that the Commission deny the application as presented but
encouraged the applicant to re-examine other design alternatives for the rear addition.

Commissioner Harbit made the motion to deny the Historic Area Work Permit for Case 32/05-03A,
noting that he was sorry to do so since the applicant was such an excellent steward of the property.
He further noted that he felt that the Commission has gone to extraordinary lengths over the last
couple of years to try to help this applicant to find a solution that would work. He felt that the
Commission had heard and seen several alternatives to the currently proposed addition, which
would meet the applicant's needs and would be appropriate from a historic preservation perspective.
He further expressed that he felt that the reasons that the proposal was denied two years ago are still
valid today. Commissioner Fuller seconded the motion. Commissioners Harbit, O'Malley,
Williams, Velasquez, Burstyn, Fuller, Anahtar, Watkins and Breslin voted in favor of the motion.
Motion passed unanimously.

CRITERIA FOR APPROVAL AND FINDINGS OF THE COMMISSION:

The criteria which the Commission must evaluate in determining whether to deny a Historic Area
Work Permit application are found in Section 24A-8(a) of the Montsomery County Code.,] 984, as
amended.

Section 24A-8(a) provides that:

The Commission shall instruct the director to deny a permit if it finds, based on the evidence
and information presented to or before the commission that the alteration for which the
permit is sought would be inappropriate or inconsistent with, or detrimental to the
preservation enhancement or ultimate protection of the historic site, or historic resource
within an historic district, and to the purposes of this chapter.

In analyzing whether the criteria for issuance of a Historic Area Work Permit have been met, the
Commission also evaluates the evidence in the record in light of the Amendment to the
Approved and Adopted Master Plan for Historic Preservation in Montgomery County, Maryland _
Polychrome Historic District.

The Commission also evaluates the evidence in light of generally accepted principles of historic
preservation, including the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation and
Guidelines, adopted in the Commission's Executive Regulations on November 4, 1997. In
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particular Standards #2, and 49 are applicable in this case:

Standard 2: The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The
removal of distinctive materials or alterations of features, spaces, and spatial
relationships that characterize a property will be avoided.

Standard 9: New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not
destroy historic materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize
the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and will be
compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion,
and massing to protect the integrity of the property and its environment.

Based on this, the Commission finds that:

The proposed rear addition will destroy the historic materials and features that define
this historic property.

The proposal constitutes changes that specifically impair the existing integrity of the
resource, which through its architectural fabric and design, contributes to the historic
character of the Polychrome Historic District as a whole:

CONCLUSION:

The Commission was guided in its decision by Chapter 24A, by the Amendment to the Approved
and Adopted Master Plan for Historic Preservation in Montgomery County, MWland, - Polychrome
Historic District, and by the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation.

Lased on the evidence in the record and the Commissior:'s findings. as required by Section 24A-8(a)
of the Montgomery County Code, 1984, as amended, the Commission must deny the application of
Ms. Renata Gould for a Historic Area Work Permit (HAWP) to construct a rear frame addition at
9904 Colesville Road in the Polychrome Historic District.

If any party is aggrieved by the decision of the Commission, pursuant to Section 24A-70(h) of the
Montgomery County Code, an appeal may be filed within thirty (30) days with the Board of
Appeals, which will review the Commission's decision de novo. The Board of Appeals has full
and exclusive authority to hear and decide all appeals taken from the decision of the Commission.
The Board of Appeals has the authority to affirm, modify, or reverse the order or decision of the
Commission.

—,34 e
113D3

Susan Velasquez, Chairperson date
Montgomery County Historic Preservation Commission
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know that many Commissioners wanted to hear this case. What

is the feeling if we .-- if we just postpone this to another

meeting?

MR. HARBIT: Is there -- are we within the time

limit to do that?

MS. WRIGHT: The date on the application is August

25th, so 45 days -- yeah, we can postpone it to August 8th,

which is the next Commission meeting and still be within the

45 days.

MS. VELASQUEZ: All right, let's do that then.

The next case on the agenda is Case I, Renata Gould, for an

addition at 9904 Colesville Road. Is there a staff report?

MS. NARU: The case before you is for a 32/05-03A,

as you mentioned 9904 Colesville Road, Silver Spring. This

is an outstanding resource within the Polychrome Historic

District.

Just to give you.a little background, the

applicant came before the HPC on September 24th, 2001

with a Historic Area Work Permit application for a frame

rear additional and the -- tonight is an identical proposal

to what was presented at that hearing. The Commission

denied the Historic Area Work Permit at this meeting, citing

that the house was designated for its unique,pre-cast

concrete panel construction and designaand as such,

destroying these architectural features would destroy the
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integrity of the historic resource.

Subsequent to this meeting, staff asked a local

architect in the area to assist the homeowner in developing

some design alternatives. The architect developed the

design for a rear addition that's denoted on your packet at

Circle --

UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE: Twenty-five.

MS. NARU: -- 25 -- Circle 25. The applicant had

reviewed the proposed drawings and felt that they did not

accomplish her needs and requirements for her current

household. She is here this evening for the original

Historic Area Work Permit application and in the hope that

since she's explored all potential for alternatives that the

HPC will determine that her needs outweigh the need to

maintain the historic integrity of the building.

I do have photos of the house to help reorient you

to the site -- for some of you, this is probably a new

process.since many of you were not here in 2001. This

house, as j mentioned, faces Colesville Road just before the

turn on to go onto 495. This is the principal facade,

noting the detail of the pre-cast concrete detailing that is

designated as a unique .quality of the resource.

They were developed by molds that the windows as

well as all of the structural integrity was actually poured

in -- built and poured into.molds and set up -- create the



jd 55

' 1 structure. So, you will note the seams -- that create these

• 2 various panels, so they are entire individual systems in and

3 of themselves.

4 And this is a view of the side. This is the front

5 elevation here and this is the side, and this is her

6 driveway. This is.a view of the rear. This is a screened-

7 in patio. The proposal is to add onto this gable here to

8 project out and put the frame addition in this location.

9 Here's a better view of this.

10 The addition will also -- in order to access this

11 addition, this window will be removed and a door would be

12 cut into the space.

13 MS. WRIGHT: Indeed, the door would cut into the

14 pediment that.you saw in that last image.

15 MS. NARU: Let me go back. Correct, it comes all

16 the way up this location here. Because you will note in the

17 details on the floor plans, the ceiling height exceeds this

0
m 18
0

cornice detail here. The ceiling actually comes up to about
Q

a 

19 this level.

w 20 And staff is here to entertain any questions you
0
LL

21 might have, and the applicant is here as well.

22 MS. VELASQUEZ: Thank you. Do you have any

23 questions of staff? _

24. MR.-FULLER: Just procedurally. Is this

_-_____2 5--- considered-a-reconsideration-since- it'-s the--exact -same-------.--.--- ----
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proposal that's been in front of us, or what's --

MS. NARU: No. It's a brand new proposal. And

because it's been two years since the first proposal.was

denied, it can be brought back.

MS. VELASQUEZ: Thank you. The applicant is here.

Would you like to step forward? State your name for the

record, please.

MS. GOULD: My name is Renata Gould and I am the

owner of the house that you just saw.

MS. VELASQUEZ: Okay, thank you. Ms. Gould, you

have seven minutes as the applicant.

MS. GOULD: Well, .the reason I'm here again is

because the time has gone by but my situation has not

improved on the contrary. And so I thought, you know, with

the -- I decided to resubmit my -- my case and my proposal.

I do know that something would have to be

sacrificed. Okay, but I would like to call your attention

to two facts. Number one, as I believe quite strongly, this

addition is completely -- I think you will notice that -- in

the rear of the house. Absolutely. I mean -- even -- not

even idea what -- going to be there, you have to go all the

way .in this driveway, tern around, and then between, you

know, the two --.which belongs to the house -- you can see

the addition. So, this I know.it:is a very important factor

for this -- absolutely seen from any side of the house



jd`

• 1

2

3

0

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

57

unless you walk through.

The second thing, of course, is the fact that one

of the pediments or gable as -- is going to be sacrificed.

Not completely. In fact I can tell you the sides of -- have

seen -- would become a door. So, the -- the gable would be

-- foot high to come up. And one foot high and three

feet wide.

Now, the rest of the gable naturally would stay

there, but would be here, because of the addition. I do

understand that is a sacrifice, but you have to realize what

we gain -- I gain, and my family and everybody else here

gain from that. I add a bathroom and I enhance the value of

the house. I'm not speaking about just -- advantages. My

life has been very difficult because I couldn't do this two

years ago.

I don't -- just -- from the front view of the

two bathrooms will really enhance the -- of the house. I

know - should have this bathroom. Montgomery County --

automatic -- like that. But we -- also to fix something

else. This is not a public building. It's a private home.

And what will be sacrificed is not a unique feature. If you

remember a picture, that -- this portion -- this gable --

yes, which will disappear from sight because of the -- is

one out of four,I think.-- I think --_you can say, well, you

know, it's a work of art should be but, 
you know, it
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seems -- but -- come and see. We had the -- because that is

-- I rescued mine. When I got it, I was painting it and --

to improve it, and I've done that with my meager teacher's

salary that I get.

When I -- that I couldn't do more, and I have been

increasing the -- of the house ever since, and everybody

knows me. Even the officers of the society knows that I

speak the truth.

Now, if I cannot have this bathroom, I -- don't

know, but I want you to remember -- as it is -- the house

was always used as a single-family abode, which is not quite

true. Just before I got there, there was 11 people living

in that house because it belonged to something that I'm sure

you're familiar with. I wasn't. To the H -- acronym, to

the Housing Opportunity Commission. Are you familiar with

this? Good.

There were 11 people, five children. I don't know

how that house could put up with that. Mattresses --

neighbors complained so much that there was a visit to the

place and then all of these people were moved to a more --

place for them. And they cleaned 
up a little bit and I

moved in. And I've been there since -- June 1, 1972. I did

buy the house in 1982 and then'- .-'- I'm sorry, in'.1981, which

of course was not on the"reg --'I didn't even know about the

designation of this application.

I 
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And since this day I started to improve the house.

I -- because all of those houses are eaten up by termites.

Absolutely terrible. And I had to,fight with -- I had to

come here to -- to ask permission about putting up a fence

to protect myself from a yard full of mattresses, you

know -- situation I was living with.

Now, a big tree has come down because of recent --

and it is leaning -- leaning against the roof of -- how long

that wall will be able to resist the tree, I don't know. As

much -- the gutter, as much a little bit of the roof and

it's sticking there. Believe me, ladies and gentlemen, that

the owner will never do anything. I'm afraid the wall will

collapse or something -- very strong.

But this is just to tell you what the situation is

and the fact that I, being the only one there actually..--

move out because more or less the reason I am here now. And

it is just a shame that, again, really I tried to improve --

to improve my.house, but I am penalized and all these things

-- so I just wanted to show you one -- if I might just.-- of

this tree and the fact -- yes, now this is the size -- you

can see the size of -- because of the -- look where the tree

is falling and see a little bit of what is in there, if you

agree.

MS..VELASQUEZ: Okay, I think the staff might be

the proper people to initiate something about the owner of
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1 that tree. Thank you. I'm going to ask you to wind up

2 and --

3 MS. GOULD: Oh, I'm not talking --

4 MS. VELASQUEZ: It's okay. You're -- I'm going to

5 bring you back for questions, okay?

6 MS. GOULD: Yes.

7 MS. VELASQUEZ: I'm going to have two more people

8 that want to speak to'your application. So, I'll let you

9' have a seat and then I'll bring you back up --

10 MS. GOULD: Should I leave it or --

11 MS. VELASQUEZ: Sit back there in another chair --

12 MS. GOULD: Yes, I'll do that.

13 MS. VELASQUEZ: -- and I'll bring up the next

14 speaker --

15 MS. GOULD: Thank you.

16 MS. VELASQUEZ: -- who is Ursula Allen.

17 MS. ALLEN: Good evening.

0
_

0
18 MS.-VELASQUEZ: Good evening. You have three

a 

- 19 minutes, Ms. Allen.

w 20 MS. ALLEN: I'm Ursula Allen, and my profession

0
LL

21 I'm a realtor and as well as a neighbor of Mrs. Gould. And

22 I want to say from a real estate perspective that having one

23 bathroom in a house these days is considered a hardship and

24 if you're trying to sell a property with one -- only one

25:., bathroom, you -- it's going to -- the property is really at
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a disadvantage to sell. So, I'm here to hope to convince

you all that being able to have a second bathroom will not

only enhance Mrs. Gould's lifestyle, but it also will

improve the value of the property.

And also I want -- I might want to add what I've

heard in previous discussions as far as being on the

National Register, that that enhances the value of your

property. One of the reasons buyers are very hesitant to

buy properties that are under the National Register is

because of these types of procedures that a homeowner has to

go through and endure in order to enhance on the property.

So,.I hope you will take into consideration that it will

only improve the value of the property and thank you.

MS. VELASQUEZ:, Thank you very much. Next, on

behalf of Montgomery Preservation, is Wayne Goldstein. Mr.

Goldstein, you have five minutes.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: I'm Wayne Goldstein, president of

Montgomery Preservation, but I'm also preservation chair of

the Art Deco Society of Washington, so I wanted to bring

that perspective as well, and speak as an individual.

As an individual, back in 1993 I bought a two-

bedroom, one bath house, 672 square feet in Kensington for

less than $120,000. Now, my house -- I'm not interested in

selling it, but I know-that a comparable house a few doors.

up recently sold for $240,000. So, here you have a two-
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bedroom, one bath house that doubled in value. I think

that's remarkable. I'm not too happy about it because it

means my property taxes are going to start going up quite a

bit in the near future.

In any event, the Polychrome houses are a

remarkable historic resource. The fact that they are all

the same makes them all the more remarkable. John Joseph

Earley was a master craftsman and he just created this

small, but spectacular little neighborhood in Montgomery

County. We're very lucky to have it. I think anyone who

has the opportunity to live in that house is very lucky.

But as I would mention about my little house, it

was built in 1946. People have moved in, they have lived

there. If their families have enlarged, they've decided to

move into other larger houses. They didn't decide to

enlarge it. This has been great for, in my case, affordable

housing in that people can come along who are single, maybe

a couple, and they move in and then they get a better family

and they want a bigger house, they move on. Sometimes you

can enlarge a house, sometimes you move to a larger one.

With this extraordinary historic resource, you

don't enlarge because that destroys its integrity. I think

that the HPC was creative and generous in arranging for.a

certain architect to provide pro bono'services to show them,

how they could get that second bathroom with minimal affect
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1 on the integrity of the building. I comment you for that

2 and look forward to you being creative in all sorts of ways

3 in the future, proving that this Historic Preservation

4 Commission does everything it can to make it easy to live in

5 and reuse and enlarge historic homes.

6 I would ask that you, again, deny this. I would

7 love that this applicant, who clearly has put her heart into

8 fixing up the property and taking care of it, either accept

9 the alternative version that will have a minimal effect on

10 the building, or think about moving. I think she would find

11 that this extraordinary house, even with its one bathroom,

12 would sell for a remarkable price. And I know that the Art

13 Deco Society has followed this closely for a number of years

14 and that we just think this is a very important Art Deco

15 resource.

16 Thank you.

m 17 MS. VELASQUEZ: Thank you, Mr. Goldstein. Would

0
18 the applicant like to step forward again. Do the

a

19 Commissioners have any questions for the applicant? Or

W 20 discussion.

0
LL

21' MS. ANAHTAR: I was looking at your drawings and

22 as_far as I can understand from the floor plan you go up to

23 get to your existing bedroom.

24 MS..,GOULD: There are five steps, yes.

25 MS. ANAHTAR.- And then you imagine the addition to
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go to this block. Then I am looking at Circle 17, which is

the cross section of the new addition, I believe, and I see

-- ceiling height -- maximum ceiling is eight at the ridge,

and I know -- minimal is required. I mean, this is not a

habitable space as far as I can see. Unless there's a space

-- drawing, but what you have is not acceptable by code.

MS. GOULD: I'm sorry about that, but I don't --

MS. ANAHTAR: The -- you know, you have the walls

and then you have the gable roof, right?

MS. GOULD: Yes.

MS. ANAHTAR: So that,-you know, height that you

have on -- is only five foot, four inches or something like

that. And then it gets maximum seven foot, eight in the

middle of the room. And if we have to draw a six foot,

eight inches line you can only, you know, stand up'in the

middle of the room basically.

MS..WILLIAMS: I think the five foot, four inches

is to the top of the existing window. Isn't that --

MS. ANAHTAR: Well, Circle 17 --

MS. WILLIAMS: Oh, I see what you're saying.

MS. ANAHTAR: Yeah, so I am not -- a mistake or --

MS. WRIGHT: It's a pre-existing space --

(Discussion off the record.)

MS. WRIGHTt The new addition you're saying.--

maybe that way and they're replicating it -

W
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MS. ANAHTAR: So I'm wondering in your existing

bedroom, you can stand up, right? Your head doesn't hit the

ceiling?

MS. GOULD: No. Uh-uh.

MS. ANAHTAR: So, if you are matching that, then

we have a problem with your drawing -- some kind of mistake

made.

MS. GOULD: I don't know. This part has never --

MS. ANAHTAR: Yeah, I'm just looking at this --

MS. GOULD: -- never come out. I -- are you

trying to say, if I understand you correctly, that if the

door shouldn't be there --

MS. ANAHTAR: What I'm saying is if your roof is

not high enough so that it can become a habitable space, you

know that you can stand up basically without hitting the

ceiling.

MS. GOULD: No --

MS. ANAHTAR: Then something is wrong with your

drawing.

MS. ALLEN: Can I see what you're looking at?

(Discussion off the record.)

MR. FULLER: I'm not sure that that detail is one

that's --

MS. VELASQUEZ: No.

MR. FULLER: And I guess,I have a couple comments.
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1 Number one is I certainly actually don't want us to do

2 anything that would discourage you from staying in the

3 house. From my perspective, people like you are exactly who

4 we want to have in houses like this, for taking care of them

5 and continuing to move them forward. And, quite frankly, I

6 think I support the idea of you having the ability to build

7 an addition behind the house.

8 I think the issue at hand here is that the most

9 unique feature of these houses are the pre-cast panels that

10 formed the exterior skin and the proposal in front of us

11 basically is going to take one of the most prominent --

12 admittedly to the rear, but it's going to take one of the

13 most unique parts of this house and destroy in permanently,

14 which kind of goes against some of the recommendation.

15 I have no problem with adding space to this house

16 to add a bathroom in the rear, whether it be what George did

17 or whether it be any other method of coming up with a

m

0
18 solution to it, but I think the solution, from my

a

19 perspective, should be one that doesn't destroy one of the

wLL 20 pre-cast panels, and I think --

0
LL

21 MS. NARU: One of the thoughts that staff has had

22 this week is an idea that maybe using the exist .garage and

23 create that as a bathroom space and then actually build a

24 detached garage on the property. So, you could actually use

25 that interior space and you wouldn't -Piave to disrupt any

W
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existing -- I don't know if that's something that the owner

thought about, but then you get the square footage that you

need for an addition -- a bathroom addition, but also then

we could build a separate detached garage so you still would

have that garage space. It's -- idea.

MS. GOULD: And how would that go from the house

to this bathroom?

MS. NARU: You'd have to build an interior

staircase -- right.

MS. WRIGHT: But, I think that -- I mean, that

certainly is an option that if the applicant is interest, we

can explore. I think what we have to do is sort of just

deal with the application we have before us.

MR. FULLER: I understand that. I guess all I was

trying to point out was that from my perspective, I don't

want the applicant to go away with the intention that we're

saying hey, we don't want you to do an addition. From my

perspective, whether it be the one that George suggested or

potentially even a lesser of evils would be enclosing the

existing porch -- that's not in front of us today, so I'm

going to recommend, yes, that we deny the application as

presented, but I believe that the applicant should

understand, at least from my perspective,,I would like to

see her stay in the house and if to make that, happen it

means an addition on the back of the house, we permitted
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1 additions,on the back of other houses in the back.

2 MS. VELASQUEZ: As long as they don't pierce the

3 fabric of the Polychrome. That seems to be the major point

4 for everyone --

5 MS. GOULD: But only -- only --

6 MS. VELASQUEZ: -- is that the sheathing on this

7 house not be cut or --

8 MS. GOULD: But, yes, some of it will -- I know

9 that, but this -- wall that -- near the porch, that part of

10 this -- circle like this which something I did not expect --

11 happen. It was a job which was to -- and it was. I decided

12 that I wanted a washed and dryer. It's so nice to speak

13 about this house -- but it was based -- times. The living

14 standards were different then from what they are today. I

15 had a choice to remove the -- my table in the kitchen and

16 put a washer and dryer or keep going to the laundromat.

m 17 Now, I don't think you like this idea yourself. But I was

g

0
18 in that situation.

d 19 And I don't want to give up my table because I

w 20 love to cook and I wanted space in my kitchen.. So, what I
Q
0
LL

21 did -- I don't know if somebody suggested to me -- don't

22 remember, that why don't you move the boiler -- because I

23 have water for heat, you know, so I know it's called boiler.

24 Put the boiler from where it is in space the kitchen to the

25 garage. Well I did that. Well this .was -g g - job from

V
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the society.

Little did I know what happened. I said, well

they moved the boiler there -- some pipes -- have to do.

Uh, uh, uh. They -- big hole in the garage -- they put --

anyway, to make -- I think I have a picture here. That I

have a wall -- they did it beautifully, but -- attach a big

structure in order to have -- and one of the hole made in

the wall -- in the concrete .is about this size. So, when I

saw it -- I said. If I had asked permission to the society,

I:don't think I'd have a washer and dryer now.

So, this is the situation. Not -- I didn't have

-- and now I added a washer and dryer where the boiler was.

But something else. With this bathroom, I was going finally

to add some closet space. There is almost nothing.-- very

tiny. Again, we speak about the mentality of 1935. Now,

why it's true that I not be able to live in this year 2003

in my house? You know, it is very -- a very common sense

question, I believe.

MS. VELASQUEZ: Okay, I think that what we're

looking at here 
is first of all the same application that we

saw two years ago. But I notice that attached to it are

drawings done by GTM Architects --

MS. GOULD: Yes.

MS. VELASQUEZ: --,which seem to provide some sort
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of solution to your problem. You would have a hallway, you

would have closets, you would have bathrooms, but it would

not pierce the fabric of the house. Unfortunately, we're

going to have -- we have only one application to vote on

before us tonight, but I'm going.to encourage you to

reconsider some of the alternatives, and there may be other

alternatives to this proposal.

MS. GOULD: I -- none, believe me. I had to

reconsider -- all the architectural set up of the house

around the porch. And I would have one bathroom-- the new

one -- attached to the old one. What kind of sense -- Mr.

Myerson is a wonderful architect. He was -- find a place to

build another -- bathroom. Well, physically speaking -- can

do it, but logically that don't make any sense. Absolutely.

I think you should just come once -- look for yourself. One

bathroom attached to the other one. Please -- this-is

ridiculous.

MS. VELASQUEZ: Okay --

MS. WILLIAMS: I have another question.

obviously, the biggest problem here is not perhaps the

penetration of just the concrete panel, but the cast

concrete template -- and the"destruction of that once you

build the addition. I understand I don't have and I

totally understand that; but it seems to me right now you

mount five steps to your bedroom> Would you consider going
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down to an.addition, so that it could be lower than the

existing --

MS. GOULD: -- me.

MS. WILLIAMS: No, where you currently have it

proposed.

71

UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE: Is that where the garage

entrance is?

MS. WILLIAMS: No, no --

MS. WRIGHT: So, that you would walk --

MS. GOULD: -- yes,.for the addition --

MS. WILLIAMS: Yes -- walk down.

MS. GOULD: Oh, yes. Oh, Madam, I considered

that, but I --

MR. FULLER: You still have a problem with

puncturing -- she's still going to be up before she steps

down, so at the face of the wall she would still. be at.the

normal height so the -- if the height is dictated by the

clearance --

MS. WATKINS: -- in the bedroom. The stairs would

have to be in the bedroom.

MS. ANAHTAR: But she's saying there's nothing in

the bedroom right now:

MS. NARU: The ceiling actually comes up into the

pediment. If you are in the bedroom, the ceiling height is

above the cornice detail. It actually comes into the. gable.



id

11

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

72

So, you still would have to penetrate that detail to get

your door height.

MS. GOULD: So, window height in not --

MS. NARU: No, the window actually comes up to

about like here. It's actually pretty.low. I mean, it

comes up to about breast height -- the top of the window.

MS. WRIGHT: I think for a little institutional

memory, when we were here two years ago, we had a similar

discussion and tried to explore a lot of different design

alternatives; roof forms, different possible ideas, and I

don't know that we can really resolve those kinds of design

issues in this forum. That was one of the reasons we asked

Mr. Myers to work with Mrs. Gould and try to come up with

some solutions.

But, you know, what you're hearing is basically

that Mr. Myers' solution was something that Mrs. Gould just

does not want to build. That is not her choice.

MS. VELASQUEZ: Okay, therefore we have this

particular application in front of us to consider. Rather

than redesigning the house, which we did ask the architect

to, well, redesign for an application two years ago. Is

there a motion on this particular application?

MR. HARBIT: I move that we deny this application,

( unfortunately. I've been reluctant to do that. We don't

deny many applications. I think we've one to extraordinary
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u 1 lengths over the last couple of years to try and help this

2 applicant find a solution that would work. We've heard

3 again even another possible.solution, which would be

4 converting the garage into a bathroom and creating a

5 separate free-standing garage. But it's not our business to

6 redesign proposals. I think the reasons that we denied the

7 application before are still valid today.
l

8 MR. FULLER: I'll second that.

9 MS. VELASQUEZ: Any further discussion?

10 MS. O'MALLEY: I would still like to suggest to

11 the applicant that she look into the idea of using the back

12 doorway to make a hallway to a bathroom, and she can look at

13 the -- garage --.

14 MS. VELASQUEZ: Okay, any further discussion?

15 MS. WILLIAMS: I'm also just wondering if we still

16 have some pro bono hours available where we could have GTM

17 continue to work with the.applicant in finding a solution

m

0
18 that may meet --

a 19 MS. WRIGHT: I mean, I -- that really is up to the

w 20 applicant. I think that a fair amount of energy went into
o.

LL

21 that effort already and, you know, ,I -- you know, I think it

22 would be up to the applicant if she wanted to pursue that.

23 MS. VELASQUEZ: Okay, there's a motion. It has

24 been seconded. All in favor, please raise your right hand.

25 The motion passes unanimously. Thank you.
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MS. WRIGHT: And just for the record, you do have

within the next 30 days the opportunity to appeal the

decision to the Montgomery County Board of Appeals, and if

you call us, we will give you the phone number of the Board

of Appeals so that you can get that process started.

MS. VELASQUEZ: All right, the next item on the.

agenda is III-J, 15019 Hyattstown Mill Road, Clarksburg. Is

there a staff report?

MS. NARU: There's a big one -- and I'm sorry, I

just switched Powerpoint. Okay, the application before you

this evening is a retroactive case, Case -No. 10/59-03A,

located at 15019 Hyattstown Mill Road in Clarksburg. The --

again, a little bit of history on this. The reason why it

is a retroactive Historic Area Work Permit is that the

applicant began construction of a parking lot expansion in

early August without an approved Historic Area Work Permit

application. A stop work order and a violation was issued

to the contractor on site by our inspector, Pete Hrycak on

August 25th, 2003.

Just to give you a brief orientation of the site,

as you're crossing the bridge in Hyattstown, this is the

volunteer fire station. You saw a Historic Area Work

Permit, I believe, in '99 where we added a elevator shaft in

the rear of this building just to familiarize everyone. So

-- and we also approved the CMU -- or; not CMU -- apologize,
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY

8787 Georgia Avenue .

Silver Spring, Maryland 20910

301-563-3400

Case No. 32/05-01A Received September 9, 2001

Public Appearance September 24, 2001

Before the Montgomery County Historic Preservation Commission

Application of Ms. Renata Gould
9904 Colesville Road, Silver Spring

DECISION AND OPINION OF THE COMMISSION

Decision of the Commission: DENY the Applicant's proposal to construct a rear frame addition.

Commission Motion: At the September 24, 2001 meeting of the Historic Preservation
Commission, Commissioner Harbit presented a motion to deny the
proposed Historic Area Work Permit application to construct a rear frame
addition. Commissioner Breslin seconded the motion. Commissioners
Harbit, O'Malley, Lesser and Breslin voted in favor of the motion.
Commissioners Watkins and Velasquez were opposed. Motion passed
4-2.

BACKGROUND:.

The following terms are defined in Section 24A-2 of the Code:

Appurtenances and environmental setting: The entire parcel, as of the date on which the
historic resource is designated on the master plan, and structures thereon, on which is
located a historic resource, unless reduced by the District Council or the commission, and
to which it relates physically and/or visually. Appurtenances and environmental settings

1



shall include, but not be limited to, walkways and driveways (whether paved or not),
vegetation (including trees, gardens, lawns), rocks, pasture, cropland and waterways.

Commission: The historic preservation commission of Montgomery County, Maryland.

Director: The director of the department of permitting services of Montgomery County,
Maryland or his designee.

Exterior features: The architectural style, design and general arrangement of the exterior
of an historic resource, including the color, nature and texture of building materials, and
the type and style of all windows, doors, light fixtures, signs or other similar items found
on or related to the exterior of an historic resource.

Historic District: A group of historic resources which are significant as a cohesive unit
and contribute to the historical, architectural, archeological or cultural values within the
Maryland-Washington Regional District and which has been 

so 

designated in the master
plan for historic preservation.

Historic resource: A district, site, building, structure or object, including its
appurtenances and environmental setting, which is significant in national, state or local
history, architecture, archeology or culture.

On September 9, 2001, Ms. Renata Gould and her architect, Mr. Joe De Rosa, completed an
application for a Historic Area Work Permit (HAWP) to enlarge the size of Ms. Gould's house
by constructing a 6'9" by 16' 11" frame rear addition.

9904 Colesville Road is an Outstanding Resource within the Polychrome Historic District
designated on the Master Plan For Historic Preservation in Montgomery County in 1985.

The adjacent house, 9900 Colesville Road is also an Outstanding Resource within the
Polychrome Historic District.

HISTORY OF RESOURCE:

"The five single-family dwellings that comprise the Polychrome Historic District were built in 1934-
35 by master craftsman John Joseph Earley (1881-1945). These unique houses are outstanding
examples of the Art Deco-style and reflect Earley's artistry and craftsmanship. Conventional wood
frames were clad with prefabricated "mosaic concrete" panels utilizing a process Earley developed
and patented in which the concrete was stripped to expose the brilliantly colored aggregate particles,
creating an effect similar to impressionist or pointillist painting. In addition to their striking, richly
ornamented appearance, these houses represent a relatively rare example of pre-cast concrete panel
construction in single-family housing for the time period. Earley's patented structural system led to
the widespread use of pre-cast architectural concrete as a major exterior cladding material. The
legacy of the Polychrome houses can be seen in thousands of curtain-wall buildings nationwide."
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"Earley was a master builder who culminated nearly three decades of engineering and

architectural experience in the design and construction of the Polychrome houses. From 1906 to
1933, he was responsible for such complex and demanding projects as the stucco work for Meridian
Hill Park (Washington, D.C., 1916); the casting of Lorado Taft's sculpture, "The Fountain of Time"
(Chicago, 1920-22); the rebuilding of the replica ofthe Parthenon at Nashville (1925); and the Baha'i
Temple of Light in Wilmette, Illinois (begun in 1932). Earley created a new medium for the
decorative arts--mosaic concrete--in designing the richly detailed interior of the Shrine of the Sacred
Heart (Washington, D.C. 1923), the same material used in executing the intricate design of the
ceilings for the Department of Justice (1933) and in the Polychrome houses. Earley wrote eloquently
about the social changes taking place in the United States during the 1930s and the demand for what
he termed "social justice." The polychrome houses represent his attempt to solve the "small house
problem" by providing innovative housing at modest cost during the economic and social upheaval
of the Great Depression." — from National Register Nomination

"Polychrome II, built by John Joseph Early, is a one-story six-room house consisting of a
main block running north to south and a attached garage extending beyond the north end of the main
block to the west, and a small wing at the south end of the front elevation facing east. The gable
roof, originally tiled, is now clad in asphalt shingles. There is a loft room over the one-car attached
garage [area which is the subject of this HAWP]. The exterior walls are comprised of two-inch thick
pre-cast mosaic concrete panels, each four to eight feet wide and nine feet high. Metal casement
window and door frames were imbedded in the panels before casting. The panels are attached to a
conventional wood frame and anchored to the foundation by u-shaped hangers and threaded with
reinforcing rods, with reinforced concrete columns cast in place behind each joint. The panels are
rosey-pink in color, the result of exposing surface aggregates of red jasperite. There are three large
metal —frame porthole windows, two in the front overlooking the open porch, and one at the rear on
the west wall of the living room. The circular frames are inset with standard casement windows.
The front porch is partially enclosed by a low concrete mosaic wall with decorative geometric inserts
in deep red. The same decorative wall treatment is used on a small porch and the side door on the
north side of the house."

"A driveway runs along the north property line to the entrance of the attached garage, which
faces north. Large decorative mosaic concrete planters are affixed to the south and west walls of the
wing attached to the south end of the main block." — description from National Register Nomination

EVIDENCE IN THE RECORD:

A written staff recommendation on this case was prepared and sent to the Commission on
September 17, 2001. At the September 24, 2001 HPC meeting, staff person Michele Naru
showed a Powerpoint presentation of photos of the site and presented an oral report on the staff
recommendation. Staff recommended the HAWP application be denied.

The staff s specific concerns were:

The house is an Outstanding Resource within the Polychrome Historic District
and the building is subject to the highest level of design review.



.. j

2. The proposal would require original decorative elements to be lost.
3. The alterations would not be reversible. The original building would never be

able to be restored to its original configuration.
4. The proposal would radically change and destroy the character defining materials

that characterize the building.

The applicant, Ms. Gould, and her architect, Joe DeRosa, attended the meeting.

Ms. Gould testified that the Art Deco Style, the style in which her house was built, was
characterized by metal and masonry materials. She explained that the windows in her house are
metal, including the sills. Ms. Gould explained that the metal windows are not practical because
of moisture and the damage it has caused. She further explained that the existing house was built
with only one bathroom. The addition is to be constructed to house an additional bathroom and
closet space. Ms. Gould indicated that she is going to be having her son, his wife and their two
children living with her temporarily. She feels that one bathroom is not enough for three adults
and two children and felt that the permit should be issued in order to avoid a hardship.

Joe DeRosa, the applicant's architect, testified on the specifics of the project. He explained that
the scope of the project was to find the most economical way of solving the homeowner's
problem, while keeping in mind the historic value of the house. The design that evolved was an
extension of the rear block by mimicking the exact profile of the existing house, the gable and
some of its elements. The addition would be of frame construction and be clad in wood
horizontal siding. The architect and the applicant are also considering the use of stucco instead
of the wood siding. Mr. DeRosa explained that in order to construct the addition the existing
window on the rear elevation will be removed and the window opening would need to be
enlarged by cutting into the top and center concrete panels to form the door, which will open into
the new addition.

The architect, Mr. DeRosa, presented two other options for the addition at the meeting, both
containing a shed roof. The shed roof option was a suggestion made by staff as a potential
solution. The options were not favored by the applicant and were not discussed in detail at the
meeting.

Commissioner Lesser questioned the applicant with regard to the way the concrete panels, which
make up the walls of the structure are attached to each other. The architect indicated that there
are three separate panels that make-up the wall; two, "L" shaped panels that flank a center panel
that houses the window.

Commissioner Lesser questioned the applicant with regard to any structural weaknesses that
would be caused by the removal of a portion of the middle panel. Mr. De Rosa, responded that
to his knowledge, the panels are hung by a reinforcing rod, which is cast into the panel and the
rod is bent into a support. He pointed out that a metal lintel and steel angles would need to be
installed to support the weight of the top panel, which is located in the gable end.

Commissioner Harbit was asked the architect if it was possible to have the center panel detached

rd



from the house and slid into a false pocket in the wall. The Commissioner felt that this would
eliminate the need for cutting though the panel in order to retain it. The architect indicated that
he had not thought of that possibility but noted that the panel would have to be bolted to the
other panels and he would have to have his engineer look at that option from a weight standpoint.

Commissioner Velasquez noted that Commissioner Harbit's suggestion would require the bolts
to be drilled into the center panel and one of the side panels. Mr. DeRosa explained that if the
holes were drilled correctly, and if the panel was to be ever re-installed the holes could be filled
with an epoxy cement material with colorations to match the existing panel.

Commissioner Breslin expressed his concern with Commissioner Harbit's idea, indicating that he
would not like to see a series of bolts up and down the panel attaching it to the side of the house.
Mr. DeRosa indicated that he would have to talk to his engineers about the most economical way
of solving the problem.

Commissioner O'Malley asked the applicant if she has thought of another location for the
bathroom, potentially through the rear door leading to the back porch. The applicant responded
that she has thought of every possible way of solving the.problem. She continued to describe the
back porch as a non-historic addition with an original decorative concrete patio and believes that
an addition in this location would lose this important. architectural detail.

Commissioner Lesser asked the architect if he had ever worked with the kinds of concrete panels
that are at issue in the proposed construction. Mr. DeRosa responded negatively. He indicated
that he was very familiar with concrete panels , because he has designed reinforced panels (called
tilt-up panels) in his past experience. Commissioner Lesser further explained that these panels
were a unique kind of construction developed by this master builder [John Joseph Early]. Ms.
Lesser continued to ask the architect how confident he was in being able to remove this panel
without destroying it. Mr. DeRosa responded that it was a valid concern, but assured the
Commission that with enough money these panels and their elements could be recreated.

Staffpersons, Michele Naru and Gwen Wright suggested that Commissioner O'Malley's idea
could work if you moved the non-historic enclosed porch. The applicant could construct a
bathroom in its place, using the existing decorative concrete patio as the floor and reposition the
patio on the opposite side of the new addition. Ms. Gould was not in favor of this idea.

Commissioner Watkins expressed her concern with cutting into the existing panel. She wanted
to know what would happen with regard to the structural integrity of the panel. Mr. DeRosa
responded indicating that the panel would be reinforced. He also indicated that in order to create
the door opening, the center and the top panel would have to be cut.

Commissioner Lesser asked the architect about the guarantee that the panel, given its age, would
not crumble when the contractor attempts to cut it. Mr. DeRosa responded indicating that early
concrete design was over-designed, based on the amount of steel that was put into the panels.
These panels (which he has not actually analyzed), but based on his knowledge of this type of
panel and based on historical construction, were probably built to last longer than the panels that



are made today.

Commissioner Watkins asked for additional clarification with regard to the gable panel. It was
her understanding that the gable panel would be cut no matter what, unless the applicant added
stairs to the proposal. The applicant indicated that she does not want to add stairs to the
proposal, because it would limit the space in her garage.

Commissioner Harbit stated that the main architectural feature of this house, the fabric, the
reason this is historic, is because of its exterior materials and the. design. He further indicated
that he could not support a proposal that would destroy the exterior of the building by cutting the
panel.. Mr. Harbit felt that the building would not be repairable once the panels are cut and it
would never be able to be restored to its original configuration. He encouraged the applicant to
find a solution that creates more livable space without damaging any of the panels.
Commissioner Breslin concurred and added that an addition could work on this site, but
indicated that it would have to be an addition that was not evasive to what essentially makes this
house historic.

Commissioner Harbit made the motion to deny the Historic Area Work Permit for Case 32/05
01A. Commissioner Breslin seconded the motion. Commissioners Harbit, O'Malley, Lesser and
Breslin voted in favor of the motion. Commissioners Watkins and Velasquez were opposed.
Motion passed 4-2.

CRITERIA FOR APPROVAL AND FINDINGS OF THE COMMISSION:

The criteria which the Commission must evaluate in determining whether to deny a Historic Area
Work Permit application are found in Section 24A-8(a) of the Montgomery County Code, 1984,
as amended.

Section 24A-8(a) provides that:

The Commission shall instruct the director to deny a permit if. It. finds, based on the
evidence and information presented to or before the commission that the alteration for
which the permit is sought would be inappropriate or inconsistent with, or detrimental to
the preservation enhancement or ultimate protection of the historic site, or historic
resource within an historic district, and to the purposes of this chapter.

Section 24A-6(a)2 provides that:

Performing any grading, excavating, construction or substantially modifying, changing or
altering the environmental setting of a historic site or a historic resource located within a
historic district.

In analyzing whether the criteria for issuance of a Historic Area Work Permit have been met, the
Commission also evaluates the evidence in the record in light of the Amendment to the

6



Approved and Adopted Master Plan for Historic Preservation in Montgomery County, Maryland
- Polychrome Historic District.

The Commission also evaluates the evidence in light of generally accepted principles of historic
preservation, including the Secretary of the Interior's. Standards for Rehabilitation and
Guidelines, adopted in the Commission's Executive Regulations on November 4, 1997. In
particular Standards 92, and #9 are applicable in this case:

Standard 2: The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The
removal of distinctive materials or alterations of features, spaces, and
spatial relationships that characterize a property will be avoided.

Standard 9: New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not
destroy historic materials, features, and spatial relationships that
characterize the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the
old and will be compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale
and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and its
environment.

Based on this, the Commission finds that:

The proposed rear addition will destroy the historic materials and features that
define this historic property.

2. The proposal constitutes changes that specifically impair the existing integrity of
the resource, which through its architectural fabric and design, contributes to the
historic character of the Polychrome Historic District as a whole.

CONCLUSION:

The Commission was guided in its decision by Chapter 24A, by the Amendment to the Approved
and Adopted Master Plan for Historic Preservation in Montgomery County, Maryland, -
Polychrome Historic District, and by the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation.

Based on the evidence in the record and the Commission's findings, as required by Section 24A-
8(a) of the Montgomery County Code, 1984, as amended, the Commission must deny the
application of Ms. Renata Gould for a Historic Area Work Permit (HAWP) to construct a rear
frame addition at 9904 Colesville Road in the Polychrome Historic District.
If any party is aggrieved by the decision of the Commission, pursuant to Section 24A-70(h) of
the Montgomery County Code, an appeal may be filed within thirty (30) days with the Board of
Appeals, which will review the Commission's decision de novo. The Board of Appeals has full

7



and exclusive authority to hear and decide all appeals taken from the decision of the
Commission. The Board of Appeals has the authority to affirm, modify, or reverse the order or
decision of the Commission.

Steven Spurlock, Chairperson
Montgomery County
Historic Preservation Commission
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HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION STAFF REPORT

Address: 9904 Colesville Rd, Silver Spring

Resource; Outstanding Resource
. Polychrome Historic District

Review: HAWP

Case Number: 32/05-OIA

Applicant: Renata Gould (Joe DeRosa, Agent)

PROPOSAL: Rear Addition

BACKGROUND:

Meeting Date: 09/24/01

Report Date: 09/17/01

Public Notice: 09/10/01

Tax Credit: None

Staff: Michele Naru

RECOMMEND: Denial

III-C

"The five single-family dwellings that comprise the Polychrome Historic District were built
in 1934-35 by master craftsman John Joseph Earley (1881-1945). These unique houses are
outstanding examples of the Art Deco-style and reflect Earley's artistry and craftsmanship.
Conventional wood frames were clad with prefabricated "mosaic concrete" panels utilizing a process
Earley developed and patented in which the concrete was .stripped to expose the brilliantly colored
aggregate particles, creating an effect similar to impressionist or pointillist painting. In addition to
their striking, richly ornamented appearance, these houses represent a relatively rare example ofpre-
cast concrete panel construction in single-family housing for the time period. Earley's patented
structural system led to the widespread use of pre-cast architectural concrete as a major exterior
cladding material. The legacy of the Polychrome houses can be seen in thousands of curtain-wall
buildings nationwide."

"Earley was a master builder who culminated nearly three decades of engineering and
architectural experience in the design and construction of the Polychrome houses. From 1906 to
1933, he was responsible for such complex and demanding projects as the stucco work for Meridian
Hill Park (Washington, D.C., 1916); the casting of Lorado Taft's sculpture, "The Fountain of Time"
(Chicago, 1920-22); the rebuilding of the replica of the Parthenon at Nashville (1925); and the Baha'i
Temple of Light in Wilmette, Illinois (begun in 1932). Earley created a new medium for the
decorative arts--mosaic concrete--in designing the richly detailed interior of the Shrine of the Sacred
Heart (Washington, D.C. 1923), the same material used in executing the intricate design of the
ceilings for the Department of Justice (1933) and in the Polychrome houses. Earley wrote eloquently
about the social changes taking place in the United States during the 1930s and the demand for what
he termed "social justice." The polychrome houses represent his attempt to solve the "small house
problem" by providing innovative housing at modest cost during the economic and social upheaval
of the Great Depression." — from National Register Nomination
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PROJECT DESCRIPTION

SIGNIFICANCE: Outstanding Resource in the Polychrome Historic District.
STYLE: Art Deco
DATE: 1935

"Polychrome II, built by John Joseph Early, is a one-story six-room house consisting of a
main block running north to south and a attached garage extending beyond the north end of the main

block to the west, and a small wing at the south end of the front elevation facing east. The gable
roof, originally tiled, is now clad in asphalt shingles. There is a loft room over the one-car attached
garage [area which is the subject of this HAWP]. The exterior walls are comprised of two-inch thick

pre-cast mosaic concrete panels, each four to eight feetuide and nine feet high. Metal casement
window and door frames were imbedded in the panels before casting. The panels are attached to a
conventional wood frame and anchored to the foundation by u-shaped hangers and threaded with
reinforcing rods, with reinforced concrete columns cast in place behind each joint. The panels are
rosey-pink in color, the result of exposing surface aggregates of red jasperite. There are three large
metal —frame porthole windows, two in the front overlooking the open porch, and one at the rear on
the west wall of the living room. The circular frames are inset with standard casement windows.
The front porch is partially enclosed by a low concrete mosaic wall with decorative geometric
inserts in deep red. The same decorative wall treatment is used on a small porch and the side door on
the north side of the house."

"A driveway runs along the north property line to the entrance of the attached garage, which
faces north. Large decorative mosaic concrete planters are affixed to the south and west walls of the
wing attached to the south end of the main block.'.' description from National Register Nomination

PROPOSAL:

The applicant is proposing to construct a one-story bathroom addition at the rear of the house.
The addition will be constructed of 2x6 wood frame construction with exterior painted wood siding
and asphalt roof shingles to match existing. The addition will be supported by steel support

columns, which will be placed in reinforced concrete footings. The existing steel casement window
from the rear elevation will be salvaged and reused in the new addition. Connection to the new
bathroom will be though the existing window opening in the existing bedroom exterior wall.

The proposed new addition would not be visible from the front facade. No existing trees will
be removed with the construction of the proposed addition.

STAFF DISCUSSION

This house has been in continuous use as a single-family residence on the original site

since construction and has not undergone any major exterior alterations.

As an outstanding resource within a Historic District, this building is subject to the

highest level of design review.



The proposal being presented requires that original decorative elements including the
cornice detail, the window surrounds, a portion of the rear panel and the rear gable with its
highly decorative: details will be lost. In rehabilitation, historic building materials and character-
defining features are protected and maintained. This resource was designated as part of a historic
district. It as well as the rest of the houses in the district identifies a form and detailing of
architectural features that are important in defining the structure's historic character, and these
features must be retained in order to preserve this character. The character of these buildings is
defined by the form and detailing of their interior and exterior features and structural systems.
The Historic Preservation Commission has jurisdiction on the exterior features only.

It is a concern of staff that this alteration, though to the rear of the resource, will be
detrimental to the existing structure. As explained above, the house was built with concrete
panels. These panels were designed in such a way to support each other. If a weak point is
bored into the panels .... what effect will this alteration have on the structural integrity of the
resource? The architect and his engineer have worked extensively on this method of construction
and have assured staff that an appropriate header and door surround will support the remaining
panel and will not negatively affect the surrounding panels.

The Polychrome Houses were designated as historically significant because of their
distinctive physical characteristics of design, construction and form as well as their association
with the Art Deco movement in this country. Staff has struggled with this project, mainly
because of the nature of the existing building materials and their importance to the integrity and
historic significance of this resource. It should be noted that because of the uniqueness of the
building materials any cut through the building will cause irreparable damage and will be
destroying historic materials that characterize the property which include the cornice, gable
detail, the concrete panel and original window.

Staff is aware that generally we do approve additions to outstanding resources within our
historic districts if they are located at the rear of the historic site, are not visible from the right-of
way and the proposed addition would be constructed in such a manner that "if removed in the
future the essential form and integrity of the historic property would be unimpaired."
Additionally, staff does realize that exterior alterations to a historic building are generally needed
to assure a building's continued use, but emphasizes the fact that such alterations should not
radically change or destroy character defining materials, features or finishes. Staff feels that the
proposal as presented will do irreparable damage to the historic materials and the distinctive
details that characterize the building. These alterations will not be reversible and once complete
the original building will never be able to be restored to its original configuration.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Commission deny the HAWP application as being consistent with

Chapter 24A-8(b)2:

The Commission shall instruct the director to deny a permit if it finds, based on the evidence and information presented
to or before the commission that the alteration for which the permit is sought would be inappropriate or inconsistent
with, or detrimental to the preservation enhancement or ultimate protection of the historic site, or historic resource
within an historic district, and to the purposes of this chapter,
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and with the Secretary of the Interior Guidelines #2, #5, #6, and 49:

The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of distinctive materials or alteration of
features, spaces, and spatial relationships that characterize the property will be avoided.

Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or example of craftsmanship that characterize a property shall

be retained and preserved.

Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of deterioration requires
replacement of .a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual
qualities and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated by documentary
physical, or pictorial evidence.

New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic materials, features, and spatial
relationships that characterize the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and will be compatible
with the historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and
its environment.
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M.N.C.C.P.C.
Historic Preservation Society
1109 Spring Street
Suite 807
Silver Spring, MD

DATE: August 31, 2001

ATTN: Michelle Naru

Project Description:
9904 Colesville Road
Silver Spring, MD 20901
"Polychrome District"

Mrs. Renata Gould, home owner of the historic residence located at 9904 Colesville Road
plans to add a one story bathroom addition (16'-11" wide x 6'-9'/2" deep) connected to
her existing rear bedroom located at the rear of the existing residence.

The proposed one story bathroom addition would be constructed of 2 x 6 wood frame
construction with exterior painted wood siding and asphalt roof shingles to match .
existing. The addition would be supported by steel support columns placed in reinforced
concrete footings. ,The existing steel casement window from the rear elevation would be
salvaged and reused in the new addition. Connection to the new bathroom addition will
be through the existing window opening in the existing bedroom exterior wall. The
proposed new addition would not be visible from the front of the residence. No, existing
trees will .be removed with the constructioni of the proposed addition.

JOSEPH D. DEROSA, A.I.A. 10120 PIERCE DRIVE SILVER SPRING, MD 20901 ."(301) 593-0366 FAX: (301) 593-4079
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APPLICATION FOR
HISTORIC AREA WORK PERMIT

Contact Person: J VE 121;

Daytime Phone No.: (301) &-7g — 52 ( ICCELL)

Tax Account No:: 0116  9 0 93
Name of Property Owner: M ?-S . JZeN ATA M, G-00L.9 Daytime Phone No.: ~2~2) 3 24 — Z q 9 I

Address: 9904 CCasytliz 9P, Sum SMII'lG MIP ;iolo1

Street Number City Steet Zip Code

Contractorr: HQ&Q APT ZZgd5 Phone No.: '~) 5q3 -2146q

Contractor Registration No.:

Agent for Owner: rQS E P+4 P0 925A Daytime Phone No.: •l .301 5q 3 — p 3~~D

LOCATION OF BUILDINGIPREMISE

IN
House Number: 1 q 0Lj Street COL, i$VILAX (L~,

Townicity: SiWEI? 5Yizj?'j& iMP. Nearest Cross Street r-/

Lot: PAEf Or I Block: _ % Subdivision: Si; 6Tl0 J ONE 1✓AI12W.AY

Liber: Folio: Parcel:

PART ONE: TYPE OF PERMIT ACTION AND USE

IA. CHECK ALL APPLICABLE: CHECK ALL APPLICABLE:

Construct ❑ Extend ❑ After/Renovate ❑ A/C ❑ Slab Room Addition ❑ Porch ❑ Deck ❑ Shed

O Move ❑ Install ❑ Wreck/Raze O Solar O Fireplace O Woodbuming Stove ❑ Single Family

❑ Revision O Repair Cl Revocable ❑ Fence/Wall(completeSection4) ' ❑ Other.

1 B. Construction cost estimate: $ 00 aim

1 C. If this is a revision of a previously approved active permit, see Permit # N O

PARTTWO: COMPLETE FOR NEW CONSTRUCTION AND EXTEND/ADDITIONS

2A. Type of sewage disposal:. Ol X WSSC 02 ❑ Septic 03 ❑ Other:

2B. Type of water supply: 01 XWSSC 02 O Well 03 EI Other.

PART THREE: COMPLETE ONLY FOR FENCE/RETAINING WALL

3A. Height feet inches N/A

3B. Indicate whether the fence or retaining wall is to be constructed on one of the following locations:

❑ On party line/property line ❑ Entirely on land of owner ❑ On public right of way/easement

1 hereby certify that I have the authority to make the foregoing application, that the application is correct and that the construction will comply with plans
approved by all agencies listed and I hereby acknowledge and accept this to be a condition for the issuance of this permit.

Signs ure of owner or authorised agent Date

Approved: ForikjJerson, Historic Preservation Commission 
p

Signature: 
/ 

Date:

I a iled: ~" Date Issued:

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR INSTRUCTIONS

Disapproved:

Application/Permit

Edit 6/21/99
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TRANSMITTAL SHEET

TO: MNCCPC DATE September 24, 2001
Historic Preservation Society
1109 Spring Street
Suite 807
Silver Spring, MD

RE: Gould Residence Addition

ATTENTION: Michelle- — PROJECT NO.:

WE ARE ENCLOSING THE FOLLOWING:

NO. COPIES DRAWING NO. DESCRIPTION REMARKS

1 Revised design options - sheets

A-2.1A, A-2.1B, A-2.1C, A-2.1D,EX-1

REMARKS:

Michelle,
Please find enclosed revised design options drawings for your review as requested. Please
feel free to call if you require any additional information or have any questions.

COPY TO: BY: Joe DeRosa

JOSEPH D. DEROSA, A.I.A. 10120 PIERCE DRIVE SILVER SPRING, MD 20901 (301) 593-0366 FAX: (301) 593-4079
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And an additional recommendation is that the two signs, the

two . Canada Dry signs be specifically called out as part of the

historic structure, and therefore protected under our Historic

Preservation Ordinance.

MS. WATKINS: I'll second.

MS. VELASQUEZ: Okay. All in favor, please raise

your right hand? All opposed? The motion passes unanimously.

Thank you.

MS. LESSER: Thank you very much.

MS. VELASQUEZ: Okay. The next thing on the agenda,

the historic area work permits. Have these been duly

advertise?

MS. WRIGHT: These were advertised in the Montgomery

Journal. of September the 10th, 2001.

MS. VELASQUEZ: is there anyone here to speak in

opposition to case B or case E?

MR. HARBIT: Madam Chairperson, .I would like to move

that the staff reports.be approved for HPC case number

37/3-01GG at 7112 Maple Avenue in Takoma Park, and for case

number 35/13-01W at 1 East.Melrose.Street, Chevy Chase.

MS. O'MALLEY: I second.

.MS. VELASQUEZ: Okay. All those in favor, please

raise your right hand. The motion passes unanimously. The

next case is case number 32/5-01A in the polychrome houses

historic district for a home located at 9904 Colesville Road,
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Silver Spring. Do we have a staff report?

MS. NARU: We're working out the logistics. I

apologize. Okay.

The historic area work permit case number 32/5-01A

is the project at 9904 Colesville Road in Silver Spring.

There we go. It is an outstanding resource within our

polychrome historic district.

The art deco house was built in 1935 and is a one-

story six-room house consisting of a main block running north

to south, and an.attached garage extending beyond the north

and of the main block.to the west, and a small wing at the

south end of the front elevation facing east.

The gable roof, originally tiled, is now clad in

asphalt singles. There is a loft room over the one care

detached, or attached garage, which is the area which this

HAWP is viewed, and thus over to the left is -the loft area.

The exterior walls are comprised of two inch thick

pre-cast mosaic concrete panels, each four to eight feet wide

and nine feet high. The metal casement window and door frames

were imbedded in the panels before casting. The panels are

attached to 

conventional wood -frame and anchored to the

foundation by U-shaped .hangers and threaded with reinforcing

rods, with reinforced concrete columns cast in place behind

each joint. The panels are rosy pink in color and result, the

result of exposing the surface of the red jasper aggregate.
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In a separate report, I have given you a more

complete description of the level of integrity of this

resource, and the criteria for which the designation was, or

for which it was designated from the National Register

nomination.

The proposal this evening is to construct a one-

story bathroom addition at the rear of the house. The

addition will be constructed of two-by-six wood frame

construction, with an exterior painted wood siding, and as

asphalt roof shingle to match the existing. The addition will

be support by steel support columns which will be placed in

reinforced concrete footings.

The existing steel casement window from the rear

elevation will be salvaged and reused .in the new addition, and

the connection to the new bathroom will be through the

existing window opening, and the existing bedroom exterior

Iwall.

I do want to make a clarification. This isn't used

as a bedroom presently, but historically it was to be used as

a loft or a den area.

The proposed new addition will e not-visible rom

.the front facade, and no existing trees will be removed.with

the construction of the proposed work.. Let's see.

The polychrome houses were designated as

historically significant because of their physical
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characteristics of design, construction, and form, as well as

their association with the art deco movement in this country.

I have to say that staff has struggled with this project,

mainly because of the nature of the existing building

materials and their importance to the integrity and historic

significance of this resource.

It should be noted that because of the uniqueness of

the building materials, any cut through the building will

cause irreparable damage, and will be destroying the historic

materials that characterize the property, which include the

cornice gable detail and the concrete panel, and the original

window.

Staff is aware that generally we do approve

additions to outstanding resources within our historic

districts, if they are located to the rear of the historic

site, and they are not visible-from the public right-of-way.

We also note that the proposed additions are usually

constructed in a manner that if they are removed in the

future, the essential form and integrity of the resource would

not be, it would be unimpaired.

Additionally, staff does realize that exterior

alterations to a historic building are generally needed to

assure 
a 

building's continued use, and emphasizes the fact

that such alterations should not radically change or destroy

the character defining materials of the site. And we feel
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that the proposal as presented to you this evening will do

this irreparable damage to the materials and the significant

details that characterize this building.

The alterations will.not be reversible, and the

original building will never be able to be restored to its

original configuration. it is for this reason that staff is

recommending denial.

The applicant and her architect are here this

evening, and they have also brought three additional project

options for your consideration. I will be happy. to entertain

any questions you might have, and again, they are here this

evening to present those options. I gave to you at the

worksession a packet.

MS. LESSER: Michele, I have one question. Do any

of the five Homes in the district have any additions?

MS. NARU: I have to look, but from my recollection,

from the information that.I had is no. This does have an

enclosed porch where you can see, that is not original. This

porch here.

22 Iladdition.

23

0
 24

25

MS. LESSER: Yes.

MS. NARU: So I guess you could consider that 
as 

an

MS. LESSER: I was just wondering if any of the

homes had, at any point, actually done the kind of alteration

that is being proposed here, where the concrete would actually
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have to be. cut into?

MS. WRIGHT: I was going to add, no that I'm aware

of. I know that at least one of the homes has had some

problems with the concrete panels, and have had to do some

repairs. But I don't believe the repairs involved actually

removing or cutting into the concrete panel. The owner may

have additional information, because she's lived in this house

quite a while, and has been a very good steward of the house

and knows the other houses quite well, also.

MS. VELASQUEZ: Is the applicant here? Would you

like to step forward? And your architect, too, if he is with

you. Would you state your name for the record, for the

recorder?

MS. GOULD: My name is Renata Gould.

MR. DEROSA: And my name is Joe Derosa.

MS. VELASQUEZ: And you have read staff's

recommendations, and what do you want to tell us about it, and

your new proposals.

MS. GOULD: Actually, let me say, first of all, that

I was surprised by two things, one minor and one major. I

shall start with- the minor.

The fact that instead of siding, wood was suggested.

Now, we all know very well that this house is art deco. It is

not a -- house. It is not a -- house. The worst thing you

could do to art deco is to use wood.
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I am not an expert in art deco. My field was

etruscan art, very far removed from art deco. But, I say, I

was, because I stopped teaching when I went to work for the

government. However, I know enough to tell you that wood is

not the material to add to an art deco house.

Art deco was metal, ideally chrome. Of course, you

don't put chrome outside. But it was definitely metal. If

you come to my house, and also the other ones, because I know

each one very well, you see metal. Every window is metal,

even the window sills are metal, which I tell you is not very

practical because of the moisture. And it does a lot of

damage. But apart from that, everything is metal. Wood

absolutely not recommended. This is my minor thing,

objection.

The major one is, of course, is the permit

exception. .Through the years I have received countless

letters of appraisal.. And then .when.the people came to see my

house, and every time I had an open house for any reason to

want,them.to come and the Deco Society of America-,,I have

always been commended because I am the only one who takes care

of those five houses.

The other ones, actually, except.for the one which

has been recently sold and bought, the other three are going

to seeds. They are eating up by termites, like mine was.

They are used, the next one to me, come around and around, a
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rare jewel, is used as a, I want to be kind, a storehouse. It

is actually inhabited by a man who has a disease. He is a,

what you call, pack rat. That house is absolutely

impossible.

The other two, also, because they are owned by a man

who bought them to invest and couldn't care less what happened

to them. So because I always spent every penny I earned on

that house, I always receive a lot of approvals and

commendations.

Now, ladies and gentlemen, I need your help because

I have only one bathroom. Temporarily, that is true, my

family, meaning my son, his wife, and two children 
will be

living there. Now, try to put yourself in my place. Three

adults and two children and one bathroom.

Now, there is written in this paper that you may

grant the permit if it is a way of avoiding hardship. In

these days and times, one bathroom is hardship, that's what is

considered, because even two bathrooms are not really though

much about nowadays. Tell me if I am right or wrong.

So I need your help and your support. I did a lot

on this house. I have a lot to move out, and even when really

it's not very convenient to live, very pretty to look at, but

inside, it is a different life.

You know, what I do to have a washing machine. I

speak of a washing machine. Who does have a washing machine
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nowadays. I went for years without, because I didn't know

where to put it. Finally, I manage it, at great cost. Don't

ask me what I did. It's in the report. But to.tell 
you that

to live in this house is not the most comfortable thing in the

world, yet I love it.

I have been living this place since I think 1 72 when

I was renting, and I bought it in 1981. And since them, I

haven't stopped spending money on it. Now I need another

bathroom. And the only way to do it, that is the only way, is

what this is reported in, it is a small masterpiece. It is

too. One gable will be covered, not destroyed. Covered. But

there,are other three gable exactly the.same. So I'm not

really eliminating one side, object,of -uniqueness. There are

four. One will be covered.

The other project Mr. Derosa tried, is best to do

it, but what.we he did to the building is a small masterpiece.

The other project, one was suggested by Ms. Naru, a flat roof.

I refuse right now to.have a flat roof on my house. They are

ugly, unsightly. They will ruin the look of the house.

Besides, Mr. Derosa told me, if we have a flat roof, we need

at least four steps from the bedroom to go down to the

bathroom. Now, I don't get it. Thanks so much.

And.besides, even if I wanted to do it, the steps

will be, he tells me, will be carpeted, at least two of them

inside the garage. The garage here has all the equipment of
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the air conditioning, and there is my car. I can't do that.

Now, as Mr. Derosa sits here, there is another

project, too. All right. But this one of the flat roof is

out. So that is all I have to say for now.

MS. VELASQUEZ: Thank you. Mr. Derosa, do you want

to address any of this?

MR. DEROSA: I brought some, I know you have seen

the original submittal, as well as the, if you went to the

worksessions, which I provided to you, to show today, looking

at different option. Because what we originally did, we

looked at it as the most economical, always keeping in mind

that the house has historic value. The idea was to look at it

as contextually as possible, but in the same, not to cause the

owner the hardship, to provide her with a bathroom.

We looked at a smaller addition, which would-be more

of a, as I say, slanted onto the end of the house. So if we

went to the wider addition, which would then, the.idea was to

mimic the exact profile of the existing house, as well as the

gable and some of the elements. That's the suggestion of,

looking at the understanding of staff, based on it being a

historical house, we looked at wood, painted wood.

The other option we have looked at is also being

either at stucco finish, which would be more contextual with

what's there. That's option B, which I have drawings, if I

can present to you, which I think 
you also have. I have a
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larger version.

MS. WATKINS: Michele, do you have any extra copies

of the packets? I just got one sheet.

MS. WRIGHT: Your handout should have five sheets.

MR. DEROSA: Correct. There'is an existing, there is

an existing plan, an existing elevation, showing the existing

house. Let me point out first that the addition is in the

rear of the house and cannot be seen from Route 29. I just

want to remand your concerns. I don't think we would even

look at any other options, that wouldn't be visited, which is

one.of the concerns I've noted from the .Historic Society.

The.existing, the existing, this is the existing

bedroom here, which has a closet and an opening, one window.

An entrance to the house is off the side of the house, which

is here. Here.. When you come in, up the stairway, or into

the dining room; which is here, and then off the stairway into

the bedroom.

The new addition is proposed here, which I will show

you under scheme A. So this does with different schemes.

Each one looks at it from.a different viewpoint, or different

materials.

But scheme A, we add the addition to the rear of the

house, which is not visible from the front of the house up

here. This particular scheme shows wood siding, which would

be painted to match the existing color of the concrete panels.
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We've tried to mimic the existing design here. And even in

one of the further schemes we've looked at, we can actually

.even match the existing profiles, as you see here, of the

existing house in front, which would be done in wood. That is

one of the suggestions was to try and make it as contextual as

possible.

This particular scheme looks at it from, reusing the

existing window was one of the owner's schemes, which would

entail cutting the panel. But in thinking it through further,

this, the second point I would like to make, besides it is in

the rear of the house is that, just this can actually be

reversible. And the way that is done is in two directions.

One is, the center panel, which is here now, could

be taken away; or as I was suggesting from an economic

standpoint, to be cut in half, so that it still can be

reattached, so the window can stay in tact, because it is cast

into the elements of the house, such as shown here.

MS. LESSER: Could you explain, how are these panels

attached to each other? There are three separate panels on

this rear?

MR. DEROSA: Three separate panels.

MS. VELASQUEZ: Use your mike.

MR. DEROSA: I'm sorry. There are three separate

panels. This one here actually turns the corner. It is an

L-shape. And this one does the same. Those would stay in
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tact. This one here, what I am suggesting is, in order to

keep it so it could be restored at a later date is, this panel

would be removed. It was one piece, or cut in half here,

which would then allow this portion of the panel to.stay in

tact with the window, and stored at a later date.

And .this panel here could either remain and be

overbuilt on top of, or it can.be removed. My suggestion

right now from an economic standpoint for the owner is that it

stay in tact and.be built over by continuing the.gable roof

outward. Therefore, we wouldn't have to actually cut this

panel, and at a later date if someone wanted to take the

addition back down, then you could put this panel back in

place, and then it would connect here, and..fill.in the holes.

MS. LESSER: Could you -- I'm sorry. Could you

address whether there would be created, by the-removal of the

middle panel, any structural weaknesses?

MR. DEROSA: To my knowledge, based on the way these

panels are -- these are actually hung. There is a reinforcing

rod that is cast into the panel, unlike what we do today.

This is an earlier version. And then that actual rod is then

bent into a support.

So what we would do is resupport this member here,

steel angles, which would then, just providing a lentil,

whether it would be wood, or in this case, steel, which would

then bridge across here.
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1 Now, in order, the difficulty of this project is, it

2 has to do with the, I'll have to show you the section, because

3 of the garage. It's not just a simple addition. What happens

4 is, under the proposed -- I'm sorry. Under the proposed

5 existing bedroom, there is a garage there now, which has a

6 minimum seven-foot six-inch clearing.

7 One of the options that Michele asked about, which

8 I'll show you in a minute, is talked about not extending the

9 gable but exposing the existing panel up here. I'm sorry for

10 jumping around. I'm trying to give you the total context as

11 far as the history.

12 We looked at, in this particular case, whether it is

13 siding or whether it is the stucco. Leaving the existing

14 panel exposed, which would be this end here, then putting a

is flat roof, which originally as Ms. Gould suggested, Michele

16 had actually suggested maybe having a sloped roof which, from

0

17 a head room standpoint, wouldn't work, and so the.thought was

0 18 to go to a flat roof, which would leave this panel exposed.
a

z
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® 19 And this could even be the wood siding or the stucco material.
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20 The complication with this is that in sections,

21 based on existing garage here, it requires in plan, four steps

22 to comedown, which then would negate the existing closet as

23 well as push into the existing garage, which would reduce the

24 headroom there, making it very unusable, and also affect the

25 bedroom to the point of just furnishing would make it very
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lunusable.

So we, in an attempt to look at all the different

options, we have looked at Ms. Naru's suggestions, but we find

that our recommendation is actually option B, which basically

keeps the gable, keeps the gable. Instead of the wood siding,

we're suggesting stucco here, which would match, color wise

and texture to the existing panels.

This existing panel could either be moved forward,

but from an economic standpoint, we're looking at it from the

standpoint of this would just be recreated either in stucco,

which I've done quite a few of in commercial buildings, or

recreated with wood lattice, to match exactly the same detail.

Therefore we would protect the panel, the visual

panel beyond, continue the gable, which would allow then the

proper head clearance that's necessary to. get from the

existing bedroom into the new bathroom, and again, match the

existing roof and even recreate in the panels here stucco, the

same reveals as far as the connections and the control joints

that are in the existing house here.

MS. LESSER: So that's,. what you've just outlined is

your proposal as it is --

MR. DEROSA: Right.

MS. LESSER: .-- discussed in the report.

MR. DEROSA: It's discussed in the report, which is

a revised proposal from the original one which showed wood.
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After talking with Mrs. Gould and actually meeting with staff,

we determined this would probably be more architecturally --

it is more expensive, which Mrs. Gould is not as happy with,

but we've talked to the builder, and we feel that we can, in

order to accommodate the Historic Society's concerns, as well

as, which in my understanding, the two things were the

structural elements, which I believe by removing the panel

would solve one of those problems.

The second would be to maintain this element here as

much as possible, and hopefully recreate it, so that from the

outside, it is still contextual, and then it can be reversed

by removing the addition if someone; the next owner chooses to

do 
so.

MS. LESSER: So is option C the same proposal simply

with a stucco finish?

MR. DEROSA: This is option B.

.MS. NARU: No.

MS. LESSER: What is option C?

MR. DEROSA: Option C shows it with the stairs,

MS. NARU: Option C and -option D are I guess

withdrawn, because Mrs. Gould does not like those proposals.

Those have the flat roofs.

MS. WRIGHT: Those have the flat roofs.

MS. LESSER: Okay.

MS. NARU: But the proposal in front of you tonight
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is a revised option A, which is what he was just explaining to

you, with the stucco and --

MS. WRIGHT: Could you clarify two things, because I

just in.following the presentation, maybe other Commissioners

got, maybe some of the Commissioners have a question. You

were talking about the panel, the triangular panel in the

gable.

MR. DEROSA: Yes.

MS. WRIGHT: And you talked about two possibilities;

one covering up what's there now and recreating a new panel

that looks like it. In this option B, which is what you are

saying is your preferred option at this point, does that

include literally moving the existing triangular panel, or

recreating it?

MR. DEROSA: It includes recreating it. The option,

I have discussed the option with Mrs. Gould about moving it

with the builder. And.we're talking about, these- then would

be more to a commercial type application of -- the concern

was, we might,actually destroy the panel, I think, in trying

to move it. And it would be safer to keep it there, and

actually cover it and protect it in a certain way, that,

therefore, versus trying to take it off.

Because my first thought was, you can, as I have

done in other buildings, was typical of what they call. tilt up

construction. You would attach different points on the panel,
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and then you would actually lift it out of place. Now, based

on the age of the panel and design, it is probably over -- it.

would probably be okay.

But I've had experiences with other panels, newer

designs, where sometimes by moving them, you can actually

destroy them. So that was our concern was that we though it

would be safer to keep it in place and just recreate the

detail further out.

MS. WRIGHT: And just following on that, you are

talking about the rectangular middle panel being removed. But

you feel confident you can remove that without destroying it?

MR. DEROSA: No, I am saying that one would stay in

place, but this one," this center panel, I'm sorry --

MS. WRIGHT: That's what I mean, the rectangular

center panel?'

MR. DEROSA: That would stay in place in its current

location attached to the house, and we would build in front of

that.

MS. WRIGHT: No, no, not the triangle.

MR. DEROSA: This one. Yes.

MS. WRIGHT: But the rectangular center panel.

MR. DEROSA: That would be removed.

MS. WRIGHT: Would be removed. And you feel that

you could remove that without destroying it. You were saying

removing the triangular panel you were concerned about
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destroying it by removing it, but the rectangular one you

think you can remove without destroying? That's question

one. And question two is, what would you do with it?

MR. DEROSA: Store it for future use of

reattachment.

MR. HARBIT: Where would you store it on site?

MR. DEROSA: In Mrs. Gould's garage.

MR. HARBIT; In one piece?

MR. DEROSA: Well no, unless what I'm suggesting

which is the solution to that. It is too big to store on

site. So the other way to do it would be to cut the panel

here, below the window, enough to keep that piece in tact and

this piece in tact, and then store it that way. And then it

could be reattached in two pieces.

MR. HARBIT: Would it.be possible to keep the

rectangular piece in tact, and basically slide it either to

the front or back into a.false pocket in the wall, so that it

would basically be sitting just a few inches forward and a few

feet to the side where it originally was, so that it truly

could, if the addition comes off, slide back into place?

MR. DEROSA: I hadn't.thought of that. It's

possible that this would have to be bolted to the other

panels, and it would have to be, I think, based on the size,

it just might 
slide 

to this side, just shy of the new opening.

That's possible. I hadn't thought of doing that.
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MR. HARBIT: Well, you would create a new opening

that way --

MR. DEROSA: Yes.

MR. HARBIT: -- as wide as you wanted, I guess, up

to the width of either of the side dimensions, the panels on

the two sides.

MR. DEROSA: I understand what you are saying.

Basically, what you are saying is, take this panel. Slide it

to one side or the other.

MR. HARBIT: Either direction.

MR. DEROSA: Leave the opening there and.keep panel

attached. No, I think that would work. It's just the

question of reattaching that question to the older panels.

Then the question would be, I would have to look.at it, have

my engineer look at it from a weight standpoint.

MR. BRESLIN: Yes, well, you would have to have some

pretty significant footings to do that.

MS. VELASQUEZ: If you bolted it to the other

panels, would it destroy, it would then be piercing the other

panels, is that right?

MR. DEROSA: You,w-ould touch the other panels. But

I don't believe you would destroy them. I think they can be,

if they are drilled correctly, and then once you've moved the

other panel back, then they can be re, how would you say it,

the holes can be filled with concrete or cement. Actually,
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the epoxy cement material, with the.colorations to match the

existing panel.

MS. LESSER: I'm sorry. Go ahead.

MR. BRESLIN: I would assume that if you did that,

basically, you could, since there is one penetration in that

panel already, i.e., the window, you could somehow brace it to

the side of the house at that point, so there would be minimal

penetration. There would be no new holes, I guess, in the

panel that's moving. And maybe one hole in a side panel that

is currently not moving. I would strongly discourage, you

know, a series of bolts down the side of the house.

MR. DEROSA: Obviously, we'll try to keep the

integrity of the panel.

MR. BRESLIN: Right.

MR. DEROSA: And I would have,to talk to my

engineers as to what's the most economical way of doing it,

and the most, to protect.the panel but also keep it in tact.

What probably might want to happen is actually to construct a

support below the panel in.such a way that it would actually

take the weight of the panel and actually the connections

would be more of hinges. I'm sure that can be done. It's

just a question of figuring out the details of the work.

MR. HARBIT: Now, explain to me again how these

panels.are connected to each other, that you think you can do

this without damaging?
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MR. DEROSA: Without having taken, actually taken

one apart, it is going to have to be taken down carefully.

But my understanding is, new precast panels, as you are

probably aware, there are a series of anvils that are cast

into the panel, and then those are welded to other steel

members. These, in particular case are, there is an actual

steel rod that is cast into the panel, and then it actually

comes out and is bent or connected to the wall behind it. So

that rod would then be dislodged in a way that would not hurt

the panel, but the wall behind it would probably have to come

down for that whole opening, and then it would be moved.

But again, this, all of these issues have to be

dealt with, probably, with a crane, in order to, which is an

added cost to the owner, which might actually put it out of

her range as far as being able to actually do the

construction, based 
on her limited budget. But the idea is to

take all these things into consideration to protect the actual

building so it can be reinstalled at a later date.

MS. O'MALLEY: Can I ask whether you have thought of

another location for the bathroom? You already have one door

coming out the back onto that porch. Is there 
a 

way to make a

small hallway with the bathroom on that porch, and then extend

your porch?

MS. GOULD: Through the years, I have thought every

possible way of doing it.
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MS. O'MALLEY: And is that not an option?

MS. GOULD: I was even ready to sacrifice a closet,

though the closets, again, are not a major feature in this

house. I was going to, .I was willing to sacrifice the hall

closet, when you enter in the counter right -- where is it.

Well, anyway, the front, the front door of the house, as you

enter... On your right, if you .look closely, usually you have

the closet entering the house .just to hang your coat. I was

ready to sacrifice that. This was my last, almost a desperate

act, because I need every inches in that house. But I was

ready to do it, but then I realized that will not be possible,

what is euphemistically called :powder room, just, you know,

two pieces. It's impossible.

It can be closet. You open the door like this, the

closet is rectangular this way. So the length would be there,

but the width, there is no room for a sink.

MS. WRIGHT: I think what the Commissioner was

saying is, in the L of the house where you have ,a porch now,

you could even make that a.bigger porch, because the porch

isn't an original feature.

MS. GOULD: Oh, no, I'm sorry, the porch, as you see

the screen, but the floor is original. It was a patio.

MS. WRIGHT: Okay.

MS. GOULD: So the floor is original, belongs to the

house, with all the steps which go down.



tsh

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14°

15

16

17
s

a

18

19

0

20
0

21

22

23

24

25

41

MS. WRIGHT: But I guess, you know, you could keep

that floor as part of the floor. Have you thought about

making some sort of an addition in that area that even

extended out farther so that you had a bathroom and maybe, you

know, a laundry room? I mean, you could add more space.

MS. GOULD: Where do I go? Inside the yard? I

don't know where I would put it. Because then, really, to

change the appearance of the house, because the deck floor is

very characteristic. Now, this case, it is true, I cover the

original panel, but I try to imitate it. And then, because of

the it is just visible. But if I cover that, no, you

should see, cuts down very veraciously this floor, and then

there is a sort of walk, and then 
a 

few steps, and the little

walk again. It is all part of the architectural design. That

would be a shame to ruin, to lose it.

MS. LESSER: Mr. Derosa, have you ever worked with

the kinds of concrete panels that are at issue in this

construction?

MR. DEROSA: This historical panel, no, but concrete

panels, I am very familiar with, because I've designed

reinforced panels, as I call tilt up panels in my past

experience.

MS. LESSER: But as I understand it, this is a

unique kind of construction that was developed by this master

builder, and I just wonder if you endeavored to remove a panel
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without destroying it, how confident you really are that you

will be successful, if you have never gone into a house like

that and really seen the connections and so forth. That's my

concern.

MR. DEROSA: It's a valid concern, and we're to try

to accommodate the owner as well as maintain the integrity of

the house. All elements can be recreated if need be at a

future date. I mean, for example, these panels can be

recreated if enough money is available. As a matter of fact,

one of the things we talked about was if there was grant money

available. But our understanding is that for an addition it

is. not available, but for if you wanted to keep up the

existing house, it is available.

So theoretically, if there was monies, available, the

owner would, honestly, would recreate what's exactly there,

which would be, the problem is, it is not economical for her

to do that.

MS. NARU: Just to clarify what the staff was

suggesting, is to extend this area out here, either make it as

an angle, and you could have a bathroom area in here, and

maybe some closet rooms or whatever.

MS. WRIGHT: And you could keep the floor of the

porch exactly --

MS. NARU: Keep the original floor.

MS. WRIGHT: -- as it is. And you could get several
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big closets and a bathroom. And you could do an outside

treatment that, again --

MS. NARU: And you could have a patio or something

out here.

MS. WRIGHT: -- maybe that has a similar look to

,what the porch is that you have now, except in glass instead

of in screen, or something like that.

MS. GOULD: Well, I don't really follow you, ladies,

because if I -- the porch stays as it is. But it will not be

a porch anymore?

MS. NARU: It would actually be removed, the porch

itself .

MS..WRIGHT: The floor of the porch would stay, like

a patio floor.

MS. GOULD: And you want to do what with my porch?

MS. NARU: You could move it to another location, if

you wanted to. You could shift it over here, and use it in

this area, like this. It's just an idea, so you can use an

existing opening. Shift it to this location and use this

space here for a bathroom, and then you would go into the

existing porch here.

MS. GOULD: Well, something that I should talk of,

it is not appearing to me, but I'm very much -- because of
J

going to the tree, you know, and I like my tree. I don't want

to touch my big tree..
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MS. NARU: Well, you wouldn't touch that tree there.

MS. GOULD: Not this one. The other one on the

other side, if I come out.

MS. NARU: Right. This would come, according to

what was drawn here, it would project from this scene here,

outward.

MS. GOULD: Over the windows?

MS. NARU: It would come this way.

MS. GOULD: But all that would be changing the

architectural structure of the house.

MS. NARU: What it would do, what staff is trying to

achieve is that basically you are putting another room on, but

you are not disturbing any of the panels.

MS. GOULD: Well,.if I, I'm not really, if there is

nothing else I can do but to tell you the (indiscernible)

because you are --

MS. NARU: We are just trying to find some

solutions.

MS. GOULD: Yes, I understand, but I'll tell you

something, if you are going to be this conservative for the

.future owner and the.future owners, to tell you.the truth, I'm

more concerned with the present owner, which is myself. But

if the future owner would be so stupid to destroy a bathroom

in order to have the gable again, it will be his problem. I

will not be alive to see it.
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The only thing which really gets.me is that we are

getting all sorts of trouble in removing a panel which is not

a small business, and all I need to have 
an 

opening to build

the door is 20 inches below the window. That is all I need.

Because if you enter that bedroom, and you walk to the window,

which will hopefully become a door, this is the window. From

the window to the floor 20 inches exactly. And because of

these 20 inches, we have to go all through this trouble.

MS. WRIGHT: That is the other option, is to cut a

rectangle below the existing window of the panel, and take 20

inches of the panel out.

MS. GOULD: That is all --

MS. WATKINS: Do you have any opinion what would

happen if you did that? If you left the panel the way it 
is,

removed the window, relocate the window, and you cut that 20

inches, what.-- I assume there is a lentil that runs above the

existing window that would carry that, and by cutting that

there are probably -- I don't know what that would do to the

structural integrity of the panel. Do you have any --

MR. DEROSA: The panel would be reinforced. In

either case, you would cut the panel. 
You would have to cut

the panel at the top, also. I mean, Mrs. Gould is correct,

you would have .to cut the panel below, but you would also --

MS. NARU: Explain where the window comes in the

loft area. I- think'that will help a lot, in terms of where
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the floor is.

MR. DEROSA: The.current panel right now is shown,

it should be on your drawing, is approximately here at the

head of the window. The panel itself, the triangle panel

would have to be cut in order to make the opening 
to come

through correctly. And then the bottom of the panel could

clearly be cut down. This_ would be just to the floor line

here. So we would cut the panel here, and we.would cut it up

into the --

MS. LESSER.: So you would be cutting into two

panels - -

MR. DEROSA: Correct.

MS. LESSER: -- 
in order to build the doorway that

you need to build for the addition.

MR. DEROSA: Unless we went down,: for the other

designs which basically step down, but then you lose,

basically, the bedroom, and you lose the garage,at the same

time..

MS. LESSER: But what's the guarantee the panel,

particularly given the age, doesn't just crumble, both panels,

or one or the other, just .doesn't crumble.when you try to cut

it?,

MR. DEROSA: I would say, based on the fact that

these, if you look at early concrete design, they were over-

designed, immensely, based on the amount of steel that were
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put into them, especially probably these, which I haven't

actually analyzed all the panels. But I would venture, based

on my knowledge of this type of panel, based on historical

construction, they are probably built to last probably longer

than the panel we make today.

MS. GOULD: You should talk to all the people who

work on that house, especially those which, who installed the

air conditioning. When they have to, they told me very

frankly, had we known what we were going to meet, we would

have raised the price, because they told me, this is not a

house I bought. This is Fort Knox. That's what they said.

They could not do anything, just couldn't break it up.

And also when the garage door was put, was changed,

it was crumbling down, that poor man was quoted by his boss,

because he said, where did you go? You spent too much time.

And he said, I spent a lot of time because I could not remove

the door because I had to work on it. But not a little piece

crumbled. He just had difficulty removing the old door_

That's it. Everything was just as it was.

MR. HARBIT: Madam Chair, I worry that this is

turning into a preliminary consultation as we try and

re-engineer this possible, this proposal. So I would

encourage us to, I guess, focus on the HAWP.

MS. VELASQUEZ: Okay.

MR. HARBIT: And it may be useful to just kind of go
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down the line of where we all are coming from.

MS. VELASQUEZ: Well, since this is a HAWP, let's

clarify what we are talking about here. The presentation and

the request for historic area work permit is based on.their

drawing B.

MS. WRIGHT: Correct.

MS. VELASQUEZ: Could we have comments to that, that

have not already been made, and if no one has any particular

concerns or comments, could we have a motion?

MS. WATKINS: I have a comment and question. My

question is .more of a clarification. The gable panel will be

cut no matter what, unless we add stairs to the proposal.

MR. DEROSA: Correct.

MS. WATKINS: And how much will be cut out of it?

M. R. DEROSA: Approximately three feet wide by 11

inches.

MS. WATKINS: So it will probably hit the medallion

detail?

MR. DEROSA: No. It wouldn't hit the medallion

detail. It would just be from the top of the window you see

here, to just below, right there, where the two triangles come

out. So the medallion would stay in tact.

MS. WATKINS: Okay, so there is no compromise

between the four steps down and the existing, the no step?

MR. DEROSA: It'.s possible to go down two steps, and
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1 then not cut the panel. But either way, you affect the

2 overall plan of the bedroom. I mean, there's probably, there

3 might be a compromise there. I would have to look into that.

4 But either way, you have to provide a landing, because you

5 can't step down before you hit your head, so to speak.

6 MS. WATKINS: Right.

7 MR. DEROSA: I see where you are going. Don't cut

8 that panel.

9 MS. WATKINS: Right. I think maybe a compromise

10 where perhaps we just have to cut below the window and leave

11 the existing panel, store the cut panel somewhere off site or

12 somewhere on site, excuse me, on site, so that it can be added

13 back in at a later date. And 'then the gable would still be,.

14 and then you wouldn't have to worry about moving the panel

15 from one place, a huge panel, and storing it. I think I could

P

16 -- well, we are not saying that.

17 MR. HARBIT: My biggest concern is that the main

o 18 architectural feature of this house, the fabric, the reason

® 19 this is historic is because of its exterior materials and the
0
w

Q 20 design. And I don't think I could support a proposal that
0
LL

21 would destroy irreparable the exterior of the building by

22 cutting the panel.. It's just, it's not going to be repairable

23 once you cut into that concrete panel and try to store pieces

24 of it on site. I think we would be fooling ourselves to think

25 it would ever be restored to look anything like it does now.
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1 So I would encourage the -- well, so I would

2 encourage the applicant to find a solution that creates more

3. livable space within the L, what is now the back yard, without

4 damaging any of the panels.

5 MR. BRESLIN: I would agree with that. As an owner

6 of a one and a half bathroom house, I appreciate the need to

7 add onto the house. And I don't think an addition would be

8 objectionable to the house, if it was not visible from the

9 street, which this isn't; but in addition, was reversible and

10 wasn't so invasive of the historic fabric. So I don't want

11 you to go away from this thinking that an addition couldn't

12 work. I think an addition could work, but I think it would

13 have to be isn'tan addition that evasive to what essentially

14 makes this house historic.

15 So I think if you were..to work with the L or do

16 something else where the addition wouldn't have to match

17 particularly. The addition could be fairly large, but it
a

T

s

18 wouldn't be invasive to the structure itself.
z

w
a

® 19 MS. VELASQUEZ: Is there a motion?
0
wQ 20 MS. LESSER: I agree.
0
LL

21 MS. VELASQUEZ: Is there a motion?

22 MR. HARBIT: Madam Chairman, I move that we deny the

23 historic area work permit on case number 32/5-01A at 9904

24 Colesville Road.

25 MS. LESSER: I would"add that the record should be
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made clear that the Commission's view is not that an addition,

per se, is inappropriate, but an addition that does not tamper

or _destroy the historic fabric of the house is what we object

to. We invite, we invite the applicant to come in with a

different proposal.

MS. VELASQUEZ: Would you amend it?

MR. HARBIT: I think that's.appropriate for the

record, but I'm not sure it is appropriate.for my particular

motion.

MS. VELASQUEZ.: Is there a second to the existing

motion?

MR. BRESLIN: I second it.

MS. VELASQUEZ: All right. All in favor, just raise

your right hand? All opposed. Commissioners Watkins and

Velasquez were opposed. Okay. And then we are going to go on

to preliminary consultations, but first we are going to take a

six-minute break.

(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.)

MS..VELASQUEZ: The next item is a preliminary

consultation for Four Streams Golf Associates. Is there a

staff report?

MS.` KAPSCH: Yes, this is a preliminary, they

actually submitted a historic area work permit, but it turns

out it is for construction of a two and a half story lodge

with an adjacent one and a half story annex that would be part
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HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION STAFF REPORT

Address: 9904 Colesville Rd, Silver Spring

Resource: Outstanding Resource
Polychrome Historic District

Review: HAWP

Case Number: 32/05-01A

Applicant: Renata Gould (Joe DeRosa, Agent)

PROPOSAL: Rear Addition

BACKGROUND:

Meeting Date: 09/24/01

Report Date: 09/17/01

Public Notice: 09/10/01

Tax Credit: None

Staff: Michele Naru

RECOMMEND: Denial

III-C

"The five single-family dwellings that comprise the Polychrome Historic District were built
in 1934-35 by master craftsman John Joseph Earley (1881-1945). These unique houses are
outstanding examples of the Art Deco-style and reflect Earley's artistry and craftsmanship.
Conventional wood frames were clad with prefabricated "mosaic concrete" panels utilizing a process
Earley developed and patented in which the concrete was stripped to -expose -the brilliantly_colored 
aggregate particles, creating an effect similar to impressionist or pointillist painting. In addition to
their striking, richly ornamented appearance, these houses represent a relatively rare example of pre-
cast concrete panel construction in single-family housing for the time period. Earley's patented
structural system led to the widespread use of pre-cast architectural concrete as a major exterior
cladding material. The legacy of the Polychrome houses can be seen in thousands of curtain-wall
buildings nationwide."

"Earley was a master builder who culminated nearly three decades of engineering and
architectural experience in the design and construction of the Polychrome houses. From 1906 to
1933, he was responsible for such complex and demanding projects as the stucco work for Meridian
Hill Park (Washington, D.C.. 1916); the casting of Lorado Taft's sculpture, "The Fountain of Time"
(Chicago, 1920-22); the rebuilding of the replica ofthe Parthenon at Nashville (1925); and the Baha'i
Temple of Light in Wilmette, Illinois (begun in 1932). Earley created a new medium for the
decorative arts--mosaic concrete--in designing the richly detailed interior of the Shrine of the Sacred
Heart (Washington, D.C. 1923), the same material used in executing the intricate design of the
ceilings for the Department of Justice (1933) and in the Polychrome houses. Earley wrote eloquently
about the social changes taking place in the United States during the 19')Os and the demand for what
he termed "social justice." The polychrome houses represent his attempt to solve the "small house
problem" by providing innovative housing at modest cost during the economic and social upheaval
of the Great Depression." — from National Register Nomination

to



PROJECT DESCRIPTION

SIGNIFICANCE
STYLE:
DATE:

Outstanding Resource in the Polychrome Historic District.
Art Deco y
1935

"Polychrome II, built by John Joseph Early, is a one-story six-room house consisting of a
main block running north to south and a attached garage extending beyond the north end of the main
block to the west, and a small wing at the south end of the front elevation facing east. The gable
roof; originally tiled, is now clad in asphalt shingles. There is a loft room over the one-car attached
garage [area which is the subject of this HAWP]. The exterior walls are comprised of two-inch thick
pre-cast mosaic concrete panels, each four to eight feet wide and nine feet high. Metal casement
window and door frames were imbedded in the panels before casting. The panels are attached to a
conventional wood frame and anchored to the foundation by u-shaped hangers and threaded with
reinforcing rods, with reinforced concrete columns cast in place behind each joint.. The panels are
rosey-pink in color, the result of exposing surface aggregates of red j asperite. There are three large
metal —frame porthole windows, two in the front overlooking the open porch, and one at the rear on
the west wall of the living room. The circular frames are inset with standard casement windows.
The front porch is partially enclosed by a low concrete mosaic wall with decorative geometric
inserts in deep red. The same decorative wall treatment is used on a small porch and the side door on
the north side of the house."

"A driveway runs along the north property line to the entrance of the attached garage, which
faces north. Large decorative mosaic concrete planters are affixed to the south and west walls of the
wing attached to the south end of the main block." — description from National Register Nomination

PROPOSAL:

The applicant is proposing to construct a one-story bathroom addition at the rear of the house.
The addition will be constructed of 2x6 wood frame construction with exterior painted wood siding
and asphalt roof shingles to match existing. The addition will be supported by steel support
columns, which will be placed in reinforced concrete footings. The existing steel casement window
from the rear elevation will be salvaged and reused in the new addition. Connection to the new
bathroom will be though the existing window opening in the existing bedroom exterior wall.

The proposed new addition would not be visible from the front fayade. No existing trees will
be removed with the construction of the proposed addition.

STAFF DISCUSSION

This house has been in continuous use as a single-family residence on the original site
since construction and has not undergone any major exterior alterations.

As an outstanding resource within a Historic District, this building is subject to the
highest level of design review.

Pa



The proposal being presented requires that original decorative elements including the
cornice detail, the window surrounds, a portion of the rear panel and the reargable with its
highly decorative details will be lost. In rehabilitation, historic building materials and character-
defining features are protected and maintained. This resource was designated as part of a historic
district. It as well as the rest of the houses in the district identifies a form and detailing of
architectural features that are important in defining the structure's historic character, and these
features must be retained in order to preserve this character. The character of these buildings is
defined by the form and detailing of their interior and exterior features and structural systems.
The Historic Preservation Commission has jurisdiction on the exterior features only.

It is a concern.of staff that this alteration, though to the rear of the resource, will be
detrimental to the existing structure. As explained above, the house was built with concrete
panels. These panels were designed in such a way to support each other. If a weak point is
bored into the panels .... what effect will this alteration have on the structural integrity of the
resource? The architect and his engineer have worked extensively on this method of construction
and have assured staff that an appropriate header and door surround will support the remaining
panel and will not negatively affect the surrounding panels.

The Polychrome Houses were designated as historically significant because of their
distinctive physical characteristics of design, construction and form as well as their association
with the Art Deco movement in this country. Staff has struggled with this project, mainly
because of the nature of the existing building materials and their importance to the integrity and
historic significance of this resource. It should be noted that because of the uniqueness of the
building materials any cut through the building will cause irreparable damage and will be
destroying historic materials that characterize the property which include the cornice, gable
detail, the concrete panel and original window.

Staff is aware that generally we do approve additions to outstanding resources within our
historic districts if they are located at the rear of the historic site, are not visible from the right-of
way and the proposed addition would be constructed in such a manner that ̀'if removed in the
future the essential form and integrity of the historic property would be unimpaired."
Additionally, staff does realize that exterior alterations to a historic building are generally needed
to assure a building's continued use, but emphasizes the fact that such alterations should not
radically change or destroy character defining materials, features or finishes. Staff feels that the
proposal as presented will do irreparable damage to the historic materials and the distinctive
details that characterize the building. The alterations will not be reversible and once complete
the original building will never be able to be restored to its original configuration.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Commission deny the HAWP application as being consistent with

Chapter 24A-8(b)2:

The Commission shall instruct the director to deny a permit if it finds, based on the evidence and information presented
to or before the commission that the alteration for which the permit is sought would be inappropriate or inconsistent
with, or detrimental to the preservation enhancement or ultimate protection of the historic site, or historic resource
within an historic district, and to the purposes of this chapter,
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and with the Secretary of the Interior Guidelines #2, 45, #6, and #9:

The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of distinctive materials or alteration of
features, spaces, and spatial relationships that characterize the property will be avoided.

Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or example of craftsmanship that characterize a property shall

be retained and preserved.

Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of deterioration requires

replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual

qualities and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated by documentary

physical, or pictorial evidence.

New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic materials, features, and spatial
relationships that characterize the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and will be compatible
with the historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and
its environment.

nL~
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M.N.C.C.P.C.
Historic Preservation Society
1109 Spring Street
Suite 807
Silver Spring, MD

DATE: August 31, 2001

ATTN: Michelle Naru

Project Description:
9904 Colesville Road
Silver Spring, MD 20901
"Polychrome District"

Mrs. Renata Gould, home owner of the historic residence located at 9904 Colesville Road
plans to add a one story bathroom addition (16'-11" wide x 6'-9'/z" deep) connected to
her existing rear bedroom located at the rear of the existing residence.

The proposed one story bathroom addition would be constructed of 2 x 6 wood frame
construction with exterior painted wood siding and asphalt roof shingles to match
existing. The addition would be supported by steel support columns placed in reinforced
concrete footings. The existing steel casement window from the rear elevation would be
salvaged and reused in the new addition. Connection to the new bathroom addition will
be through the existing window opening in the existing bedroom exterior wall. The
proposed new addition would not be visible from the front of the residence. No existing
trees will be removed with the construction of the proposed addition.

JOSEPH D. DEROS& A.I.A. 10120 PIERCE DRIVE SILVER SPRING, MD 20901 y(301) 593-0366 FAX: (301) 

593-4079@
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Resolution No: 13-1096

Introduced: November 4, 1997
Adopted: November 4, 1997

COUNTY COUNCIL
FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND

By: County Council

Subject: Approval of Historic Preservation Commission Regulation-27-97, Historic Preservation
Commission: Rules Guidelines, and Procedures

Background

1. On October 14, 1997, the County Council received Historic Preservation Commission Regulation
No. 27-97, Historic Preservation Commission: Rules, Guidelines, and Procedures under Method (2)
of Code § 2A-1 5.

2. The Regulation was advertised in the :Montgomery Counry Register in the month of June, 1997.

3. Under Method (2), the County Council by resolution may approve or disapprove, in whole or in part,
the proposed regulation.

4. On October 27, 1997, the Planning, Housing, and Economic Development Committee reviewed
Historic Preservation Commission Regulation 27-97 and recommended that the Historic Preservation
Commission Regulation be submitted for consideration by the full Council.

5. The County Council reviewed Historic Preservation Commission Regulation 27-97, on November 4,
1997.

Action

The County Council for Montgomery County, Maryland, approves the following resolution:

Historic Preservation Commission Regulation 27-97, Historic Preservation Commission: Rules,
Guidelines, and Procedures is approved.

This is a correct copy of Council action.

MW/A. Edgar, CM
Se etary of the Council



Attachment to Resolution No. 13-1096

MONTGOMERY COUNTY
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

REGULATION
8787 Georgia Avenue • Silver Spring, Maryland 20910

Subject HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION: RULES, Number

GUIDELINES, AND PROCEDURES 27-97

Effective Date
Historic Preservation Commission November 4. 1997

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION
RULES, GUIDELINES, AND PROCEDURES

Issued by: Montgomery County Historic Preservation Commission
Regulation No. 27-97

Authority Code Section: 24A-4(h)
Supersedes: 27-97T

Council Review: Method (2) Under Code Section 2A-15
Register Vol. 14, Issue No. 6

Effective Date: November 4, 1997

SUMMARY: This regulation establishes rules, guidelines, and procedures that are
necessary for the proper transaction of the business of the Historic Preservation

Commission.

GENERAL PROCEDURES FOR MEETINGS

(a) All meetings of the Commission shall be public. However, the Commission

may, at its discretion, hold closed sessions subject to the State Government

Article, Annotated Code of Maryland Section 10-501 et.seq.

(b) Regular meetings generally shall be held on the second and fourth Wednesday

of each month at 7:30 p.m. at a site to be determined and to be announced in a

newspaper of general circulation in the county approximately two (2) weeks

prior to the meeting.

Revised 7/97
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

REGULATION
8787 Georgia Avenue • Silver Spring, Maryland 20910

Subject HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION: RULES, Number

GUIDELINES, AND PROCEDURES 27-97

Effective Date
Historic Preservation Commission November 4, 1997

(c) Special and/or emergency meetings may be called by the Chairman upon the

appropriate notification of each Commissioner.

(d) A quorum shall consist of five (5) members of the Commission. No decision

will be made in the absence of a quorum.

(e) The agenda for each meeting shall be established under the Chairman's

direction and mailed to each Commissioner approximately two (2) weeks prior

to the meeting date.

(f) Questions put to a vote shall be decided by a majority. A tie vote shall result in

the defeat of the motion. Proxy voting will not be allowed.

(g) It shall be the duty of the Commission's staff to keep a true and accurate

record of all proceedings at all meetings and public appearances and/or

hearings. This may include summary minutes or verbatim transcripts of all

meetings. All meeting records shall be distributed to Commission members

for their approval and shall be maintained by the staff.

(h) In all matters not provided for in these regulations, the latest published edition

of Roberts Rules of Order governs. Failure to use Roberts Rules of Order

shall not invalidate any procedure or action taken by the Commission, that is

otherwise valid.

Revised 7197
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

REGULATION
8787 Georgia Avenue • Silver Spring, Maryland 20910

Subject HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION: RULES, Number

GUIDELINES, AND PROCEDURES 27-97

Effective Date
Historic Preservation Commission November 4, 1997

HISTORIC AREA WORK PERMITS

Section 1.0 lose

This regulation is established for the proper transaction of the business of the

Montgomery County Historic Preservation Commission► (Commission), pursuant to

Section 24A-4(h) of the Montgomery County Code (1994), as amended. As required

by Section 24A-7(c), upon receipt of a completed application for the issuance of an

Historic Area Work Permit, the Commission must schedule a public appearance at a

Commission meeting, at which time it will consider the application. This regulation

shall govern the receipt, processing, hearing, and final disposition of all applications

for the issuance of an Historic Area Work Permit.

Section 1.1 Definition

For the purposes of this regulation, the following words and phrases have the meaning

assigned to them below, except where otherwise indicated in this regulation.

(a) Local Advisory Panel (LAP) - A group of individuals appointed by the

Commission to assist and advise the Commission in the performance of its

functions.

(b) Applicant - Any person that files an application for the issuance of an historic

area work permit. The applicant must be the owner, contract purchaser, or

authorized agent of the subject historic site or historic resource within an

historic district.

(c) Application - A request for the issuance of an historic area work permit for

Revised 7/97
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HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION
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GUIDELINES, AND PROCEDURES 27-97

Effective Date
Historic Preservation Commission November 4, 1997

work as described in Sections 24A-6(a)(1)-(3). The application shall be in

such form and contain such information as may be required to provide

information as shall be necessary for the Commission to evaluate and act upon

such application in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 24A.

(d) paM - Any person identifying himself to the Commission in the official record

as having an interest in the outcome of an application being considered.

(e) Person - Any individual, business entity, whether incorporated or not,

association, or any other group of individuals, however organized.

(f) Ordinary Maintenance - Work on an historic site or an historic resource within

a historic district which does not alter in any way the exterior features of the

subject property, including the architectural style, design, and general

.arrangement of the exterior, as well as the nature, texture, details, and

dimensions of building materials, windows, doors, siding, etc. This

definition applies, whenever appropriate, to the appurtenances and

environmental setting of an historic site or resource, as well as to the building,

structure, or object itself.

Section 1.2 Submission of Application

(a) Film: - Applications must be filed with the director as required by Section

24A-7(a), with the exceptions noted in 24A-6(b) and with the definition of

Ordinary Maintenance found in Section 1.1 (f) above.

(b) Scheduling - In order to be considered at a regularly scheduled public

Revised 7/97
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

- REGULATION
8787 Georgia Avenue • Silver Spring, Maryland 20910

Subject HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION: RULES, Number

GUIDELINES, AND PROCEDURES 27-97

Effective Date
Historic Preservation Commission November 4, 1997

appearance, applications shall be filed with the director three (3) weeks prior

to the meeting date for which it is to be scheduled.

(c) C01012letelless - Upon receipt by the director, each application will be

evaluated for completeness. Those judged to be complete, based upon the

submission requirements specified by the Commission and listed on the

application, will be promptly forwarded to the Commission. Any application

deemed incomplete by the director or by the Commission's staff will not be

accepted for filing. Incomplete applications shall be promptly returned to the

applicant, either by return mail or by hand if the applicant is present at the

time of the determination.

(d) application Date - Complete applications shall be deemed filed upon

acceptance by the director.

Section 1.3 Notice of Public Appearance

(a) publication - Before an application may be considered at a public appearance,

the Commission must publish notice of the public appearance approximately-

fourteen

pproximately

fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date of the public appearance in a

newspaper of general circulation within the county. The notice must specify

the name and address of the applicant, the address of the property, and the fact

that an application is pending for work upon the property. The notice must

also specify the date, time and place of the public appearance.

(b) Notification by Mail - Approximately fourteen (14) calendar days before the

Revised 7/97



Attachment to Resolution No. 13-1096

GOµERY

.17 76,

MONTGOMERY COUNTY
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

REGULATION
8787 Georgia Avenue • Silver Spring, Maryland 20910
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public appearance on an application, the Commission shall mail notice*of the

date, time, and place of the public appearance to the applicant, any existing

LAP (if the property is located within a master plan historic district with an

LAP), and, as specified by the applicant at the time of filing, adjoining and

confronting property owners, and other interested parties.

(c) Emergency Applications Added to Brenda - At the Chairman's discretion,

emergency applications may be added to the agenda of a public appearance. It

shall be the responsibility of the applicant to hand deliver notices of the

emergency application to all adjacent and confronting property owners, LAPS,

and other interested parties. The applicant shall obtain written verification

that such notices were received and shall present these verifications to the

Commission's staff prior to the public appearance.

Section 1.4 Public Ap,pearances

(a) Time and Place - A public appearance before the Commission shall be held at

the date, time, and place designated in the notice, except for public

appearances which are continued. However, where circumstances require a

change in the date, time, or place of the public appearance after notice has

already been given, the Commission shall make reasonable efforts to notify the

public of the change.

(b) Official Record

(1) In General - The Commission shall prepare, maintain, and supervise

Revised 7/97
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

REGULATION
8787 Georgia Avenue • Silver Spring, Maryland 20910

Subject HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION: RULES, Number

GUIDELINES, AND PROCEDURES 27-97

Effective Date
Historic Preservation Commission November 4, 1997

the custody of an official record for each application. The official

record shall include the application, exhibits, and minutes or transcript

of the public appearance. The official record shall be opened upon the

filing of a completed application with the director. Documentary

evidence may be received in the form of copies, excerpts, photographic

reproductions, models, or by incorporation by reference.

(2) Inspection of Official Record - Subject to the provisions of the

Maryland Public Information Act, and upon reasonable notice, any

person shall have the right to review the official record at reasonable

hours at the Commission's office. Any person may, at his own

expense, request a copy of the written transcript of any public

appearance.

(1) This rule applies to any ex pane or private communication, written or

oral, received by a Commissioners if:

a. The communication related to an application before the

Commission;

b. All appellate ri?hts regarding the application have not been

exhausted; and

c. The Commission is required by law to make an administrative

decision on the matter based on the record.

Revised 7/97
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(2) This rule does not apply to:

a. Legal or technical advice rendered at the request of the

Commission; or

b. Any communication about the status or procedure of a pending

application.

(3) If a Commissioner receives an oral ex parte or private communication,

that Commissioner shall reduce the substance of the communication to

writing within reasonable time after receipt of the communication and

include it in the official record.

(4) The Commission shall include the ex parte or private communication in

the official record and may:

a. Consider the communication as a basis for its decision after giving

all parties an opportunity to respond to the communication; or

b. Decide the matter if the Commission expressly finds that it has not

considered the communication as a basis for its decision.

(d) Evidence - The Commission may admit and give appropriate. weight to

evidence which possesses probative value commonly accepted by reasonable

and prudent persons in the conduct of their affairs, including hearsay evidence

which appears to be reliable in nature. It shall give effect to the rules of

privilege recognized by law. Evidence must be competent, material, and

relevant to all matters at issue. The Commission may exclude incompetent,

Revised 7197
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unreliable, irrelevant or unduly repetitious evidence, or produce evidence at its

own request. The Commission may take official notice of commonly

cognizable facts, facts within each Commissioner's particular realm of

professional expertise, and documents or matters of public record.

(e) Cross-Examination - Every party has the right of reasonable cross-examination

of witnesses who testify, and may submit rebuttal evidence. Repetitious

questions and examination on irrelevant matters is not permitted. Cross-

examination is subject to reasonable regulation by the Commission including

the designation of specific persons to conduct cross-examination on behalf of

other parties.

(f) Fight to Counsel - In any case governed by these procedures, all parties have

the right to be represented by themselves or by an attorney of their choice.

(g) Powers of the Commission in Conducting a Public A1212earance - In addition to

any of the powers granted to the Commission by Chapter 24A, the

Commission may, at their discretion, undertake the following so as to

achieve the orderly and efficient conduct of business:

(1) Regulate the course of a public appearance and allow the official record

in a public appearance to remain open;

(2) Dispose of procedural requests or similar matters, including requests

for a continuance;

(3) Call, examine, and cross-examine witnesses and obtain and introduce

Revised 7/97
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

REGULATION
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Subject HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION: RULES. Number

GUIDELINES, AND PROCEDURES 27-97

Effective Date
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into the official record documentary or other evidence;

(4) Request the parties at any time during the public appearance to state

their respective positions or theory concerning any issues in the

application;

(5) Take any action authorized by law or necessary to a fair disposition of

an application;

(6) Accept evidence by stipulation of facts;

(7) Schedule, suspend, or continue a public appearance to a date and time

certain with notification as provided for in this regulation;

(8) Require the designation a spokesperson for any group of parties either

supporting or opposing an application who shall conduct any opening,

direct examination, cross-examination, closing or testimony in general,

so as to achieve the orderly presentation of a case.

a.• :.. ,~ .~• ,~• ..

(1) Unless otherwise provided by law:

a. A quorum of the Commission must be present to conduct a public

appearance or hearing.

b. All public appearances and hearings shall be de novo before the

Commission.

c. The members of the Commission shall be subject to disqualification

for conflict of interest as defined by Section 410 of the Montgomery
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County Charter, and Chapter 19A of the Montgomery County'Code.

Suggestions for disqualification of any Commissioner may be made on

petition of any parry. A motion for disqualification shall be resolved by

the Commissioner whose disqualification is sought.

(2) The Commission may establish reasonable time limitations and

registration requirements for witnesses and speakers, so that all may

have an opportunity to be heard. In general, these time limits will be:

HAWP applicant's presentation: 7 minutes

Comment by adjacent owners/interested parties: 3 minutes

Comment by citizen associations/interested groups: 5 minutes

Comment by elected officials/government representatives: 7 minutes

The Commission may waive these time limits and may decide whether

speakers will be required to register in advance or at the meeting,

depending on the complexity of the case. Direction as to when and

how to register to speak on an issue will be made clear in the notice for

the meetine.

(3) All exhibits accepted shall be held or referenced in the official record.

Those exhibits whose admission is rejected shall either be returned to

the offering parry or retained in the official record with appropriate

notations reflecting that the material was rejected as an exhibit.

(4) Rulings on motions, petitions, and objections made during the course of

a public appearance shall be ruled on as received or as soon thereafter
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as practicable.

(5) The ordinary, but not mandatory, order or procedure for the conduct of

a public appearance and the presentation of evidence is as follows,

subject to waiver or such reasonable changes as maybe ordered by the

Commission or by law:

a. Disposition of all outstanding preliminary motions and preliminary

matters.

b. Presentation by Commission staff.

c. Opening statement and presentation of factual case of the applicant.

d. Presentation of factual case and statements of other parties.

e. Presentation of rebuttal evidence of the applicant.

f. Closing arguments of the applicant.

g. Closina arguments of other parties opposing the application.

h. At the end of each presentation, any party, upon recognition by the

chair, may briefly cross-examine any speaker.

(6) During regularly scheduled public appearances, the Commission may

review applications on an expedited basis - that is without presentations

by staff, applicant, or other parties - if there are not parties opposing

the application.

(7) Unless otherwise determined by the Commission, the record shall

remain open until the final decision is made. Once the record is closed,
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no additional information will be received except for good cause shown

and a showing that it is material.

(i) Failure to Appear - Upon the failure of an applicant to appear at a public

appearance, and upon finding that such party had timely legal or actual notice

of the appearance, the Commission may receive evidence and decide the case

as if all parties were present.

--- Section 1.5 Criteria for Approval

(a) The Commission shall be guided in their review of Historic Area Work Permit

applications by:

(1) The criteria in Section 24A-8:

(2) The Secretary of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines for

Rehabilitation.

(3) Pertinent guidance in applicable master plans, sector plans, or

functional master plans, including categorization of properties in

historic districts by level of significance - if applicable. Such

categories will be defined and explained clearly in the applicable plans.

(4) Pertinent guidance in historic site or historic district-specific studies.

This includes, but is not limited to, the 1992 Long Range Preservation

Plans for Kensington, Clarksburg, Hyattstown, and Boyds.

(b) Where guidance in an applicable master plan, sector plan, or functional master

plan is inconsistent with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards and
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Guidelines for Rehabilitation, the master plan guidance shall take precedence.

Section 1.6 Decisions

(a) Content - All decisions of the Commission, except rulings on preliminary

matters or on motions or objections, must be based on the evidence contained

in the official record. Written decisions - containing findings of fact,

conclusions of law, and an appropriate decision and order - will be issued on

all denials. In all cases, each decision will conclude with instructions to the

director to:

(1) Issue the permit as described in the application, including amendments

to the application that may have occurred subsequent to its initial filing;

(2) Issue the permit subject to the conditions stipulated in t1`1e decision; or

(3) Deny the permit.

(b) . Voting Requirements - Every decision must have the concurrence of a majority

of the voting members of the Commission. Members of the Commission

absent during a public appearance may vote upon a matter upon written

certification that they have reviewed the verbatim transcript of the appearance,

and reviewed the evidence contained in the official record.

(c) Notification of Decision - All decisions of the Commission must be made

public and mailed to the applicant.

Revised 7/97



Attachment to Resolution No. 13-1096

GD~,AE R Y

17 76 .

M~ 
R yt!`~~

MONTGOMERY COUNTY
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

REGULATION
8787 Georgia Avenue • Silver Spring, Maryland 20910

Subject HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION: RULES, Humber

GUIDELINES, AND PROCEDURES 27-97

Effective Date
Historic Preservation Commission November 4, 1997

PRELIMINARY CONSULTATIONS

Section 2.0 Purpose

Section 24A-6(d) encourages owners of historic properties to seek advice from the

Commission prior to filing an application for an Historic Area Work Permit.

Informal consultations, to obtain input and advice from the Commission on potential

future Historic Area Work Permit applications, may be scheduled as part of the

regular agenda of a Commission meeting.

Section 2.1 Submission of Preliminary Consultation

(a) Filing Preliminary Consultation requests may be filed directly with

Commission staff. Requesting a Preliminary Consultation is at the discretion

of the applicant.

(b) Schedulin" - In order to be considered at a regularly scheduled public

appearance, requests shall be filed with staff three (3) weeks prior to the

meeting date for which it is to be scheduled.

(c) Completeness - Upon receipt by staff, each request will be evaluated for -

sufficiency. Requests for Preliminary Consultations do not need to contain

finished plans and specifications; however, there must be sufficient

information submitted to adequately communicate the scope and nature of the

proposed work. Those requests judged by staff to be sufficient, will be

promptly scheduled for discussion before the Commission.
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(a) Publication - Before a Preliminary Consultation may be considered ara public

appearance, the Commission must publish notice of the public appearance

approximately fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date of the public

appearance in a newspaper of general circulation within the county. The notice

must specify the name and address of the applicant and the address of the

property. The notice must also specify the date, time and place of the public

appearance.

(b) Notification by Mail - Approximately fourteen (14) calendar days before the

public appearance on a Preliminary Consultation, the Commission may - at its

discretion - mail notice of the date, time, and place of the public appearance to

the applicant, any existing LAP (if the property is located within a master plan

historic district with an LAP), adjoining and confronting property owners, and

other interested parties.

Section 2.3 Public Appearances

(a) Time and Place - A public appearance before the Commission shall be held at

the date, time, and place designated in the notice, except for public

appearances which are continued. However, where circumstances require a

change in the date, time, or place of the public appearance after notice has

already been given, the Commission shall make reasonable efforts to notify the

public of the change.

(b) Public Appearance Conduct and Procedure for Preliminary Consultations
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(1) The Commission may establish reasonable time limitations and

registration requirements for witnesses and speakers, so that all may

have an opportunity to be heard. In general, these time limits will be:

Applicant's presentation: 7 minutes

Comment by adjacent owners/interested parties: 3 minutes

Comment by citizen associations/interested groups: 5 minutes

Comment by elected officials/government representatives: 7 minutes

The Commission may waive these time Iimits and may decide whether

speakers will be required to register in advance or at the meeting,

depending on the complexity of the case. Direction as to when and

how to resister to speak on an issue will be made clear in the notice for

the meeting.

(2) The ordinary, but not mandatory, order or procedure for the conduct of

a public appearance on Preliminary Consultations is as follows:

a. Presentation by Commission staff.

b. Opening statement and presentation of proposal by the applicant.

c. Statements of other parties.

d. Commission Guidance, as set forth is Section 2.5 below.

Section 2.4 Criteria to Guide Discussion

(a) The Commission shall be guided in their discussion of Preliminary

Consultation requests by:

(1) The criteria in Section 24A-8.
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(2) The Secretary of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines for

Rehabilitation. .

(3) Pertinent guidance in applicable master plans, sector plans, or

functional master plans, including categorization of properties in

historic districts by level of significance - if applicable. Such

categories will be defined and explained clearly in the applicable plans.

(4) Pertinent guidance in historic site or historic district-specific studies.

This includes, but is not limited to, the 1992 Long Range Preservation

Plans for Kensington, Clarksburg, Hyattstown, and Boyds.

(b) Where guidance in an applicable master plan, sector plan, or functional master

plan is inconsistent with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards and

Guidelines for Rehabilitation, the master plan guidance shall take precedence.

Section 2.5 Commission Guidance

(a) No vote shall be taken or formal decision made on any Preliminary

Consultation.

(b) Each Commissioner shall have an opportunity to address a proposal made in a

Preliminary Consultation and to offer their individual comments and advice.

(c) An effort will be made to communicate the Commission's consensus on the

proposal and to give the applicant clear direction in regard to filing an Historic

Area Work Permit application.

Revised 7/97



Attachment to Resolution No. 13-1096

GCrAERY 
C

17 76

I

MONTGOMERY COUNTY
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

REGULATION
8787 Georgia Avenue • Silver Spring, Maryland 20910

Subject HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION: RULES,
Number

GUIDELINES, AND PROCEDURES 27-97

Effective Date
Historic Preservation Commission November 4, 1997

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATIONS

Section 3.0 Purpo

Section 24A-5(a), empowers the Commission to research historic resources and to

recommend to the Planning Board that certain of them be designated as historic sites

or historic districts on the Master Plan for Historic Preservation. Under 24A-5(b),

the Commission may also recommend to the Planning Board, as needed, any update to

the inventory of historic resources which is contained in the Locational Atlas and

Index of Historic Sites. These recommendations are, by law, advisory in nature and

do not constitute administrative decisions. This regulation is established to provide a

process for formulation of these advisory recommendations.

Section 3.1 Master Plan Designations

(a) The Commission must review all nominations for designation on the 1 faster

Plan for Historic Preservation to determine that a completed MHT Inventory

Form and other available background information is included that is necessary

for the Commission to evaluate such nominations.

(b) The Commission must schedule a public appearance and worksessions on each

proposed nomination. The public appearance and worksessions may be on the

same date or on separate dates. Such an appearance and worksessions may be

scheduled during the Commission's regular agenda or at a special meeting.

(c) The public appearance shall be publicized to the extent possible as follows:

(1) Notice to affected property owners mailed at least three (3) weeks prior
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to the date of the appearance.

(2) Notice to citizens or organizations which have requested notices of

public appearances mailed at least three (3) weeks prior to the date of

the appearance.

(3) The Commission must publish notice of the public appearance

approximately fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date of the

public appearance in a newspaper of general circulation within the

county. The notice must specify the date, time and place of the public

appearance.

(d) If scheduled for a date different than the date of the public appearance, the

worksession(s) will be publicized through publication of a notice

approximately fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date of the worksession

in a newspaper of general circulation within the county. The notice must

specify the date, time and place of the worksession. In addition, the

Commission will make every effort to assure that citizens who testified at a "

public appearance are aware of the date of the associated worksession_

(e) The staff recommendation on a nomination will be available seven (7) days

prior to the worksession on a nomination and copies may be obtained in the

offices of the Historic Preservation Commission. The staff recommendation

will be available seven (7) in advance of the worksession whether the public

appearance and worksession are held on the same date or on different dates.
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(f) The order of business at the public appearance and at any subsequent'

worksessions shall be as follows:

(1) Introduction of the nomination by staff.

(2) Comment by affected property owners, municipalities, and HOAs.

(3) Public comment.

(4) Presentation of staff recommendation.

(5) Questions by Commission of staff.

(6) Consideration by Commission.

(g) The conduct of business at a scheduled appearance shall reflect the following:

(1) Preliminary action.. Upon convening the meeting, the presiding officer

shall Give a brief explanation of the purpose of the appearance and shall

cause to be presented any information or data which is required before

public discussion and comments begin.

(2) Information from public. Each member of the public who wishes to

speak should, after recognition by the presiding officer, come forth and

state the following information:

a. Name

b. Home address

C. Person or organization he/she represents, or that he/she is

speaking as a private citizen.

(3) The Commission may establish reasonable time limitations and

registration requirements for speakers so that all may have an
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opportunity to be heard. In general, these time limits will be:

Comment by affected individual property owners: 3 minutes

Comment by adjacent owners/interested parties: 3 minutes

Comment by citizen associations/interested groups: 5 minutes

Comment by elected officials/government representatives: 7 minutes

The Commission may waive these time limits and may decide whether

speakers will be required to register in advance or at the meeting,

depending on the complexity of the nomination. Direction as to when

and how to register to speak on an issue will be made clear in the

notice for the public appearance.

(4) Questions. Any member of the Commission, upon recognition of the

Chair, may briefly question any speaker. Members and speakers shall

be requested not to debate over these questions.

(h) Recommendation. At the close of either the public appearance or a

worksession, the Commission will formulate its recommendation on each

proposed nomination. This recommendation may be put to a vote and decided

by a majority of Commissioners. This recommendation will be forwarded to

the Planning Board, County Executive, and County Council in a timely

fashion.

(i) Criteria. In formulating a recommendation on designation, the Commission

shall utilize the criteria listed in 24A-3(b).

Section 3.2 Update of and Addition to Locational Atlas

(a) The Commission must review all nominations for additions to the Locational
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Atlas and Index of Historic Sites to determine that a completed MHT'

Inventory Form and other available background information is included that is

necessary for the Commission to evaluate such nominations.

(b) The Commission must schedule a public appearance and worksessions on each

proposed nomination. The public appearance and worksessions may be on the

same date or on separate dates. Such an appearance and worksessions may be

scheduled during the Commission's regular agenda or at a special meeting.

(c) The public appearance shall be publicized to the extent possible as follows:

(1) Notice to affected property owners mailed at least one (I) week prior to

the date of the appearance.

(2) Notice to citizens or organizations which have requested notices of

public appearances mailed at least one (1) week prior to the date of the

appearance.

(d) The staff recommendation on a nomination will be available seven (7) days

prior to the worksession on a nomination and copies may be obtained in the-

offices of the Historic Preservation Commission. The staff recommendation

will be available seven (7) in advance of the worksession whether the public

appearance and worksession are held on the same date or on different dates.

(e) The order of business at the public appearance and at any subsequent

worksessions shall be as follows:

(1) Introduction of the nomination by staff.

(2) Comment by affected property owners, muncipalities, and HOAs.
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(3) Public comment.

(4) Presentation of staff recommendation.

(5) Questions by Commission of staff.

(6) Consideration by Commission.

(f) The conduct of business at a scheduled appearance shall reflect the following:

(1) Preliminary action. Upon convening the meeting, the presiding officer

shall give a brief explanation of the purpose of the appearance and shall

cause to be presented any information or data which is required before

public discussion and comments begin.

(2) Information from public. Each member of the public who wishes to

speak should. after recognition by the presiding officer, come forth and

state the following information:

a. Name

b. Home address

C. Person or organization he/she represents, or that he/she is

speaking as a private. citizen.

(3) The Commission may establish reasonable time limitations and

registration requirements for speakers so that all may have an

opportunity to be heard. In general, these time limits will be:

Comment by affected individual property owners: 3 minutes

Comment by adjacent owners/interested parties: 3 minutes

Comment by gitizen associations/interested groups: 5 minutes
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Comment by elected officials/government representatives: 7 minutes

The Commission may waive these time limits and may decide whether

speakers will be required to register in advance or at the meeting,

depending on the complexity of the nomination. Direction as to when

and how to register to speak on an issue will be made clear in the

notice for the public appearance.

(4) Questions., Any member of the Commission, upon recognition of the

Chair, may briefly question any speaker. Members and speakers shall

be requested not to debate over these questions.

(g) Recommendation. At the close of the public appearance, the Commission will

formulate its recommendation on each proposed nomination. This

recommendation may be put to a vote and decided by a majority of

Commissioners. This recommendation will be forwarded to the Planning

Board in a timely fashion.

(h) Criteria. In formulating a recommendation, the Commission shall utilize the

criteria listed in 24A-3(b).

George Kousoulas
Chairperson
Historic Preservation Commission
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Standards for Rehabilitation

1. A property will be used as it was historically or be given a new use that requires minimal change to its
distinctive materials, features, spaces, and spatial relationships.
2. The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of distinctive materi-
als or alteration of features, spaces, and spatial relationships that characterize a property will be avoided.

3. Each property will be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. Changes that create a
false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or elements from other historic
properties, will not be undertaken.

4. Changes to a property that have acquired historic significance in their own right will be retained and
preserved.

5. Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that
characterize a property will be preserved.

6. Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of deterioration
requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature will match the old in design, color, texture,
and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features will be substantiated by documentary
and physical evidence.

7. Chemical or physical treatments, if appropriate, will be undertaken using the gentlest means possible.
Treatments that cause damage to historic materials will not be used.

8. Archeological resources will be protected and preserved in place. If such resources must be disturbed,
mitigation measures will be undertaken.

9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic materials, fea-
tures, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new work shall be differentiated from
the old and will be compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and mass-
ing to protect the integrity of the property and its environment.

10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in a such a manner that,
if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its environment
would be unimpaired.
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Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic
Buildings

Introduction

In Rehabilitation, historic building materials and
character-defining features are protected and main-
tained as they are in the treatment Preservation; how-
ever, an assumption is made prior to work that exist-
ing historic fabric has become damaged or deteriorat-
ed over time and, as a result, more repair and replace-
ment will be required. Thus, latitude is given in the
Standards for.Rchabilitation and Guidelines for
Rehabilitation to replace extensively deteriorated,
damaged, or missing features using either traditional
or substitute materials. Of the four treatments, only
Rehabilitation includes an opportunity to make pos-
sible an efficient contemporary use through alter-
ations and additions.

Identify, Retain, and Preserve Historic Materials
and Features

Like Preservation, guidance for the treatment
Rehabilitation begins with recommendations to
identify the form and detailing of those architectural
materials and features that are important in defining
the building's historic character and which must be
retained in order to preserve that character.
Therefore, guidance on identifying,  retaining,
andprrservingcharacter-defining features is always
given first. The character of a historic building
may be defined by the form and detailing of exterior
materials, such as masonry, wood, and metal; exterior
features, such as roofs, porches, and windows; interior

materials, such as plaster and paint; and interior
features, such as moldings and stairways, room
configuration and spatial relationships, as well as
structural and mechanical systems.

Protect and Maintain Historic Materials and
Features

After identifying those materials and features that arc
important and must be retained in the process of
Rehabilitation work, then protecting and maintain-

ing them are addressed. Protection generally involves
the least degree of intervention and is preparatory to
other work. For example, protection includes the
maintenance.of historic material through treatments
such as rust removal, caulking, limited paint removal,
and re-application of protective coatings; the cyclical
cleaning of roof gutter systems; or installation of fenc-
ing, alarm systems and other temporary protective
measures. Although a historic building will usually
require more extensive work, an overall evaluation of
its physical condition should always begin at this
level.

Repair Historic Materials and Features

Next, when the physical condition of character-
defining materials and features warrants additional
work repairing is recommended. Rehabilitation
guidance for the repair of historic materials such as
masonry, wood, and architectural metals again begins
with the least degree of intervention possible such as
patching, piecing-in, splicing, consolidating, or other-
wise reinforcing or upgrading them according to rec-
ognized preservation methods. Repairing also
includes the limited replacement in kind—or with

Now. The Guiddina for Rchabilituin6 Hiuorie Bu;ld;nip in this chapter have already appeared ;n The Srrnwry ojrlx tnuriori Sr rniaidr for Rs6wbiliation d
jUaw&W Cni"nofir kdmbl iadel Mwk Bu"n j% published in 1992.
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Originally built as single-family semi-detached duplexes, these houses there rehabilitated for it net, weal retuitl aparnnenu.
While some alteration to non-significant interior f attires and spaces uvu uecessrny in each one, the exteriors uKre essentially
preserved. Photos: Mistick, Inc.

compatible substitute material—of extensively deteri-
orated or missing parts of features when there are sur-
viving prototypes (for example, brackets, dentils,
steps, plaster, or portions of slate or tile roofing).
Although using the same kind of material is always
the preferred option, substitute material is acceptable
if the form and design as well as the substitute materi-
al itself convey the visual appearance of the remaining
parts of the feature and finish.

Replace Deterioratod Historic Materials and
Feattim

Following repair in the hierarchy, Rehabilitation
guidance is provided for replacingan entire character-
defining feature with new material because the level
of deterioration or damage of materials precludes
repair (for example, an exterior cornice; an interior

staircase; or a complete porch or storefront). If the
essential form and detailing are still evident so that
the. physical evidence can be used to re-establish the
feature as an integral part of the rehabilitation, then
its replacement is appropriate. Like the guidance for
repair, the preferred option is always replacement of
the entire feature in kind, that is, with the same mate-
rial. Because this approach may not always be techni-
cally or economically feasible, provisions are made to
consider the use of a compatible substitute material.

It should be noted that, while the National Park
Service guidelines recommend the replacement of an
entire character-defining feature that is extensively
deteriorated, they never recommend removal and
replacement with new material of a feature that—
although damaged or deteriorated—could reasonably
be repaired and thus preserved.

64



Design for the Replacement of Missing Historic
Features

When an entire interior or exterior feature is missing
(for example, an entrance, or cast iron facade; or a
principal staircase), it no longer plays a role in physi-
cally defining the historic character of the building
unless it can be accurately recovered in form and
detailing through the process of carefully document-
ing the historical appearance. Although accepting the
loss is one possibility, where an important architectur-
al feature is missing, its replacement is always recom-
mended in the Rehabilitation guidelines as the firstor
preferred, course of action. Thus, if adequate histori-
cal, pictorial, and physical documentation exists so
that the feature may be accurately reproduced, and if
it is desirable to re-establish the feature as part of the
building's historical appearance, then designing and
constructing a new feature based on such information
is appropriate. However, a second acceptable option
for the replacement feature is a new design that is
compatible with the remaining character-defining
features of the historic building. The new design
should always take into account the size, scale, and
material of the historic building itself and, most
importantly, should be clearly differentiated so that
a false historical appearance is not created.

Alterations/Additions for the New Use

Some exterior and interior alterations to a historic
building are generally needed to assure its continued

use, but it is most important that such alterations do
not radically change, obscure, or destroy character-
defining spaces, materials, features, or finishes:
Alterations may include providing additional parking
space on an existing historic building site; cutting
new entrances or windows on secondary elevations;
inserting an additional floor; installing an entirely
new mechanical system; or creating an atrium or light
well. Alteration may also include the selective
removal of buildings or other features of the environ-
ment or building site that are intrusive and therefore
detract from the overall historic character.

The construction of an exterior addition on a historic
building may seem to be essential for the new use,
but it is emphasized in the Rehabilitation guidelines
that such new additions should be avoided, if possi-
ble, and considered only after it is determined that
those needs cannot be met by altering secondary, i.e.,
non character-defining interior spaces. If, after a
thorough evaluation of interior solutions, an exterior
addition is still judged to be the only viable alterative,
it should be designed and constructed to be clearly
differentiated from the historic building and so that
the character-defining features are not radically
changed, obscured, damaged, or destroyed.

Additions and alterations to historic buildings are ref-
erenced within specific sections of the Rehabilitation
guidelines such as Site, Roofs, Structural Systems,
etc., but are addressed in detail in New Additions to
Historic Buildings, found at the end of this chapter.
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Energy Efficiency/Accessibility
Considerations/Health and Safety Code
Considerations

31' sections of the guidaince addrrss work done to
!ni et accessibility rcquirrsnents and health and safety
ao&o .requirements;. or refitting measures to

improve en 
tro

energy efficiency.-Although this work is
quite often'an important aspect of Rehabilitation
projects; it is usually, nota"part of the overall process
of protecting or repairing character-defining features;
ritlier; such work is assessed for its potential negative
~rnpa qn the.buildines'hisooric character. For this
•F n; particular cane must betaken not to radically
d'h e~o. bscure, damage' ,o.,r. destroy character-defn- ,
~lmatea  of features in the process of meeting
oode~and energy roquic+~ments.

Rehabilitation as a Tirratment When repair and
replacement of deteriorated features are necessary, when
alterations or additions to the property are planned for

a new or continued use, and when its depiction at a
particular time is not appropriate, Rehabilitation may
be considered as a treatment. Prior to undertaking
work, a documentation plan for Rehabilitation should
be developed.
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Building Exterior

Masonry: Brick, stone, terra cotta, concrete, adobe, stucco and mortar

Recommended

Identifying, retaining, and preserving masonry features that
are important in defining the overall historic character of the
building such as walls, brackets, railings, cornices, window
architraves, door pediments, steps, and columns; and details
such as tooling and bonding patterns, coatings, and color.

Protecting and maintaining masonry by providing proper
drainage so that water does not stand on Flat, horizontal sur-
faces or accumulate in curved decorative features.

Cleaning masonry only when necessary to halt deterioration
or remove heavy soiling.

Carrying out masonry surface cleaning tests after it has been
determined that such cleaning is appropriate. Tests should be
observed over a sufficient period of time so that both the
immediate and the long range effects are known to enable
selection of the gentlest method possible.

Not Recommended

Removing or radically changing masonry features which are
important in defining the overall historic character of the
building so that, as a result, the character is diminished.

Replacing or rebuilding a major portion of exterior masonry
walls that could be repaired so that, as a result, the building is
no longer historic and is essentially new construction.

Applying paint or other coatings such as stucco to masonry
that has been historically unpainted or uncoated to create a
new appearance.

Removing paint from historically painted masonry.

Radically changing the type of paint or coating or its color.

Failing to evaluate and treat the various causes of mortar joint
deterioration such as leaking roofs or gutters, differential set-
tlement of the building, capillary action, or extreme weather.
exposure.

Cleaning masonry surfaces when they are not heavily soiled
to create a new appearance, thus needlessly introducing
chemicals or moisture into historic materials.

Cleaning masonry surfaces without testing or without suffi-
cient time for the testing results to be of value.
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Recommended

Cleaning masonry surfaces with the gentlest method possible,
such as low pressure water and detergents, using natural bris-
tle brushes.

Inspecting painted masonry surfaces to determine whether
repainting is necessary.

Removing damaged or deteriorated paint only to the next
sound layer using the gentlest method possible (e.g., hand-
scraping) prior to repainting.

Applying compatible paint coating systems following proper
surface. preparation.

Repainting with colors that are historically appropriate to the
building and district.

Evaluating the overall condition of the masonry to determine
whether more than protection and maintenance are required,
that is, if repairs to masonry features will be necessary.

Repairing masonry walls and other masonry features by
repointing the mortar joints where there is evidence of deteri-
oration such as disintegrating mortar, cracks in mortar joints,
loose bricks, damp walls, or damaged plasterwork.

Removing deteriorated mortar by carefully hand-raking the
joints to avoid damaging the masonry.

Not Recommended

Sandblasting brick or stone surfaces using dry or wet grit or
other abrasives. These methods of cleaning permanently
erode the surface of the material and accelerate deterioration.

Using a cleaning method that involves water or liquid chemi-
cal solutions when there is any possibility of freezing temper-
atures.

Cleaning with chemical products that will damage masonry,
such as using acid on limestone or marble, or leaving chemi-
cals on masonry surfaces.

Applying high.pressure water cleaning methods that will
damage historic masonry and the mortar joints.

Removing paint that is firmly adhering to, and thus protect-
ing, masonry surfaces.

Using methods of removing paint which are destructive to
masonry, such as sandblasting, application of caustic solu-
tions, or high pressure waterblasting.

Failing to follow manufacturers' product and application
instructions when repainting masonry.

Using new paint colors that are inappropriate to the Historic
building and district.

Failing to undertake adequate measures to assure the protec-
tion of masonry features.

Removing nondeteriorated mortar from sound joints,
then repointing the entire building to achieve a uniform
appearance.

Using electric saws and hammers rather than hand tools to
remove deteriorated mortar from joints prior to repointing.
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Building Exterior
Wood: Clapboard, weatherboard, shingles, and other wooden siding and decorative elements

Recommended

Identifying, retaining, and preservingwood features that are
important in defining the overall historic character of the
building such as siding, cornices, brackets, window archi-
traves, and doorway pediments; and their paints, finishes,
and colors.

Protecting and maintaining wood features by providing
proper drainage so that water is not allowed to stand on flat,
horizontal surfaces or accumulate in decorative features.

Applying chemical preservatives to wood features such as
beam ends or outriggers that are exposed to decay hazards
and are traditionally unpainted.

Reiaining coatings such as paint that help protect the wood
from moisture and ultraviolet light. Paint removal should be
considered only where there is paint surface deterioration and
as part of an overall maintenance program which involves
repainting or applying other appropriate protective coatings.

Not Recommended

Removing or radically changing wood features which are
important in defining the overall historic character of the
building so that, as a result, the character is diminished.

Removing a major portion of the historic wood from a facade
instead of repairing or replacing only the deteriorated wood,
then reconstructing the facade with new material in order to
achieve a uniform or "improved" appearance.

Radically changing the type of finish or its color or accent
scheme so that the historic character of the exterior is dimin-
ished.

Stripping historically painted surfaces to bare wood, then
applying clear finishes or stains in order to create a "natural
look."

Stripping paint or varnish to bare wood rather than repairing
or reapplying a special finish, i.e., a grained finish to an exte-
rior wood feature such as a front door.

Failing to identify, evaluate, and treat the causes of wood
deterioration, including faulty flashing, leaking gutters, cracks
and holes in siding, deteriorated caulking in joints and seams,
plant material growing too close to wood surfaces, or insect
or fungus infestation.

Using chemical preservatives such as creosote which, unless
they were used historically, can change the appearance of
wood features.

Stripping paint or other coatings to reveal bare wood, thus
exposing historically coated surfaces to the effects of accel-
erated weathering.
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Recommended

Inspecting painted wood surfaces to determine whether
repainting is necessary or if cleaning is all that is required.

Removing damaged or deteriorated paint to the next sound
layer using the gentlest method possible (handscraping and
handsanding), then repainting.

Using with care electric hot-air guns on decorative wood fea-
tures and electric heat plates on flat wood surfaces when paint
is so deteriorated that total removal is necessary prior to
repainting.

= e —Lyr- —_.
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Not Recommended

Removing paint that is firmly adhering to, and thus, protect-
ing wood surfaces.

Using destructive paint removal methods such as propane
or butane torches, sandblasting or waterblasting. These
methods can irreversibly damage historic woodwork.

Using thermal devices improperly so that the historic wood-
work is scorched.

According to the Standards for Rehabilitation, existing historic materiaG should be protected, maintained and repaired. In an exemplary project, the
toindotm and shutters of this historic residence were carefully preserved.
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Recommended

Duplicating old mortar in strength, composition, color, and
texture.

Duplicating old mortar joints in width and in joint profile.

Repairing stucco by removing the damaged material and
patching with new stucco that duplicates the old in strength,
composition, color, and texture.

Using mud plaster as a surface coating over unfired, unstabi-
lized adobe because the mud plaster will bond to the adobe.

Cutting damaged concrete back to remove the source of dete-
rioration (often corrosion on metal reinforcement bars). The
new patch must be applied carefully so it will bond satisfacto-
rily with, and match, the historic concrete.

Repairing masonry features by patching, piecing-in, or
consolidating the masonry using recognized preservation
methods. Repair may also include the limited replacement
in kind—or with compatible substitute material—of those
extensively deteriorated or missing parts of masonry features
when there are surviving prototypes such as terra-cotta
brackets or stone balusters.

Not Recommended

Repointing with mortar of high portland cement content
(unless it is the content of the historic mortar). This can
often create a bond that is stronger than the historic material
and can cause damage as a result of the differing coefficient of
expansion and the differing porosity of the material and the
mortar.

Repointing with a synthetic caulking compound.

Using a "scrub" coating technique to repoint instead of tradi-
tional repointing methods.

Changing the width or joint profile when repointing.

Removing sound stucco; or repairing with new stucco that is
stronger than the historic material or does nor convey the
same visual appearance.

Applying cement stucco to unfired, unstabilized adobe.
Because the cement stucco will not bond properly, moisture
can become entrapped between materials, resulting in acceler-
ated deterioration of the adobe.

Patching concrete without removing the source of deteri-
oration.

Replacing an entire masonry feature such as a cornice or
balustrade when repair of the masonry and limited replace-
ment of deteriorated or missing parts are appropriate.

Using a substitute material for the replacement part that
does not convey the visual appearance of the surviving parts
of the masonry feature or that is physically or chemically
incompatible.
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Rehabilitation

Recommended

Applying new or non-historic surface treatments such as
water-repellent coatings to masonry only after repointing and
only if masonry repairs have failed to arrest water penetration
problems.

Rtplaeingin kind an entire masonry feature that is too deteri-
orated to repair—if the overall form and detailing are still evi-
dent—using the physical evidence as a model to reproduce
the feature. Examples can include large sections of a wall, a
cornice, balustrade, column, or stairway. If using the same
kind of material is not technically or economically feasible,
then a compatible substitute material may be considered.

Not Recommended

Applying waterproof, water repellent, or non-historic
coatings such as stucco to masonry as a substitute for repoint-
ing and masonry repairs. Coatings are frequently unneces-
sary, expensive, and may change the appearance of historic
masonry as well as accelerate its deterioration.

Removing a masonry feature that is unrepairable and not
replacing it; or replacing it with a new feature that does not
convey the same visual appearance.

The following work 
u 

highlighted to indicate that it represents the particularly complex technical or design aspects of Rehabilitation
projects and should only be considered after the preservation concerns listed above have been addressed.

Recommended

Design for the Replacement of Missing Historic Features

Designing and installing a new masonry feature-such as steps
or a door pediment when the historic feature is completely
missing. It may be an accurate restoration using historical,
pictorial, and physical documentation; or be a new design
that is compatible with the size, scale, material, and color of
the historic building.

Not Recommended

Creating a false historical appearance because the replaced
masonry feature is based on insufficient historical, pictorial,
and physical documentation.

Introducing a new masonry feature that is incompatible in
size, scale, material and color.
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Recommended

Using chemical strippers primarily to supplement other
methods such as handscraping, handsanding and the above-
recommended thermal devices. Detachable wooden elements
such as shutters, doors, and columns may—with the proper
safeguards—be chemically dip-stripped.

Applying compatible paint coating systems following proper
surface preparation.

Repainting with colors that are appropriate to the historic
building and district.

Evaluating the overall condition of the wood to determine
whether more than protection and maintenance are required,
that is, if repairs to wood features will be necessary.

Repairingwood 

features by patching, piecing-in, consolidat-
ing, or otherwise reinforcing the wood using recognized
preservation methods. Repair may also include the limited
replacement in kind—or with compatible substitute materi-
al—of those extensively deteriorated or missing parts of fea-
tures where there are surviving prototypes such as brackets,
molding, or sections of siding.

Replacing in kind an entire wood feature that is too deterio-
rated to repair—if the overall form and detailing are still evi-
dent—using the physical evidence as a model to reproduce
the feature. Examples of wood features include a cornice,
entablature or balustrade. If using the same kind of material
is not technically or economically feasible, then a compatible
substitute material may be considered.

Not Recommended

Failing to neutralize the wood thoroughly after using chemi-
cals so that new paint does not adhere.

Allowing detachable wood features to soak too long in a caus-
tic solution so that the wood grain is raised and the surface
roughened.

Failing to follow manufacturers' product and application
instructions when repainting exterior woodwork.

Using; new colors that are inappropriate to the historic build-
ing or district.

Failing to undertake adequate measures to assure the protec-
tion of wood features.

Replacing an entire wood feature such as a cornice or wall
when repair of the wood and limited replacement of deterio-
rated or missing parts are appropriate.

Using substitute material for the replacement part that does
not convey the visual appearance of the surviving parts of the
wood feature or that is physically or chemically incompatible.

Removing an entire wood feature that is unrepairable and not
replacing it; or replacing it with a new feature that does not
convey the same visual appearance.
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The following work it highliglited to indicate that it represents the particularly complex technical or design aspects of Rehabilitation
projects and should only be considered after the preservation concerns listed above have been addressed.

Recommended

Design for the Replacement of Missing Historic Features

Designing and installing a new wood feature such as a cor-
nice or doorway when the historic feature is completely miss-
ing. iIt may be an accurate restoration using historical, picto-
rialt and physical documentation; or be a new design that is
compatible with the size, stale, material, and color of the his-
toric building.

Not Recommended

Creating a false historical appearance because the replaced
wood feature is based on insufficient historical, pictorial, and
physical documentation. r

Introducing a new wood feature that is incompatible in size,
scale, material and color.
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Building Exterior

Architectural Metals: Cast iron, steel, pressed tin, copper, aluminum, and zinc

Recommended

Identifying, retainin& andpreserving architectural metal fea-
tures such as columns, capitals, window hoods, or stairways
that are important in defining the overall historic character of
the building; and their finishes and colors. Identification is
also critical to differentiate between metals prior to work.
Each metal has unique properties and thus requires different
treatments.

Notecting and maintaining architectural metals from corro-
sion by providing proper drainage so that water does not
stand on flat, horizontal surfaces or accumulate in curved,
decorative features.

Cleaning architectural metals, when appropriate, to remove
corrosion prior to repainting or applying other appropriate
protective coatings.

Identifying the particular type of metal prior to any cleaning
procedure and then testing to assure that the gentlest cleaning
method possible is selected or determining that cleaning is
inappropriate for the particular metal.

Not Recommended

Removing or radically changing architectural metal features
which are important in defining the overall historic character
of the building so that, as a result, the character is dimin-
ished.

Removing a major portion of the historic architectural metal
from a facade instead of repairing or replacing only the dete-
riorated metal, then reconstructing the facade with new
material in order to create a uniform, or "improved" appear-
ance.

Radically changing the type of finish or its historic color or
accent scheme.

Failing to identify, evaluate, and treat the causes of corrosion,
such as moisture from leaking roofs or gutters. .

Placing incompatible metals together without providing a
reliable separation material. Such incompatibility can result
in galvanic corrosion of the less noble metal, e.g., copper will
corrode cast iron, steel, tin, and aluminum.

Exposing metals which were intended to be protected from
the environment.

Applying paint or other coatings to metals such as copper,
bronze, or stainless steel that were meant to be exposed.

Using cleaning methods which alter or damage the historic
color, texture, and finish of the metal; or cleaning when it is
inappropriate for the metal.

Removing the patina of historic metal. The patina may be a
protective coating on some metals, such as bronze or copper,
-is well as a significant historic finish.
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Recommended

Cleaning soft metals such as lead, tin, copper, terneplate, and
zinc with appropriate chemical methods because their finishes
can be easily abraded by blasting methods.

Using the gentlest cleaning methods for cast iron, wrought
iron, and steel—hard metals—in order to remove paint
buildup and corrosion. If handscraping and wire brushing
have proven ineffective, low pressure grit blasting may be
used as long as it does not abrade or damage the surface.

Applying appropriate paint or other coating systems after
cleaning in order to decrease the corrosion rate of metals or
alloys.

Repainting with colors that are appropriate to the historic
building or district.

Applying an appropriate protective coating such as lacquer to
an architectural metal feature such as a bronze door which is
subject to heavy pedestrian use.

Evaluating the overall condition of the arAiitectural metals to
determine whether more than protection and maintenance
are required, that is, if repairs to features will be necessary.

Repairingarchitectural metal features by patching, splicing,
or otherwise reinforcing the metal following recognized
preservation methods. Repairs may also include the limited
replacement in kind—or with a compatible substitute materi-
al—of those extensively deteriorated or missing parts of fea-
tures when there are surviving prototypes such as porch
balusters, column capitals or bases; or porch cresting.

Not Recommended

Cleaning soft metals such 'as lead, tin, copper, terneplate, and
zinc with grit blasting which will abrade the surface of the
metal.

Failing to employ gentler methods prior to abrasively clean-
ing cast iron, wrought iron or steel; or using high pressure grit
blasting.

Failing to re-apply protective coating systems to metals or
alloys that require them after cleaning so that accelerated cor-
rosion occurs.

Using new colors that are inappropriate to the historic build-
ing or district.

Failing to assess pedestrian use or new access. patterns so that
architectural metal features are subject to damage by use or
inappropriate maintenance such as salting adjacent sidewalks.

Failing to undertake adequate measures to assure the protec-
tion of architectural metal features.

Replacing an entire architectural metal feature such as a col-
umn or a balustrade when repair of the metal and limited
replacement of deteriorated or missing parts are appropriate.

Using a substitute material for the replacement part that does
not convey the visual appearance of the surviving parts of the
architectural metal feature or that is physically or chemically
incompatible.
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Recommended

Replacingin kind an entire architectural metal feature that is
too deteriorated to repair—if the overall form and detailing
are still evident—using the physical evidence as a model to
reproduce the feature. Examples could include taut iron
porch steps or steel sash windows. If using the same kind
of material is not technically or economically feasible, then
a compatible substitute material may be considered.

Not Recommended

Removing an architectural metal feature that is unrepairable
and not. replacing it; or replacing it with a new architectural
metal feature that does not convey the same visual appear-
ance.

The following work is highlighted to indicate that it represents the particularly complex technical or design aspects of Rehabilitation
projects and should only be considered after the preservation concerns listed above have been addressed

Recommended

Design for the Replacement of Missing Historic Features

Designing and installing a new architectural metal feature
such as a metal cornice or cast iron capital when the historic
feature is completely missing. It may be an accurate restora-
tion using historical, pictorial, and physical documentation;
or be a new design that is compatible with the size, scale,
material, and color of the historic building.

Not Recommended

Creating a false historical appearance because the replaced
architectural metal feature is based on insufficient historical,
pictorial, and physical documentation. ..

Introducing a new architectural metal feature that is incom-
patible in size, scale; material, and coloi:'."' ̀
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Building Exterior

Roofs

Recommended

Identifying retaining, and preserving roofs—and their func-
tional and decorative features—that are important in defining
the overall historic character of the building. ̀ Phis includes
the roof's shape, such as hipped, gambrel, and mansard; dec-
orative features such as cupolas, cresting chimneys, and
weathervanes; and roofing material such as slate, wood, clay
tile, and metal, as well as its size, color, and patterning.

Notecting and maintaining  roof by cleaning the gutters
and downspouts and replacing deteriorated flashing. Roof
sheathing should also be checked for proper venting to pre-
vent moisture condensation and water penetration; and to
ensure that materials are free from insect infestation.

Providing adequate anchorage for roofing material to guard
against wind damage and moisture penetration.

Protecting a leaking roof with plywood and building paper
until it can be properly repaired.

Not Reeommenkd

Radically changing, damaging, or destroying roofs which are
important in defining the overall historic character of the
building so that, as a result, the character is diminished.

Removing a major portion of the roof or roofing material
that is repairable, then reconstructing it with new material in
order to create a uniform, or "improved" appearance.

Changing the configuration of a roof by adding new features
such as dormer windows, vents, or skylights so that the his-
toric character is diminished.

Stripping the roof of sound historic material such as slate,
clay tile, wood, and architectural metal.

Applying paint or other coatings to roofing material which
has been historically uncoated.

Failing to clean and maintain gutters and downspouts prop-
erly so that water and debris collect and cause damage to roof
fasteners, sheathing, and the underlying structure.

Allowing roof fasteners, such as nails and clips to corrode so
that roofing material is subject to accelerated deterioration.

Permitting a leaking roof to remain unprotected so that accel-
erated deterioration of historic building materials—masonry,
wood, plaster, paint and structural members--occurs.
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Recommended

Repairinga roof by reinforcing the historic materials which
comprise roof features. Repairs will also generally include
the limited replacement in kind—or with compatible substi-
tute material—of those extensively deteriorated or missing
parts of features when there are surviving prototypes such
as cupola louvers, dentils, dormer roofing; or slates, tiles, or
wood shingles on a main roof.

Replacing in kind an entire feature of the roof that is too
deteriorated to repair—if the overall form and detailing are
still evident—using the physical evidence as a model to
reproduce the feature. Examples can include a large sec-
tion of roofing, or a dormer or chimney. If using the same
kind of material is not technically or economically feasible,
then a compatible substitute material may be considered.

Not Recommended

Replacing. an entire roof feature such as a cupola or dormer
when repair of the historic materials and limited replacement
of deteriorated or missing parts are appropriate.

Failing to reuse intact slate or the when only the roofing sub-
strate needs replacement.

Using a substitute material for the replacement pan that does
not convey the visual appearance of the surviving parts of the
roof or that is physically or chemically incompatible.

Removing a feature of the roof that is unrepairable, such as a
chimney or dormer, and not replacing it; or replacing it with
a new feature that does not convey the same visual appear-
ance.
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The following work is highlighted to indicate that it represents the particularly complex technical or design aspects of Rehabilitation
projects and should only be considered after the preservation concerns listed above have been addressed.

Recommended

Design for the Replacement of Missing Historic Features

Designing and constructing a new feature when the historic
feature is completely missing, such as chimney or cupola.
It may be an accurate restoration using historical, pictorial,
and physical documentation; or be a new design that is com-
patible with the size, scale, material, and color of the historic
building.

Altmtions/Adtiitions for the New Use

Installing mechanical and service equipment on the roof such
as air conditioning, anuformers, or solar collectors when
required for the new use so that they are inconspicuous from
the public right-of-way and do not damage or obscure char-
acter-defining features.

Designing additions to roofs such as residential, office, or
storage spaces; elevator housing; decks and terraces; or dorm-
ers or skylights when required by the new use so that they are
inconspicuous from the public right-of-way and do not dam-
age or obscure character-defining features.

Not Recommended

Creating a false historical appearance because the replaced
feature is based on insufficient historical, pictorial, and physi-
cal documentation.

Introducing a new roof feature that is incompatible in size,
scale, material and color.

Installing mechanical or service equipment so that it damages
or obscures character-defining features; or is conspicuous
from the public right-of-way.

Radically changing a character-defining roof shape or damag-
ing or destroying character-defining roofing material as a
result of incompatible design or improper installation tech-
niques.
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Building Exterior

Windows

Recommended

Identifying, retaining, and prestrvingwindows—and their
functional and decorative features—that are important in
defining the overall historic character of the building. Such
features can include frames, sash, muntins, glazing, sills,
heads, hoodmolds, panelled or decorated jambs and mold-
ings, and interior and exterior shutters and blinds.

Conducting an indepth survey of the condition of existing
windows early in rehabilitation planning so that repair and
upgrading methods and possible replacement options can be
fully explored.

Notecting and maintainingthe wood and architectural met-
als which comprise the window frame, sash, muntins, and
surrounds through appropriate surface treatments such as
cleaning, rust removal, limited paint removal, and reapplica-
tion of protective coating systems.

Making windows weathertight by re-caulking and replacing
or installing weatherstripping. These actions also improve
thermal efficiency.

Not Recommended

Removing or radically changing windows.which are impor-
tant in defining the historic character of the building so that,
as a result, the character is diminished.

Changing the number, location, size or glazing pattern of
windows, through cutting new openings, blocking-in win-
dows, and installing replacement sash that do not fit the his-
toric window opening.

Changing the historic appearance of windows through the
use of inappropriate designs, materials, finishes, or colors
which noticeably change the sash, depth of reveal, and
muntin configuration; the reflectivity and color of the glaz-
ing; or the appearance of the frame.

Obscuring historic window trim with metal or other
material.

Stripping windows of historic material such as wood, cast
iron, and bronze.

Replacing windows solely because of peeling paint, broken
glass, stack sash, and high air infiltration. These conditions,
in themselves, are no indication that windows are beyond
repair.

Failing to provide adequate protection of materials on a
cyclical basis so that deterioration of the window results.

Retrofitting or replacing windows rather than maintaining
the sash, frame, and glazing.
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Recommended

Evaluating the overall condition of materials to determine
whether more than protection and maintenance are required,
i.e. if repairs to windows and window features will be
required.

Repairingwindow frames and sash by patching, splicing,
consolidating or otherwise reinforcing. Such repair may also
include replacement in kind—or with compatible substitute
material—of those parts that are either extensively deteri-
orated or are missing when there are surviving prototypes
such as architraves, hoodmolds, sash, sills, and interior or
exterior shutters and blinds.

Replacing in kind an entire window that is too deteriorated to
repair using the same sash and pane configuration and other
design details. If using the same kind of material is not tech-
nically or economically feasible when replacing windows
deteriorated beyond repair, then a compatible substitute
material may be considered.

Not Recommended

Failing to undertake adequate measures to assure the protcc-
tion of historic windows.

Replacing an entire window when repair of materials and
limited replacement of deteriorated or missing parts are
appropriate.

I-ailing to reuse serviceable window hardware such as brass
sash lifts and sash locks.

Using substitute material for the replacement part that does
not convey the visual appearance of the surviving parts of the
window or that is physically or chemically incompatible.

Removing a character-defining window that is unrepairable
and blocking it in; or replacing it with a new window that
does not convey the same visual appearance.
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Rehabilitation

Thr following work is highlighted to indicate that it represents theparticularly complex technical or design aspects of Rehabilitation
projects and should only be considered after the preservation concerns listed above have been addressed.

Recommended

Design fior the Replacement of Missing Historic Feamm

Designing and installing new windows when the historic
windows (frames, sash and glazing) are completely missing.
The replacement windows may be an accurate restoration ..
using historical, pictorial, and physical documentation; or be
a new design that is compatible with the window openings
and the historic character of the building.

AltetationdAdditions for the New Use

Designing and installing additional windows on tear or other
non-character-defining elevations if required by the new use.
New window openings may also be cut into exposed parry
walls. Such design should be compatible with the overall
design of the building, but not duplicate the fenestration pat-
rem and detailing of a character-defining elevation.

Providing a setback in the design of dropped ceilings when
they are required for the new use to allow for the full height
of the window openings.

Not Recommended

Creating a false historical appearance because the replaced
window is based on insufficient historical, pictorial, and
physical documentation.

Introducing a new design that is incompatible with the his-
toric character of the building.

Installing new windows, including frames, sash, and muntin
configuration that are incompatible with the building's his-
toric appearance or obscure, damage, or des6 character-
defining features.

Inserting new floors or furred-down ceilings which cut across':
the glazed areas of windows so that the _ecterio r,foriri and ,
appearance of the windows are changed:
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(a) An armory coupler was rehabilitated for rental hornsit{K. (b) 1l,is
viers, of the rear elevation shows the paired, nine-over-nine wood srul, .
windows and high sillr that characterized the building. (c) After inap-
propriate rehabilitation work, the same rear elevation is shown with
new skylights added to the roof, prefabricated panels filling the former
brick areas, and new wood decks and privacyf aces. Because the toork
changed the historic character, the project did not meet the Standard.►.
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Building Exterior

Entrances and Porches

Recommended

Identifyink.retaininb andpreservingentrances and porches—
and their functional and decorative features—that are impor-
tant in defining the overall historic character of the building
such as doors, Fanlights, sidelights, pilaster, entablatures,
columns, balustrades, and stairs.

1'rotectingand maintaining the masonry, wood, and architec-
tural metals that comprise entrances and porches through
appropriate surface treatments such as cleaning, rust removal,
limited paint removal, and re-application of protective coating
systems.

Not Recommended

Removing or radically changing entrances and porches which
are important in defining the overall historic character of the
building so that, as a result, the character is diminished.

Stripping entrances and porches of historic material such as
wood, cast iron, terra cotta tile, and brick.

Removing an entrance or porch because the building has
been re-oriented to accommodate a new use.

Cutting new entrances on a primary elevation.

Altering utilitarian or service entrances so they appear to be
formal entrances by adding panelled doors, fanlights, and
sidelights.

Failing to provide adequate protection to materials on a cycli-
cal basis so that deterioration of entrances and porches results.

Evaluating the overall condition of materials to determine Failing to undertake adequate measures to assure the protec-
whether more than protection and maintenance are required, tion of historic entrances and porches.
that is, repairs to entrance and porch features will be necessary.

Repairing entrances and porches by reinforcing the historic
materials. Repair will also generally include the limited
replacement in kind—or with compatible substitute material—
of those extensively deteriorated or missing parts of repeated
features where there are surviving prototypes such as
balustrades, cornices, entablatures, columns, sidelights,
and stairs.

Replacing an entire entrance or porch when the repair of
materials and limited replacement of pans are appropriate.

Using a substitute material for the replacement parts that
does not convey the visual appearance of the surviving parts
of the entrance and porch or that is physically or chemically
incompatible.
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In Rehabilitation, deteriorated ferrtrcres sbotrld be repaired, wherever possible, card replaced when the severityof the dmaage makes it necessat)t

Here, a two-story porch is seen prior to treannert (left). 77re floor lioards tare rutted otrt tard the c•oharrrrs are in it state of colGrpse, supported Only by

crrcde, temporary shafts. Other components are in varying stages ofdecay. Appropriate work on the historic porch (right) included repairs to the

porch rails; and total replacement of the exteuively deteriorated cohrraas Lard floor boards. Some dismantling of the porch was necessary.
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Recommended

Replacing in kind an entire entrance or porch that is too dete-
riorated to repair—if the form and detailing are still evi-
dent—using the physical evidence as a model to reproduce
the feature. If using the same kind of material is not techni-
cally or economically feasible, then a compatible substitute
material may be considered.

Not Recommended

Removing an entrance or porch that is unrepairable and not
replacing it; or replacing it with a new entrance or porch that
does not convey the same visual appearance.

The following rvork is highlighted to indicate that it represents the particiekirly complex technical or design aspects of Rehabilitation
projects and should only be considered after the preservation concerns listed above have been addressed.

Recommended

Design for the RepLacement of Missing Historic Features

Designing and constructing a new entrance or porch when
the historic entrance or porch is completely missing. It may
be a restoration based on historical, pictorial, and physical
documentation; or be a new design that is compatible with
the historic character building.

Altemtions/Additions for the New Use

Designing enclosures for historic porches on secondary eleva-
tions when required by the new use in a manner that pre-
serves the historic character of the.building. This can include
using large sheets of glass and recessing the enclosure wall
behind existing scrollwork, posts, and balustrades.

Designing and installing additional entrances or porches on
secondary elevations when required for the new use in a man-
ner that preserves the historic character of the buildings, i.e.,
limiting such alteration to non-charaaer-defining elevations.

Not Recommended

Creating a false historical appearance because the replaced
entrance or porch is based on insufficient historical, pictorial,
and physical documentation. .

Introducing a new entrancc or porch that is incompatible in
size, scale, material, and color.

Enclosing porches in a manner that results in 
a 

diminution or
loss of historic character by using materials such as wood,
stucco, or masonry.

Installing secondary service entrances and porches that are
incompatible in size and scale with the historic building or
obscure, damage, or destroy character-defining features.
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Kehabilitauon

Building Exterior

Storefonts

Recommended

Identifying, retaining, and preserving storefronts—and their
functional and decorative features—that are important in
defining the overall historic character of the building such as
display windows, signs, doors, transoms, kick plates, corner
posts, and entablatures. The removal of inappropriate, non-
historic cladding, false mansard roofs, and other later alter-
ations can help reveal the historic character of a storefront.

Notecting and maintaining masonry, wood, and architec-
tural metals which comprise storefronts through appropriate
treatments such as cleaning, rust removal, limited paint
removal, and reapplication of protective coating systems.

Protecting storefronts against arson and vandalism before
work begins by boarding up windows and installing alarm
systems that are keyed into local protection agencies.

Evaluating the existing condition of storefront materials to
determine whether more than protection and maintenance
are required, that is, if repairs to features will be necessary.

Not Recommended

Removing or radically changing storefronts—and their fea-
tures—which are important in defining the overall historic
character of the building so that, as a result, the character is
diminished.

Changing the storefront so that it appears residential rather
than commercial in character.

Removing historic material from the storefront to create a
recessed arcade.

Introducing coach lanterns, mansard designs, wood shakes,
nonoperable shutters, and small-paned windows if they can-
not be documented historically.

Changing the location of a storefront's main entrance.

Failing to provide adequate protection of materials on a cycli-
cal basis so that deterioration of storefront features results.

Permitting entry into the building through unsecured or bro-
ken windows and doors so that interior features and finishes
are damaged by exposure to weather or vandalism.

Stripping storefronts of historic material such as wood, cast
iron, terra cotta, Carrara glass, and brick.

Failing to undertake adequate measures to assure the preser-
vation of the historic storefront.
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Recommended

Repairingstorefronts by reinforcing the historic materials.
Repairs will also generally include the limited replacement in
kind—or with compatible substitute materials—of those
extensively deteriorated or missing parts of storefronts where
there are surviving prototypes such as transoms, kick plates,
pilasters, or signs.

Replacingin kind an entire storefront that is too deteriorated
to repair—if the overall form and detailing are still evident—
using the physical evidence as a model. If using the same
material is not technically or economically feasible, then com-
patible substitute materials may be considered.

Not Recommended

Replacing an entire storefront when repair of materials and
limited replacement of its parts are appropriate.

Using substitute material for the replacement parts that does
not convey the same visual appearance as the surviving parts
of the storefront or that is physically or chemically incom-
patible.

Removing a storefront that is unrepairable and not replacing
it; or replacing it with a new storefront that does not convey
the same visual appearance.

the fo/losing work is highlighted to indicate that it represents the particularly complex technical or design aspects of Rehabilitation
projects and should only be considered after the preservation concerns listed above have been addressed.

Recommended

Design for the Replacement of Missing Historic Features

Designing and constructing a new storefront when the his-
toric storefront is completely missing. It may be an accurate
restoration using historical, pictorial, and physical documen-
tation; or be a new design that is compatible with the size,
scale, material, and color of the historic building.

Not Recommended

Creating a false historical appearance because the replaced
storefront is based on insufficient historical, pictorial, and
physical documentation.

Introducing a new design that is incompatible in size, sole,
material, and color.

Using inappropriately scaled signs and logos or other types of
signs that obscure, damage, or destroy remaining character-
defining features of the historic building.
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Rehabilitation
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ht the treatment, Rehabilitation, one option for repkicin,K inissinT his-

toric• features is to rise pictorial documentation and/or ph)'stcal er'idence
to re-cretite the historic feature. (ct) lit this example, the ornamental

cornice of rut 1866 limestone builclitrg u'tu ntilsitT; and the m n d
lerr/store%i•out had berm Citertitt'rly,iher'ell (b) and (c) Based nit the
dt'aibbility of phot(Vwphic rmd other doctmtentation, for or.t'urn were

ablr to accurately restore the cor'ntce,md stor'efi•ottr ro their historic con-

/kimition. A substitute tnarerial, /iberKbtss, u'as usrd to /itbricatc rhr

missing pressed metal cornice, an acceptable alter7tathr in this project.
All work met the Standards.
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Building Interior

Structural Systems

Recommended

Identifying, retaining, undRreservingstructural systems—
and individual features of systems—that are important in
defining the overall historic character of the building, such as
post and beam systems, trusses, summer beams, vigas, cast
iron columns, above-grade stone foundation walls, or load-
bearing brick or stone walls.

Noteetingand nurintainingthe structural system by cleaning
the roof'gutters and downspouts; replacing roof flashing;
keeping masonry, wood, and architectural metals in a sound
condition; and ensuring that structural members are free
from insect infestation.

Examining and evaluating the physical condition of the struc-
tural system and its individual features using non-destructive
techniques such as X-ray photography.

Not Recommended

Removing, covering, or radically changing visible features of
structural systems which are important in defining the overall
historic character of the building so that, as a result, the char-
acter is diminished.

putting a new use into the building which could overload the
existing structural system; or installing equipment or
mechanical systems which could damage the structure.

Demolishing a loadbearing masonry wall that could be aug-
mented and retained, and replacing it with a new wall (i.e.,
brick or stone), using the historic masonry only as an exterior
veneer.

Leaving known structural problems untreated such as deflec-
tion of beams, craeking'and bowing of walls, or-racking of
structural members.

Utilizing treatments or products that accelerate the deteriora-
tion of structural material such as introducing urea-formalde-
hyde foam insulation into frame walls.

Failing to provide proper building maintenance so that dete-
rioration of the structural system results. Causes of deteriora-
tion include subsurface ground movement, vegetation grow-
ing too close to foundation walls, improper grading, fungal
rot, and poor interior ventilation that results in condensation.

Utilizing destructive probing techniques that will damage or
destroy structural material.
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Rehabilitation

Recommended

Repairing the structural system by augmenting or upgrading
individual parts or features. For example, weakened structur-
al members such as floor framing can be paired with a new
member, braced, or otherwise supplemented and reinforced.

Replacingin kind---or with substitute material—those
portions or features of the structural system that are either
extensively deteriorated or are missing when there are surviv-
ing prototypes such as cast iron columns, roof rafters or
trusses, or sections of loadbearing walls. Substitute material
should convey the same form, design, and overall visual
appearance as the historic feature; and, at a minimum, be
equal to its loadbearing capabilities.

Not Recommended

Upgrading the building structurally in a manner that dimin-
ishes the historic character of the exterior, such as installing
strapping channels or removing a decorative cornice; or dam-
ages interior features or spaces.

Replacing a structural member or other feature of the struc-
tural system when it could be augmented and retained.

Installing a visible replacement feature that does not convey
the same visual appearance, e.g., replacing an exposed wood
summer beam with a steel beam.

Using substitute material that does not equal the loadbearing
capabilities of the historic material and design or is otherwise
physically or chemically incompatible.
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7bef llowing work is highlighted to indicate that it represents the particularly complex technical or design aspects of Rehabilitation
projects and should only be considered after the preservation concerns listed above have been addressed.

Rtcommendtd

Alteradons/Addidons for the New Use

limiting any new excavations adjacent to historic founda-
tions to avoid undermining the structural stability of the
building or adjacent historic buildings. Studies should be
done to ascertain potential damage to archeological resources.

Correcting structural deficiencies in preparation for the new
use in a manner that preserves the structural system and indi-
vidual character-defining features.

Designing and installing new mechanical or electrical systems
when required for the new use which minimize the number
of cutouts or holes in structural members.

Adding a new floor when required for the new use if such an
alteration does not damage or destroy the structural system or
obscure, damage, or destroy character-defining spaces, fea-
tures, or finishes.

Creating an atrium or a light well to provide natural light
when required for the new use in a manner that assures the
preservation of the structural system as well as character-
defining interior spaces, features, and finishes.

Not Reeommendtd

Carrying out excavations or regrading adjacent to or within a
historic building which could cause the historic foundation
to settle, shift, or fail; could have a similar effect on adjacent
historic buildings; or could destroy significant archeological
resources.

Radically changing interior spaces or damaging or destroying
features or finishes that are character-defining while trying to.
correct structural deficiencies in preparation for the new use.

Installing new mechanical and electrical systems or equip-
ment in a manner which results in numerous cuts, splices, or
alterations to the structural members.

Inserting a new floor when such a radical change damages a
structural system or obscures or destroys interior spaces, fea-
tures, or finishes.

Inserting new floors or furred-down ceilings which cut across
the glazed areas of windows so that the exterior form and
appearance of the windows are radically changed.

Damaging the structural system or individual features;
or radically changing, damaging, or destroying character-
defining interior spaces, features, or finishes in order to create
an atrium or.a light well.
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. Rehabilitation

Building Interior

Spaces, Features, and Finishes

Recommended

Interior Spaces

Identifying, retainink andpreservinga floor plan or interior
spaces that are important in defining the overall historic char-
acter of the building. This includes the size, configuration,
proportion, and relationship of rooms and corridors; the rela-
tionship of features to spaces; and the spaces themselves such
as lobbies, reception halls, entrance halls, doable parlors,
theaters, auditoriums, and important industrial or commer-
cial spaces.

Interior Features and Finishes

Idrntifying~ retaining, and preserving interior features and
finishes that are important in defining the overall historic
character of the building, including columns, cornices, base-
boards, fireplaces and mantels, panelling, light fixtures, hard-
ware, and flooring; and wallpaper, plaster, paint, and finishes
such as stencilling, marbling, and graining; and other decora-
tive materials that accent interior features and provide color,
texture, and patterning to walls, floors, and ceilings.

Not Recommendtd

Radically changing a floor plan or interior spaces—including
individual rooms—which are important in defining the over-
all historic character of the btuiding so that, as a result, the
character is diminished.

Altering the floor plan by demolishing principal walls and
partitions to create a new appearance.

Altering or destroying interior spaces by inserting floors, cut-
ting through floors, lowering ceilings, or adding or removing
walls.

Relocating an interior feature such as a staircase so that the
historic relationship between features and spaces is altered.

Removing or radically changing features and finishes which
are important in defining the overall historic character of the
building so that, as a result, the character is diminished.

Installing new decorative material that obscures or damages
character-defining interior features or finishes.

Removing paint, plaster, or other finishes from historically
finished surfaces to create a new appearance (e.g., removing
plaster to expose masonry surfaces such as brick walls or a
chimney piece).

Applying paint, plaster, or other finishes to surfaces that have
been historically unfinished to create a new appearance.

Stripping paint to bare wood rather than repairing or reapply-
ing grained or marbled finishes to features such as doors and
panelling.

Radically changing the type of finish or its color, such as
painting a previously varnished wood feature.
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Recommended

Notecting and maintaining masonry, wood, and architec-
tural metals which comprise interior features through appro-
priate surface treatments such as cleaning, rust removal,
limited paint removal, and reapplication of protective
coating systems.

Protecting interior features and finishes against arson and
vandalism before project work begins, erecting protective
fencing, boarding-up windows, and installing fire alarm
systems that are keyed to local protection agencies.

Protecting interior features such as a staircase, mantel, or dec-
orative finishes and wall coverings against damage during
project work by covering them with heavy canvas or plastic
sheets.

NOTE: USE ONLY FIRE RETARDANT
LUMBER

A

TSCREW FASTENER

37g EXISTING MARBLE
STAIR

Not Recommended

Failing to provide adequate protection to materials on a cycli-
cal basis so that deterioration of interior features results.

Permitting entry into historic buildings through unsecured or
broken windows and doors so that the interior features and
finishes are damaged by exposure to weather or vandalism.

Stripping interiors of features such as woodwork, doors, win-
dows, light fixtures, copper piping, radiators; or of decorative
materials.

Failing to provide proper protection of interior features and
finishes during work so that they are gouged, scratched, dent-
ed, or otherwise damaged.

518" OR 3/4" PLYWOOD
CONTINUOUS WALL
TO WALL

NOMINAL 2" PLANK
CONTINUOUS WALL
TO WALL

1" x 1" WOOD STOP
SCREWED TO TREAD

112" HOMASOTE
BOARD (OR SIMILAR
PRODUCT) EXTENDS
BEYOND EXISTING
NOSING

Historic features that character-
ize a building should always be
protected from damage during
rehabilitation work. The draw-
ing shows how a resilient, tem-
porary stair covering was
applied over the existing marble
staircase Drawing. National
Park Service staff,based on
material originally prepared by
L•mery Rath and Sons, PC.
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Recommended

Installing protective coverings in areas of heavy pedestrian
tragic to protect historic foatures such as wall coverings,
parquet flooring and panelling.

Removing damaged or deteriorated paints and finishes to
the next sound layer using the gentlest method possible,
then repainting or refinishing using compatible paint or
other coating systems.

Repainting with colors that are appropriate to the historic
building.

Limiting abrasive cleaning methods to certain industrial
warehouse buildings where the interior masonry or plaster
features do not have distinguishing design, detailing, tooling,
or finishes; and where wood features are riot finished, mold-
ed, beaded, or worked by hand. Abrasive cleaning should
only be considered after other, gentler methods have been
proven ineffective.

Evaluating the existing condition of materials to determine
whether more than protection and maintenance are required,
that is, if repairs to interior features and finishes will be neces-
sary.

Repairing interior features and finishes by reinforcing the his-
toric materials. Repair will also generally include the limited
replacement in kind—or with compatible substitute materi-
al—of those extensively deteriorated or missing parts of
repeated features when there are surviving prototypes such
as stairs, balustrades, wood panelling, columns; or decorative
wall coverings or ornamental tin or plaster ceilings.

Not Recommended

Failing to take new use patterns into consideration so that
interior features and finishes are damaged.

Using destructive methods such as propane or butane torches
or sandblasting to remove paint or other coatings. These
methods can irreversibly damage the historic materials that
comprise interior features.

Using new paint colors that are inappropriate to the historic
building.

Changing the texture and patina of character-defining
features through sandblasting or use of abrasive methods
to remove paint, discoloration or plaster. This includes both
exposed wood (including structural members) and masonry.

I-ailing to undertake adequate measures to assure the protec-
tion of interior features and finishes.

Replacing an entire interior feature such as a staircase,
panelled wall, parquet floor, or cornice; or finish such as a
decorative wall covering or ceiling when repair of materials
and limited replacement of such parts are appropriate.

Using a substitute material for the replacement part that
does not convey the visual appearance of the surviving parts
or portions of the interior feature or finish or that is phy-
sically or chemically incompatible.
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Recommended

Replac-irrgin kind ;in cmirc interior Ir;uurc• or finish that is
tcm dctcrioraicd to repair—i1' the overall li,nn and derailing

are still evident—using the physical evidence as a model fire

reproeluction. I•:x3111ples Could inrludc w;tinscotinf;, :t tin

ceiling, nr inicrior st;iirs. Il'usinl; tic s.unc kind of iiiatc•ri:rl is
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Not Recommended

Itentoving a character-defining Feature or finisli that is
unrepairable and not replacing it; or replacing it with a new
fr;iturc or finish that does not convey the same visual appear-
ance.
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Ae fisl/ou►itT work h highlighted to iudiratr that it repri-scuts the partirtilarly coutplrx trclutical or t/esitar luperts t f ' Rehabllltitio 1
projects and shoulel only Gr comideretl afier the preservation concerns listetl above haw been adth-essed.

Recommended

Design for the Replacement of Missing Historic Features

Designing and installing a new interior feature or finish if the
historic feature or finish is completely missing. This,could
include missing partitions, stairs, elevators, lighting fixtures,
and wall coverings; or even entire rooms if all historic spaces,
features, and finishes are missing or have been destroyed by
inappropriate "renovations." The design may he a restoration
based on historical, pictorial, and physical documentation; or
be a new design that is compatible with the historic character
of the building, district, or neighborhood.

Alterations/Additions for the New Use

Accommodating service functions such as bathrooms,
mechanical equipment, and office machines required by the
building's new use in secondary spaces such as first floor ser-
vice areas or on upper floors.

Reusing decorative material or features that have had to be
removed during the rehabilitation work including wall and
baseboard trim, door molding, panelled doors, and simple
wainscoting; and relocating such material or features in areas
appropriate to their historic placement.

Installing permanent partitions in secondary spaces; remov-
able partitions that do not destroy the sense of space should
be installed when the new use requires the subdivision of
character-defining interior space.

Enclosing an interior stairway where required by code so that
its character is retained. In many cases, glazed fire-rated walls
may be used.

Not &-commended

Creating a false historical appearance because the replaced
feature is based on insufficient physical, historical, and
pictorial documentation or on information derived from
another building.

Introducing anew interior feature or finish that is incompati-
ble with the scale, design, materials, color, and texture of the
surviving interior features and finishes.

Dividing rooms, lowering ceilings, and damaging or obscur-
ing character-defining features such as fireplaces, niches, stair-
ways or alcoves, so that a new use can be accommodated in
the building.

Discarding historic material when it can be reused within the
rehabilitation project or relocating it in historically inappro-
priate areas.

Installing permanent partitions that damage or obscure char-
acter-defining spaces, features, or finishes.

Enclosing an interior stairway with fire-rated construction so
that the stairwell space or any character-defining features are
destroyed.
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Reconrmended

Placing new code-required stairways or elevators in secondary
and service areas of the historic building.

Creating an atrium or a light well to provide natural light
when required for the new use in a manner that preserves
character-defining interior spaces, features, and finishes as
well as the structural system.

Adding a new floor if required for the new use in a manner
that preserves character-defining structural features, and
interior spaces, features, and finishes.

Not Recommended

Radically changing, damaging, or destroying character-defin-
ing spaces, features, or finishes when adding new code-
required stairways and elevators.

Destroying character-defining interior spaces, features, or
Finishes; or damaging the structural system in order to create
an atrium or light well.

Inserting a new floor within a building that alters or destroys
die fenestration; radically changes a character-defining interi-
or space; or obscures, damages, or destroys decorative
detailing.
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Building Interior

Mechanical Systems: Heating, Air Conditioning, electrical, and Plumbing

Recommended Neu Recommended

Identifying, retainiitg, and presertu~rgvisiblc features of early
mechanical systems that are important in defining the overall
historic character of the building, such as radiators, vents,
fans, grilles, plumbing fixtures, switchplaws, and lights.

Protecting tind  mitinuiningmechanical, pluntl,ing, and clec-
trical systems and their feaunes 1111-0111;11 cyclical cleaning and
other appropriate measures.

Preventing accelerated deterioration of tnedlanical systems by
providingadequate ventilation ofattics, crawlspaces, and cel-
lars so that moisture problems are avoided.

Improving (lie energy elliciency of existing mechanical sys-
tems to help reduce the need for elaborate new ctlolpment.
Consideration should be given to installing %torn windows,
insulating attic crawl space, or adding awnings, il'appropri-
ate.

Repairingmechanical systems by augmenting; or upgrading
system parts, such as installing new pipes and ducts; rewiring;
or adding new compressors or boilers.

Replacingin kind—or with compatible substitute material—
those visible features of mechanical systems that are either
extensively deteriorated or are prototypes such as ceiling li►ns,
switchplates, radiators, grilles, or plumbing fixtures.

Removing or radically changing features of mcclianIcal
systen►s that are important in defining the overall historic
character of the building so that, as a result, the character is
diminished.

Filling to provide adctluatc protection of materials on .t cy'.li-
cal basis so that deterioration of mechanical systems and [licit'
visible features results.

Enclosing mechanical systems in areas that :ire not a dequatcly
venn mcd so that deterioration  oftlic systems results.

Installing unnecessary air conditioning or climate control
systems which can add excessive moisture to the building.
This additional moisture can either condense inside. damag-
ing it s11rli►ces, or pass through interior walls to the
exterior, potentially damaging adjacent materials as it
migrates.

Replacing :1 mechanical system or its functional parts %-thin it
could be upgraded and retained.

Installing a visible replacement Icature that does not COM10'
tic same visual appearance.
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%he follottvnt+r work 1+ 1) ~hli~bted to indicate that it represents the papyicularly complex technical or design aspects of Rehabilitation
projeru ,nrd should only he considerrd ee f ier the preservation concerns listed ,dove have been addressed

Rerommende d

Alterations/Additions for die New Use

Installing a completely new mechanical system if required for
the new use so that it causes the least alteration possible to the
building's floor plan, the exterior elevations, and the least
damage to the historic building material.

Providing adequate structural support. for new mechanical
equipment.

Installing the vertical runs of ducts, pipes, and cables in
closets, service rooms, and wall cavities.

Installing air conditioning units if required by the new use in
such a manner that historic features are not damaged or
obscured and excessive moisture is not generated that will
accelerate deterioration of historic materials.

Installing hearing/air conditioning units in the window
frames in such a manner that the sash and frames are protect-
ed. Window installations should be considered only when all
other viable heating/cooling systems would result in signifi-
cant damage to historic materials.

Not Recommendtd .

Installing a new mechanical system so that character-defining
structural or interior features are radically changed, damaged,
or destroyed.

Falling to consider the weight and design of new mechanical
equipment so that, as a result, historic structural members or
finished surfaces are weakened or cracked.

Installing vertical runs of ducts, pipes, and cables in places
where they will obscure character-defining features.

Concealing mechanical equipment in walls or ceilings in
a manner that requires the removal of historic building
material.

Installing a "dropped" acoustical ceiling to hide mechanical
equipment when this destroys the proportions of character-
defining interior spaces.

Cutting through features such as masonry walls in order to
install air conditioning units.

Radically changing the appearance of the historic building or
damaging or destroying windows by installing heating/air
conditioning units in historic window frames.
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Rehabilitation

Building Site

Recommended

Identifying, retaining, and pwsendnglnaildings ;and their fea-
tures as well as lcatures of the site that are important in defin-
ing its overall historic character. Site features may include cir-
culation systems such as walks, paths, roads, or parking; vege-
tation such as trees, shruhs, fields, or herbaceous plant mater-
ial; Iandfornis such as terracing, berms or grading; linrnishings
such as lights, fences, or benches; decorative elements such as
sculpture, statuary or monuments; +voter featmes including;
fountains, streams, pools, or lakes; and subsurface archeologi-
cal features which are important in defining the history of the
site.

Retaining the historic relationship between buildings and the
landscape.

1'rotectiugaud ►►►uiurai►►iughuildings and the site by provid-
ing proper drainage to assure that water does not erode Inun-
dation walls; brain toward the building; or damage or erode
the landscape.

Minimising; disturbance of terrain around buildings or else-
where on the site, thus reducing, the possibility of destroying
or damaging; important landscape Irattures or archeological

Not Recommended

Removing or radically changing, buildings and their leattres
or site lcatures which ;are important in defining the overall
historic character of the property so that, as a result, the char-
acter is diminished.

Removing or relocating buildings or landscape Icaratres, thus
destroying the historic relationship between buildings and the
landscape.

Removing or relocating; historic buildings on a site or in a
complex of related historic structures—such as a 111111 com-
plex or farm—thus diminishing; the historic character of the
site or complex.

Moving buildings onto the site, thus creating a lalse historical
ap pea ralice.

Radically changing; the grade level Of tlae site. For example,
changing the grade adjacent to a building to permit develop-
ment ofa formerly lhelow-grade ,area that would drastically
change the historic relationship of the b►nilding to its site.

Failing to naaincain adequate site drainage so that huiltlings
and site fcaures are damaged or destroyed; or alternatively.
changing the site grading; so that water no longer drains
properly.

Introducing heave machinery into areas where it mate disturb
or damage important landscape features or archeological
resourccs.

resources.



Recomunended Not 
Recommended! 4

Surveying and documenting areas where the terrain will be
altered to determine the potential impact to important land-
scape features or archeological resources.

Protecting, e.g., preserving in place important archeological
resources.

Planning and carrying our any necessary investigation cuing
professional archeologists and modern archeological methods
when preservation in place is not feasible.

Preserving important landscape features, including ongoing
maintenance of historic plant material.

Protecting the building and landscape features againsr arson
and vandalism before rehabilitation work begins, i.e., erecting
protective fencing and installing alarm systems that are keyed
into local protection agencies.

Providing continued protection of historic building materials
and plant features through appropriate cleaning, rust
removal, limited paint removal, and re-application of protec-
tive coating systems; and pruning and vegetation manage-
ment.

Evaluating the overall condition of the materials and features
of the property to determine whether more than protection
and maintenance are required, that is, if repairs to building
and site features will be necessary.

Failing to survey the building site prior to the beginning of
rehabilitation work which results in damage to, or destruc-
tion of, important landscape features or archeological
resources.

Leaving known archeological material unprotected so that it
is damaged during rehabilitation work.

Permitting unqualified personnel to perform data recovery on
archeological resources so that improper methodology results
in the loss of important archeological material.

Allowing important landscape features to be lost or damaged
due to a lack of maintenance:

Permitting the property to remain unprotected so that the
building and landscape features or archeological resources are
damaged or destroyed.

Removing or destroying features from the building or site
such as wood siding, iron fencing, masonry balustrades, or
plant material.

Failing to provide adequate protection of materials on a
cyclical basis so that deterioration of building and site features
results.

Failing to undertake adequate measures to assure the protec-
tion of building and site features.
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Recommrrdid Not Recommended

Repairing features of the building and site by reinforcing his- Replacing an entire feature of the building or site such as a
toric materials. fence, walkway, or driveway when repair of materials and

limited compatible replacement of deteriorated or missing
parts are appropriate.

Replacing in kind an entire feature of the building or site that
is too deteriorated to repair if the overall form and detailing
are still evident. Physical evidence from the deteriorated fea-
ture should be used as a model to guide the new work. This
could include an entrance or porch, walkway, or fountain. If
using the same kind of material is not technically or econom-
ically feasible, then a compatible substitute material may be
considered.

Replacing deteriorated or damaged landscape features in
kind.

Using a substitute material for the replacement part that does
not convey the visual appearance of the surviving parts of the
building or site feature or that is physically or chemically
incompatible.

Removing a feature of the building or site that is unrepairable
and not replacing it; or replacing it with a new feature that
does not convey the same visual appearance.

Adding conjectural landscape features to the site such as
period reproduction lamps, fences, fountains, or vegetation
that are historically inappropriate, thus creating a false sense
of historic development.
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7he_/allouwT work is hi~hh, kited to indicate that it represents the particulars y complex technical or design aspects of Rehabilitation
project work rn d shotdtl only he considered alter the preservation e-oncer►ts listed above have been addressed.

Recommended

Design for the Replacement of Missing Historic Features

Designing and constructing a new feature of a building or
site when the historic feature is completely missing, such as
an outbuilding, rermce, or driveway. It may be based on his-
torical, pictorial, and physical documentation; or be a new
design that is compatible with the historic character of the
building and site.

Alterations/Additions for the New Use

Designing new onsite parking, loading docks, or ramps
when required by the new use so that they are as unobtrusive
as possible and assure the preservation of the historic relation-
ship between the building or buildings and the landscape.

Designing new exterior additions to historic buildings
or adjacent new construction which is compatible with
the historic character of die site and which preserves the
historic relationship between the building or buildings
and the landscape.

Removing non-significant buildings, additions, or site
features which detract from the historic character of the site.

Not Recommended

Creating a false historical appearance because the replaced
feature is based on insufficient historical, pictorial, and physi-
cal documentation.

Introducing a new building or site feature that is out of scale
or of .in otherwise inappropriate design.

Introducing a new landscape feature, including plant materi-
al, that is visually incompatible with the site, or that alters or
destroys the historic site patterns or vistas.

Locating any new construction on the building site in a
location which contains important landscape features or
open space, for example removing a lawn and walkway and
installing a parking lot.

Placing parking facilities directly adjacent to historic build-
ings where automobiles may cause damage to the buildings
or landscape features, or be intrusive to the building site.

Introducing new construction onto the building site which is
visually incompatible in terms of size, scale, design, materials,
color, and texture; which destroys historic relationships on
the site; or which damages or destroys important landscape
features.

Removing a historic building in a complex of buildings; or
removing a building feature, or a landscape feature which"is
important in defining the historic character of die site.
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Setting (District/Neighborhood)

Recommend rd

Identifying rrtaining, and prrservingbuil ding and landscape
features which are important in defining the historic charac-
ter of the setting. Such features can include roads and streets,
furnishings such as lights or benches, vegetation, gardens and
yards, adjacent open space such as fields, parks, commons or
woodlands, and important views or visual relationships.

Retaining the historic relationship between buildings and
landscape features of the setting. For example, preserving the
relationship between a town common and its adjacent 

his-toric houses, municipal buildings, historic roads, and land-
scape features.

Protectingand mairrtairringhistoric building materials and
plant features through appropriate cleaning, rust removal,
limited paint removal, and reapplication of protective coating
systems; and pruning and vegetation management.

Protecting building and landscape features such as lighting or
trees, against arson and vandalism before rehabilitation work
begins by erecting protective fencing and installing alarm sys-
tems that are keyed into local protection agencies.

Evaluating the overall condition of the building and land-
scape features to determine whether more than protection
and maintenance are required, that is, if repairs to features
will be necessary.

Not Recommended

Removing or radically changing those features of the setting
which are important in defining the historic character.

Destroying the relationship between the buildings and land-
scape features within the setting by widening existing streets,
changing landscape materials or constructing inappropriately
located new streets or parking.

Removing or relocating historic buildings or landscape
features, thus destroying their historic relationship within
the setting.

Failing to provide adequate protection of materials on a
cyclical basis which results in the deterioration of building
and landscape features. .

Permitting the building and setting to remain unprotected so
that interior or exterior features are damaged.

Stripping or removing features from buildings or the setting
such as wood siding, iron fencing, terra cotta balusters, or
Plant material.

Failing to undertake adequate measures to assure the protec-
tion of building and landscape features.
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Recommender/

Repairing features of the building and landscape by reinforc-
ing the historic materials. Repair will also generally include
the replacement in kind—or with a compatible substitute
material—of those extensively deteriorated or n)issin~ parts of
features when there.are surviving prototypes suds as porch
bahtstrades or paving materials.

Repairing in kind an entire feature of the building or land-
scape that is too deteriorated to repair— when the overall
firm and detailing arc still evident —using the physical evi-
dence as a model to guide the new work. If using the same
kind of material is not technically or economically feasible,
then a compatible substitute material may be considered.

Not Recommended

Replacing an entire feature of the building or landscape when
repair of naterials and limited replacement of deteriorated or
missing parts are appropriate.

Using a substitute material for the replacement part that does
nor convey the visual appearance of the surviving parts of the
building or landscape, or that is physically, chemically, or eco-
logically incompatible.

Removing a feature of the building or landscape that is unre-
pairable and not replacing it; or replacing it with a new fea-
ture that does not convey the same visual appearance.
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Recommended

Design for the RepLwxrnent of Missing Historic Features

Designing and constructing a new feature of the building or
landscape when the historic feature is completely missing,
such as row house steps, a porch, a streetlight, or terrace. It
may be a restoration based on documentary or physical evi-
dence; or be a new design that is compatible with the historic
character of the setting.

Alterations/Additions for the New Use

Designing required new parking so that it is as unobtrusive as
possible, thus minimizing the effect on the historic character
of die setting. "Shared" parking should also be planned so .
that several businesses can utilize one parking area as opposed
to introducing random, multiple lots.

Designing and constructing new additions to historic build-
ings when required by the new use. New work should be
compatible with the historic character of the setting in terms
of size, scale design, material, color, and texture.

Removing nonsignificant buildings, additions or landscape
features which detract from the historic character of the set-
ting.

Not Recommended

Creating a false historical appearance because the replaced
feature is based on insufficient documentary or physical evi-
dcncc.

Introducing a new building or landscape feature that is out of
scale or otherwise inappropriate to the setting's historic char-
acter, e.g., replacing picket fencing with chain link fencing.

Placing parking facilities directly adjacent to historic build-
ings which result in damage to historic landscape features,
such as the removal of plant material, relocation of paths and
walkways, or blocking of alleys.

Introducing new construction into historic districts that is
visually incompatible or,that destroys historic relationships
within the setting.

Removing a historic building, building feature, or landscape
feature that is important in defining the historic character of
the setting.
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if d rear elerattion of *a Historic building is distinctive and highly
nimble in the neighborhood, ahering it may not meet the Stanekirds.
(a dud b) T his .i-story brick rorohouse fraturrtl a seco d story gallery
and brick kitchen ruing rharacteristic of other residences in thr district
which backed onto a connecting roadway. (c) In the rehabilitation,
the wine and gal/ey mere demolished acrd a large addition co stnrcted
/All severely impacted the buildings historic form and character.

Setting 10
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Although thr work in these sectiouu is quite often an important aspect of rehabilitation projects, it is usually not part of the overall
process of preserving cliaractrr-defining features (maintenance, repair, repkicement), rather, such work a assesred for its potential neg-
ative impact on the building's historic cliaractrr. For this reason, particular care must be taken not to obscure, radically change,
damage, or destroy character-defining features in the process of rehabilitation work.

Energy Efficiency

Recommended

Masonry/Wood/Architectural Metals

Installing thermal insulation in attics and in unheated cellars
and crawlspaces to increase the efficiency of the existing
mechanical systems.

Not Recommended

Applying thermal insulation with a high moisture content in
wall cavities which may damage historic fabric.

Installing insulating material on the inside of masonry walls Installing wall insulation without considering its effect on
to increase energy efficiency where there is no character- interior molding or other architectural detailing.
defining interior molding around the windows or other inte-
rior architectural detailing.

Windows

Utilizing the inherent energy conserving features of a build-
ing by maintaining windows and louvered blinds in good
operable condition for natural ventilation.

Improving thermal efficiency with weatherstripping, storm
windows, caulking, interior shades, and if historically appro-
priate, blinds and awnings.

Installing interior storm windows with air-tight gaskets, ven-
tilating holes, and/or removable clips to ensure proper main-
tenance and to avoid condensation damage to historic win-
dows.

Installing exterior storm windows which do not damage or
obscure the windows and frames.

Removing historic shading devices rather than keeping them
in an operable condition.

Replacing historic multi-paned sash with new thermal sash
utilizing false muntins.

Installing interior storm windows that allow moisture to
accumulate and damage the window.

Installing new exterior storm windows which are inappro-
priatc in size or color.

Replacing windows or transoms with fixed thermal glazing
or permitting windows and transoms to remain inoperable
rather than utilizing them for their energy conserving
potential.
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Recommended Not Recommendrd i

Entrances and Porches

Maintaining porches and double vestibule entrances so that Changing the historic appearance of the building by enclos-
they can retain heat or block the sun and provide natural ven- ing porches. f
tilation. i

Interior Features

Retaining historic interior shutters and transoms for their Removing historic interior features which play an energy con-
inherent energy conserving features. serving role.

Mechanical Systems

Improving'energy efficiency of existing mechanical systems Replacing existing mechanical systems that could be repaired
by installing insulation in attics and basements. for continued use.

Building Site

Retaining plant materials, trees, and landscape features which Removing plant materials, trees, and landscape features that
perform passive solar energy functions such as sun shading perform passive solar energy functions.
and wind breaks.

Setting (District/Neighborhood)

Maintaining those existing landscape features which moder- Stripping the setting of landscape features and landforms so
ate the effects of the climate on the setting such as deciduous that effects of the wind, rain, and sun result in accelerated 

i

trees, evergreen wind-blocks, and lakes or ponds. deterioration of the historic building.

New Additions to Historic Buildings

Placing a new addition that maybe necessary to increase Designing a new addition which obscures, damages, or
energy efficiency on non-character-defining elevations. destroys character-defining features.
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New Additions to Historic Buildings

Recommended

Placing fitnctions and services required for the new use in
non-character-defining interior spaces rather than construct-
ing a new addition.

Constructing a new addition so that there is the least possible

loss of historic materials and so that character-defining fea-

tures are not obscured, damaged, or destroyed.

Designing a new addition in a manner that stakes clear what

is historic and what is new.

Not Recommended

Expanding the size of the historic building by constructing a
new addition when the new use could be met by altering
non-character-defining interior spaces.

Attaching a new addition so that the character-defining fea-

tures of the historic building are obscured, damage(], or
destroyed.

Duplicating the exact form, material, style, and detailing of'
the historic building in a new addition so that the new work
appears to be part of the historic building.

Imitating a historic style or period of architecture in a new
addition.
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Rtcommended Not Recommended It

Considering the design for an attached exterior addition in
terms of its relationship to the historic building as well as the
historic district or neighborhood. Design for the new work
may be contemporary or may reference design motifs from
the historic building. In either case, it should always be clear-
ly differentiated from the historic building and be compatible
in terms of mass, materials, relationship of solids to voids,
and color.

Placing a new addition on a non-character-defining elevation
and limiting the size and scale in relationship to the historic
building.

Designing a rooftop addition when required for the new use,
that is set back from the wall plane and as inconspicuous as
possible when viewed from the street.

Designing and constructing new additions that result in the
diminution or loss of the historic character of the resource,
including its design, materials, workmanship, location, or
setting.

Designing a new addirion .char obscures, damages, or destroys
characrer-defining features of the historic building.

Constructing a rooftop addition.so that the historic appear-
ance of the building is radically changed.
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Accessibility Considerations

Recommended

Identifying the historic building's character-defining spaces,
features, and finishes so that accessibility code-required work
will not result in their damage or loss.

Complying with barrier-free access requirements, in such a
manner that character-defining spaces, features, and finishes
are preserved.

Working with local disability groups, access specialists, and
historic preservation specialists to determine the most appro-
priate solution to access problems.

Providing barrier-free access that promotes independence for
the disabled person to the highest degree practicable, while
preserving significant historic features.

Designing new or additional means of access that are com-
patible with the historic building and its setting.
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Not Recommrndrd

Undertaking code-required alterations before identifying
those spaces, features, or finishes which arc character-defining
and must therefore be preserved.

Altering, damaging, or destroying character-defining features
in attempting to comply with accessibility requirements.

Making changes to buildings without first seeking expert
advice from access specialists and historic preservationists, to
determine solutions.

Making access modifications that do not provide a reasonable
balance between independent, safe access and preservation of
historic features.

`Designing new or additional means of access without consid-
ering the impact on the historic building and its setting.

Making a building accettible to the public u a ►rquirentent under the
Americmu with Ditabilitiet Act of 1990, whatever the trramtent.
lull, partial or alternative approachet to accenibility dependf upo►t the
hittorical rignifrcance of a building and the ability to make changrr.
In there exanrplex, threihokh that exceed allowable heiglur were modi-
fied rrveral wayr to increme acctftibility without jeopardizing the bit-
torie character. Drawing: Uniform Federal Acctuibility .Standard
(UTAS) Retrofit Manual.



Kehabilitauon

Health and Safety Comsiderations

Recommended

Identifying the historic building's character-defining spaces,
features, and finishes so that code-required work will not
result in their damage or loss.

Complying with health and safety codes, including seismic
code requirements, in such a manner that character-defining
spaces, features, and finishes are preserved.

Removing toxic building materials only after thorough test-
ing has been conducted and only after less invasive abatement
methods have been shown to be inadequate.

Providing workers with appropriate personal protective
equipment for hazards found in the worksite.

Working with local code officials to investigate systems,
methods, or devices of equivalent or superior effectiveness
and safety to those prescribed by code so that unnecessary
alterations can be avoided.

Upgrading historic stairways and elevators to meet health and
safety codes in a manner that assures their preservation, i.e.,
so that they are not damaged or obscured.

Installing sensitively designed fire suppression systems, such
as sprinkler systems that result in retention of historic features
and finishes.

Applying fire-retardant coatings, such as intumescent paints,
which expand during fire to add thermal protection to steel.

Adding a new stairway or elevator to meet health and safety
codes in a manner that preserves adjacent character-defining
features and spaces.

Placing a code-required stairway or elevator that cannot be
accommodated within the historic building in a new exterior
addition. Such an addition should be on an inconspicuous
elevation.

Not Recommended

Undertaking code-required alterations to a building or site
before identifying those spaces, features, or finishes which are
character-defining and must therefore be preserved.

Altering, damaging, or destroying character-defining spaces,
features, and finishes while making modifications to a build-
ing or site to comply with safety codes.

Destroying historic interior features and finishes without
careful testing and without considering less invasive abate-
rnenr rnethods.

Removing unhealthful building materials without regard to
personal and environmental safety.

Making changes to historic buildings without first exploring
equivalent health and safety systems, methods, or devices
that may be less damaging to historic spaces, features, and
finishes.

Damaging or obscuring historic stairways and elevators or
altering adjacent spaces in the process of doing work to meet
code requirements.

Covering character-defining wood features with fire-resistant
sheathing which results in altering their visual appearance.

Using fire-retardant coatings if they damage or obscure
character-defining features.

Radically changing, damaging, or destroying character-defin-
ing spaces, features, or finishes when adding a new code-
required stairway or elevator.

Constructing a new addition to accommodate code-required
stairs and elevators on character-defining elevations highly
visible from the street; or where it obscures, damages, or
destroys character-defining features.



OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ATTORNEY

Douglas M. Duncan
County Executive

January 14, 2004

Renata M. Gould
9904 Colesville Road
Silver Spring, Maryland 20901

RE: Appeal of HPC Decision to Deny an Historic Area Work Permit

Dear Ms. Gould:

Charles W. Thompson, Jr.
County Attorney

Enclosed please find the County's prehearing statement. This statement is filed in
preparation for our hearing before the Board of Appeals on Wednesday, January 4, 2004 at 1:30
p.m.

As you know, at our prehearing conference before the Board of Appeals on January 7,
2004, the Board requested that you, too, file a prehearing statement. Your prehearing statement
does not need to resemble mine — it can be whatever you deem pertinent and important to the
presentation of your appeal. Your prehearing statement should be mailed or hand-delivered to
the Board of Appeals so that it is received by close of business on Monday, January 26, 2004.
The address for the Board of Appeals is: 100 Maryland Avenue, Room 217, Rockville,
Maryland, 20850.

A copy of your prehearing statement must also be sent to me at: 101 Monroe Street, 
,rd

Floor, Rockville, Maryland 20850.

As you can see, my prehearing statement does not include the. names of two of the
witnesses I intend to call during the presentation of my case. Unfortunately, I was unable to
determine the identity of those witnesses by the filing deadline for my prehearing statement. I
will provide those names to you as soon as possible. it would be helpful to me if you would
provide me with your telephone or fax numbers and e-mail address so that we can communicate
more easily.

You can reach me at: 240-777-6716 (direct dial); 240-777-6705 (fax); and e-mail
address: vickie.gaul(7montgomerycountymd.gov.

Finally, when we met last week, you requested documents concerning the historic

101 Monroe Street, Rockville, Maryland 20850-2540.240-777-6716•TTD 240-777-2545•Fax 240-777-6705
vickie.gaul@montgomerycountymd.gov



Renata M. Gould

January 14, 2004
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designation of your house. As Gwen Wright informed you, those documents, if available at all,
are in the HPC archives. Ms. Wright and her staff are working on obtaining the information for
you, but I can not promise that it will be available to you by the hearing date. We will try our
best.

Thank you.

Very truly yours,

Vickie L. Gaul
Associate County Attorney

Enclosures

cc: Board of Appeals /
Michele Naru
Gwen Wright

101 Monroe Street, Rockville, Maryland 20850-2540. 240-777-6716•TTD 240-777-2545 • Fax 240-777-6705
vickie.gaul@montgomerycountymd.us i
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Chapter 24A. HISTORIC RESOURCES PRESERVATION.*

§ 24A-1. Purpose.

§ 24A-2. Definitions.

§ 24A-3. Master plan for historic preservation; criteria for designation of historic sites or districts.

§ 24A-4. Historic preservation commission.

§ 24A-5. Same—Powers and duties.

§ 24A-6. Historic area work permits—Generally.

§ 24A-7. Historic area work permits—Application procedures; appeals.

§ 24A-8. Same—Criteria for issuance.

§ 24A-9. Demolition by neglect.

j § 24A-10. Moratorium on alteration or demolition.

§ 24A-11. Violations and penalties.

§ 24A-12. Severability.

§ 24A-13. Historic preservation easement program.

Sec. 24A-1. Purpose.

It is the purpose of this chapter to provide for the identification, designation and regulation, for
purposes of protection, preservation and continued use and enhancement, of those sites, structures with
their appurtenances and environmental settings, and districts of historical, archeological, architectural or
cultural value in that portion of the county which is within the Maryland-Washington Regional District.
Its further purpose is to preserve and enhance the quality of life in the county, safeguard the historical
and cultural heritage of the county, strengthen the local economy, stabilize and improve property values
in and around such historical areas, foster civic beauty and to preserve continued utilization and pleasure
of the citizens of the county, the state, and the United States of America. (Ord. No. 9-4, § 1; Ord. No. I l -
59.)

*Cross reference—Historic preservation tax credit, § 52-41 et seq.
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Sec. 24A-2. Definitions.

For the purposes of this Chapter, the following words and phrases have the following meanings:

Appurtenances and environmental setting: The entire parcel, as of the date on which the historic
resource is designated on the master plan, and structures thereon, on which is located an historic
resource, unless reduced by the District Council or the commission, and to which it relates physically
and/or visually. Appurtenances and environmental settings shall include, but not be limited to, walkways
and driveways (whether paved or not), vegetation (including trees, gardens, lawns), rocks, pasture,
cropland and waterways.

Board: The County Board of Appeals of Montgomery County.

Commission: The historic preservation commission of Montgomery County as described
hereinafter.

Demolition by neglect: The failure to provide ordinary and necessary maintenance and repair to
an historic site or an historic resource within an historic district, whether by negligence or willful neglect,
purpose or design, by the owner or any party in possession of such a site, which results in any of the
following conditions:

- (a) The deterioration of exterior features so as to create or permit a hazardous or unsafe
condition to exist.

(b) The deterioration of exterior walls, roofs, chimneys, windows, the lack of adequate
waterproofing or deterioration of interior features or foundations which will or could
result in permanent damage, injury or loss of or to the exterior features.

Director: The Director of the Department of Permitting Services, or the Director's designee.

Exterior features: The architectural style, design and general arrangement of the exterior of an
historic resource, including the color, nature and texture of building materials, and the type of style of all
windows, doors, light fixtures, signs or other similar items found on or related to the exterior of an
historic resource.

Historic district: A group of historic resources which are significant as a cohesive unit and
contribute to the historical, architectural, archeological or cultural values within the Maryland-
Washington Regional District and which has been so designated in the master plan for historic
preservation.
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Historic resource: A district, site, building, structure or object, including its appurtenances and
environmental setting, which is significant in national, state or local history, architecture, archeology or
culture. This includes, but is not limited to, all properties on the "Locational Atlas and Index of Historic
Sites in Montgomery County."

Historic site: Any individual historic resource that is significant and contributes to the historical,
architectural, archeological or cultural values within the Maryland-Washington Regional District and
which has been so designated in the master plan for historic preservation.

Permit: An historic area work permit issued by the Director authorizing work on an historic site
or an historic resource located within an historic district.

Planning Board; The Montgomery County Planning Board of the Maryland-National Capital
Park and Planning Commission.

Preservation easement means an easement held by the County to protect, maintain, or otherwise
conserve an historic resource. (Ord. No. 9-4, § 1; 1989 L.M.C., ch. 4, § 1; Ord. No. 11-59; Ord. No. 13-
37, § 1; Ord. No. 13-114, § 1; Ord. No. 14-38, § 1; 14-51, § 1.)

Sec. 24A-3. Master plan for historic preservation; criteria for designation of historic sites or
districts.

(a) As part of the general plan for the physical development of that portion of the county
within the Maryland-Washington Regional District, there shall be prepared, adopted and
approved a master plan for historic preservation which shall constitute an amendment to
the general plan for the Maryland-Washington Regional District. Such plan shall
designate historic sites and historic districts and describe their boundaries; it shall
propose means for the integration of historic preservation into the planning process; and
it shall suggest other measures to advance the goals of historic preservation.

(b) In considering historic resources for designation as historic sites or historic districts, the
planning board shall apply the following criteria:

August 2002

(1) Historical and cultural significance. The historic resource:

a. Has character, interest or value as part of the development, heritage or
cultural characteristics of the county, state or nation;

b. Is the site of a significant historic event;

Is identified with a person or a group of persons who influenced society;
or

d. Exemplifies the cultural economic, social, political or historic heritage of
the county and its communities.
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(2) Architectural and design significance. The historic resource:

a. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period or method of
construction;

Represents the work of a master;

C. Possesses high artistic values;

d. Represents a significant and distinguishable entity whose components
may lack individual distinction; or

C. Represents an established and familiar visual feature of the
neighborhood, community or county due to its singular physical
characteristic or landscape. (Ord. No. 9-4, § 1; Ord. No. 11-59.)

Sec. 24A-4. Historic preservation commission.

(a) Created. There is hereby created a commission to be known as the "historic preservation
commission of Montgomery County, Maryland."

- (b) Membership. The commission shall consist of 9 members appointed by the county
executive with the confirmation of the county council. Each member must be 

a resident
of the county. The 4 fields of history, architecture, preservation and urban design shall be
represented by a minimum of 1 member qualified by special interest, knowledge or
training. The remaining members of the commission shall, to the extent possible, be
selected to represent the geographical, social, economic and cultural concerns of the
residents of the county.

(c) Officers. The county executive shall appoint the chairman and vice-chairman of the
commission, who shall serve at his pleasure, but such appointments occurring after the
commission's first year of operation shall be made after due consideration has been given
to the recommendation of the commission.

(d) Term. The terms of the members of the commission shall be for a three-year period and
members shall continue to serve until their successors are appointed and qualified.
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(e) Vacancy. Any vacancy in the membership of the commission caused by the expiration of
a term, by resignation or death, by a superseding incapacity to discharge duties, by a
removal for cause, or by any other cause creating such vacancy, shall be filled for a new
term, or for the remainder of the term for which there is a vacancy as the case may be, in
the same manner as provided herein for the nomination and appointment of the initial
members of the commission.

(f) Removal for cause. A member may be removed for cause from the commission by the
county executive.

(g) Compensation. The members of the commission serve without compensation.

(h) Regulations. The commission must adopt, under method (2) of Section 2A-15 of this
Code, rules, guidelines and regulations that are necessary for the proper transaction of
the business of the commission. This includes provisions governing contested cases
before the commission.

(1) Meetings. The commission shall hold such regular meetings which, in its
discretion, are necessary to discharge its duties. Such meetings shall be open to

the public.

-~ (2) Staff. There may be appointed and assigned to the commission such employees,
and the chief administrative officer shall make available to the commission such
services and facilities of the county, as are necessary or appropriate for the
proper performance of its duties, and the county attorney shall serve as counsel
to the commission. (Ord. No. 9-4, § 1; 1984 L.M.C., ch. 24, § 26; Ord. No. 1I-
59; FY 1991 L.M.C., ch. 9, § 1.)

Cross reference—Boards and commissions generally, § 2-141 et seq.

Sec. 24A-5. Same—Powers and duties.

The commission has the following powers and duties:

(a) To research historic resources and to recommend to the planning board that certain of
them be designated as historic sites or historic districts on the master plan for historic
preservation and, hence, be subject to the provisions of this chapter.

(b) To recommend to the planning board, as needed, any update to the inventory of historic
resources which is contained in the "Locational Atlas and Index of Historic Sites in
Montgomery County."

l
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(c) To act upon applications for historic area work permits and other matters referred to it
for action pursuant to the provisions of this chapter.

(d) To appoint members to local advisory panels to assist and advise the commission on the
performance of its functions.

(e) To recommend programs and legislation to the council and the planning board to
encourage historic preservation in the Maryland-Washington Regional District.

(f) To review any legislation and proposals affecting historic preservation, including
preparation of master plans, and to make recommendations on such legislation and
proposals to appropriate authorities.

(g) To serve as a clearinghouse for information on historic preservation for county
government, individuals, citizens' associations, historic societies and local advisory
committees; to provide information and educational materials for the public; and to
undertake activities to advance the goals of historic preservation in the county.

(h) To employ or hire consultants or other temporary personnel, consistent with county
contract provisions, as deemed necessary to assist the commission in the accomplishment
of its functions; such consultants or other personnel shall be compensated as may be

_ provided for in the county budget.

(i) To administer an historic preservation easement program and any revolving funds or
grant programs to assist in historic preservation.

(j) To advise the planning board, in the event of subdivision of land containing an historic
resource, on the appurtenances and environmental setting necessary to preserve it.

{k) To delineate the extent of appurtenances and environmental setting associated with an
historic site or resource. (Ord. No. 9-4, § 1; 1989 L.M.C., ch. 4, § 1; Ord. No. 11-59.)

Sec. 24A-6. Historic area work permits—Generally.

(a) Required. An historic area work permit for work on public or private property containing
an historic resource must be issuedpursuant to the provisions of this chapter before:

(1) Constructing, reconstructing, moving, relocating, demolishing or in any manner
modifying, changing or altering the exterior features of any historic site or any
historic resource located within any historic district.

1
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(2) Performing any grading, excavating, construction or substantially modifying,
changing or altering the environmental setting of an historic site or an historic
resource located within an historic district;

(3) Erecting or causing to be erected any sign or advertisement (with the exception
of those signs which temporarily advertise for sale an historic site or an historic
resource located within an historic district, or which for a temporary period
advertise a political viewpoint) on the exterior or on the environmental setting of
any historic site or any historic resource located within any historic district.

(b) Exceptions. Nothing in this section shall be construed to require the issuance of an
historic area work permit for any ordinary maintenance, repair of exterior features, any
customary farming operations or any landscaping, which will have no material effect on
historic resource located within an historic district, of which such features are a part. For
the purposes of clarification of this section, the commission shall develop and publish
guidelines regarding what activities constitute ordinary maintenance and shall send a
copy of these guidelines by registered mail to all owners of historic resources designated
on the master plan.

(c) Disclosure requirements.

(1) Applicants for permits to demolish or substantially alter the exterior features of
any historic site or historic resource located within an historic district are

. required to disclose its identification as such in writing on any application
therefor.

(2) Any person who shall undertake any work as stated in subsection (a) of this
section without first obtaining an historic area work permit shall be subject to the
penalties established in section 24A-11.

(d) Advice of commission prior to application. The commission shall adopt procedures to
encourage owners of historic resourcesto seek the advice of the commission prior to
filing an application for an historic area work permit, on the appurtenances and
environmental setting appropriate to the resource, construction methods and materials,
financial information concerning historic preservation or any other matter under this
chapter affecting the issuance of a permit. (Ord. No. 9-4, § 1; Ord. No. 11-59.)

Sec. 24A-7. Historic area work permits—Application procedures; appeals.

(a) Applications. An applicant for an historic area work permit must file an application with
the Director. The application must contain all information the Commission requires to
evaluate the application under this Chapter.
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(b) Referral of application. Within 3 days after the application is complete, the Director
must forward the application to the Commission for review.

(c) Public meeting. When the Commission receives the application, the Commission must
schedule a public meeting to consider the application.

(d) Notice. The Commission must notify the Director and any citizen or organization that the
Commission reasonably determines has an interest in the application of the time and
place of the public meeting.

(e) Conduct of Commission meeting. The public meeting on the application must be informal
and formal rules of evidence do not apply. The Commission must encourage interested
parties to comment and must keep minutes of the proceedings on the application.

(0 Action by the Commission.

(I) The Commission must make a public decision on the application under
paragraph (2) not later than 45 days after the applicant files the application or 15
days after the Commission closes the record on the application, whichever is
earlier.

(2) The Commission must instruct the Director to issue or deny the permit. The
Commission may require the Director to issue the permit with reasonable
conditions necessary to assure that work under the permit does not harm the
historical, architectural, archeological or cultural value of the historic resource.

(3) If the Commission instructs the Director to deny the permit, the Commission
must notify the applicant in writing why the Commission denied the application.

(4) The commission must instruct the Director to issue the permit if the Commission
finds that:

(5)

(A) denial of the permit would prevent the reasonable use of the property or
impose undue hardship on the owner; and

(B) within 120 days after the finding in subparagraph (A), no person seeking
preservation has submitted an economically feasible plan for preserving
the structure.

If the Commission does not act on an application within the time periods
provided in this subsection, the application is approved, unless the applicant
agrees to extend the deadline for Commission action.
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(g) Miscellaneous provisions.

(1) The applicant for a permit has the burden of production and persuasion on all
issues the Commission determines. If another historic preservation organization
holds a deed of easement for the property in the application, the applicant must
submit proof to the Commission that the organization conducted an exterior
architectural review and approved the action for which the applicant is seeking a
permit.

(2) (A) The Commission may, by regulations issued under method (2), delegate
authority to a County employee qualified in historic preservation and
assigned to staff the Commission to review and approve an application
for work that commonly has no more than an insignificant effect on an
historic resource.

(3)

(B) The regulations:

(I) must describe the types of work that staff can review and
approve, and require the Commission to review any application
that is not clearly subject to staff approval; and

(ii) may waive the public meeting and notice requirements of
subsections (c) and (d) for applications clearly subject to staff
approval.

(C) If the staff denies or does not act on an application within 5 days after
the Commission received the application from the Director, the
Commission must review the application de novo.

(D) Staff must report monthly to the Commission and each appropriate Local
Advisory Panel about any application reviewed by the staff in the
previous month, including the disposition of the application.

A permit may impose conditions that require waiver of a provision of the
building code if the waiver is allowed under the "historic structures" provision of
the building code adopted under Section 8-14 and the code inspector determines
that waiver is appropriate for the specific work covered by the permit.

(4) The Director must enforce this Chapter.

(h) Appeal.

(1) Within 30 days after the Commission makes a public decision on an application,
an aggrieved party may appeal the Commission's decision to the Board of
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Appeals, which must review the decision de novo. The Board of Appeals may
affirm, modify, or reverse any order or decision of the Commission.

(2) A party may appeal a decision of the Board of Appeals under Section 2-114.
(Ord. No. 9-4, § 1; Ord. No. 11-59; Ord. No. 13-111, § 1.)

Sec. 24A-8. Same—Criteria for issuance.

(a) The commission shall instruct the director to deny a permit if it finds, based on the
evidence and information presented to or before the commission that the alteration for
which the permit is sought would be inappropriate, inconsistent with or detrimental to
the preservation, enhancement or ultimate protection of the historic site or historic
resource within an historic district, and to the purposes of this chapter.

(b) The commission shall instruct the director to issue a permit, or issue a permit subject to
such conditions as are found to be necessary to insure conformity with the purposes and
requirements of this chapter, if it finds that:

(1) The proposal will not substantially alter the exterior features of an historic site or
historic resource within an historic district; or

(2) The proposal is compatible in character and nature with thehistorical,
archeological, architectural or cultural features of the historic site or the historic
district in which an historic resource is located and would not be detrimental
thereto or to the achievement of the purposes of this chapter; or

(3) The proposal would enhance or aid in the protection, preservation and public or
private utilization of the historic site or historic resource located within an
historic district in a manner compatible with the historical, archeological,
architectural or cultural value of the historic site or historic district in which an
historic resource is located; or

(4) The proposal is necessary in order that unsafe conditions or health hazards be
remedied; or

(5) The proposal is necessary in order that the owner of the subject property not be
deprived of reasonable use of the property or suffer undue hardship; or

(6) In balancing the interests of the public in preserving the historic site or historic
resource located within an historic district, with the interests of the public from
the use and benefit of the alternative proposal, the general public welfare is
better served by granting the permit.
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(c) It is not the intent of this chapter to limit new construction, alteration or repairs to any 1
period or architectural style.

(d) In the case of an application for work on an historic resource located within an historic
district, the commission shall be lenient in its judgment of plans for structures of little
historical or design significance or for plans involving new construction, unless such
plans would seriously impair the historic or architectural value of surrounding historic
resources or would impair the character of the historic district. (Ord. No. 9-4, § 1; Ord.
No. 11-59.)

Sec. 24A-9. Demolition by neglect.

In the event of a case of demolition by neglect of an historic resource on public or private
property, the following provisions shall apply:

(a) If the historic resource has been designated on the master plan as an historic site or an
historic resource within an historic district, the director shall issue a written notice to all
persons of record with any right, title or interest in the subject property, or the person
occupying such premises, of the conditions of deterioration and shall specify the
minimum items of repair or maintenance necessary to correct or prevent further
deterioration. The notice shall provide that corrective action shall commence within 30
days of the receipt of such notice and be completed within a reasonable time thereafter.
The notice shall state that the owner of record of the subject property, or any person of
record with any right, title or interest therein, may, within 10 days after the receipt of the
notice, request a hearing on the necessity of the items and conditions contained in such
notice. In the event a public hearing is requested, it shall be held by the commission
upon 30 days' written notice mailed to all persons of record with any right, title or
interest in the subject property and to all citizens and organizations which the director
feels may have an interest in the proceedings.

(I) After a public hearing on the issue of necessity of improvements to prevent
demolition by neglect, if the commission finds that such improvements are
necessary, it shall instruct the director to issue a final notice to be mailed to the
record owners and all parties of record with any right, title or interest in the
subject property advising of the items of repair and maintenance necessary to
correct or prevent further deterioration. The owners shall institute corrective
action to comply with the final notice within 30 days of receipt of the revised
notice.

(2) In the event the corrective action specified in the final notice is not instituted
within the time allotted, the director may institute, perform and complete the
necessary remedial work to prevent deterioration by neglect and the expenses
incurred by the director for such work, labor and materials shall be a lien against
the property, and draw interest at the highest legal rate, the amount to be
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(3)

amortized over a period of 10 years subject to a public sale if there is a default in
payment.

Failure to comply with the original or final notice shall constitute a violation of
this chapter for each day that such violation continues and shall be punishable as
set forth in section 24A-11.

(4) In the event that the commission finds that, notwithstanding the necessity for
such improvements, action provided in paragraphs (1) and (2) of this subsection
would impose a substantial hardship on any or all persons with any right, title or
interest in the subject property, then the commission shall seek alternative
methods to preserve the historic site or historic resource located within an
historic district. If none are confirmed within a reasonable time, the director shall
not proceed in accordance with paragraphs (1) and (2).

(b) If the historic resource is listed in the "Locational Atlas and Index of Historic Sites in
Montgomery County, Maryland," or the microfilmed addenda to such atlas, published by
the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, the director shall advise
the planning board which, after receiving the recommendation of the commission, shall
conduct a public hearing to determine whether the historic resource will be designated as
an historic site or historic district in the master plan for historic preservation.

(1) Where the planning board determines that the historic resource will not be
included in the master plan for historic preservation, no further action will be
taken.

(2) Where the planning board determines that the historic resource in all likelihood
will be included in the master plan for historic preservation, the planning board
shall initiate an amendment to the master plan for historic preservation pursuant
to the provisions of article 28 of the Annotated Code of Maryland.

a. In the event that such amendment is adopted and the historic resource is
placed on the master plan for historic preservation as an historic site or
an historic resource within an historic district, the director shall give
written notice to all persons with any right, title, or interest in the subject
property of the conditions of deterioration and shall specify the items of
repair or maintenance necessary to stabilize the condition of the historic
resource and prevent further deterioration.

b. Such notice shall provide that such stabilization work shall commence
within 30 days of receipt of the notice and shall be completed within a
reasonable time thereafter.
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c. In the event that stabilization action is not instituted within the time
allotted, or not completed within a reasonable time thereafter, the
director may institute, perform and complete the necessary stabilization
work and the expenses incurred by the director for such work, labor or
materials shall be a lien against the property, and draw interest at the
highest legal rate, the amount to be amortized over a period of 10 years
subject to a public sale if there is a default in payment. (Ord. No. 9-4, §
1; Ord. No. 11-59.)

Sec. 24A-10. Moratorium on alteration or demolition.

(a) Application for permits for historic resources on locational atlas. Any applicant for a
permit to demolish or substantially alter the exterior features of any historic resource
which is listed in the "Locational Atlas and Index of Historic Sites in Montgomery
County, Maryland," or the microfilmed addenda to that atlas, published by the Maryland-
National Capital Park and Planning Commission, but which is not designated as an
historic site or historic district on the master plan for historic preservation, must disclose
that fact on the application. If the historic resource is located in an area under review for
designation as an historic district and is not under review for designation as an historic
site, the application must be reviewed under the procedure in Section 24A-7 if the
applicant seeks review under that Section.

(b) Referral to the planning board. If the applicant does not seek review under Section 24A-
7, the Director must promptly forward the permit application to the Planning Board to
make a finding, after a public hearing, as to the significance of the historic resource and
to determine whether, after considering the recommendations of the Commission, the
property will be designated as an historic site or an historic resource within an historic
district, listed in the master plan for historic preservation. The Planning Board's public
hearing on an application to demolish or substantially alter any historic resource listed in
the locational atlas satisfies the requirements of section 33A-6 for a public hearing on a
preliminary draft amendment to the historic preservation master plan if all notice
requirements of that section are met.

(c) Determination by the planning board.

(1) Where the planning board determines that the historic resource will not be
included in the master plan for historic preservation, the director shall forthwith
issue the permit.

(2) Where the planning board determines that the historic resource in all likelihood
will be included in the master plan for historic preservation, the director shall
withhold issuance of the permit once for a maximum period of 195 days from the
date the application for demolition is filed. If, as a result of the master plan
process, the property is designated an historic site or an historic resource within
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an historic district, the application shall be governed by the procedures
established in section 24A-7.

If, after a public appearance as provided for in section 24A-7, the commission
determines that failure to grant the permit applied for will have the effect of denying the
property owner of all reasonable use of his property or causing him to suffer undue
hardship, then the commission must instruct the director to issue the permit subject to
such conditions, if any, as are found to be necessary to insure conformity with the
purposes and requirements of this chapter.

(d) Time limits for planning board action.

(1) Within 60 days after the riling of an application, or within 15 days after the
closing of the record following a public hearing, whichever occurs later, the
planning board shall render its findings and determinations with respect to an
application.

(2) Failure to adhere to the limits specified in section 24A-10 shall cause the permit
to issue by operation of law, except in the event of a finding and further
proceedings as provided in subsection (c)(2) of this section. (Ord. No. 9-4, § 1;
Ord. No. 11-59; Ord No. 13-99, §1.)

Editor's note—Section 2 of Ord. No. 13-99 states: "Effective date and applicability. This ordinance takes
effect on the date of Council adoption and applies to any permit application under Section 24A-10(a) of the Code
that was not decided before the date this ordinance takes effect."

Sec. 24A-11. Violations and penalties.

Any person who violates a provision of this chapter, or fails to comply with any of the
requirements thereof, or disobeys or disregards a decision of the commission, or fails to abide by the
conditions of a permit, shall be subject to punishment for a class A violation as set forth in section 1-19
of chapter 1 of the County Code. Each day a violation continues to exist shall constitute a separate
offense. (Ord. No. 9-4, § 1; 1983 L.M.C., ch. 22, § 28; Ord. No. 11-59.)

Sec. 24A-12. Severability.

The provisions of this chapter are severable and if any provisions, clause, sentence, section, word
or part thereof is held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional, or inapplicable to any person or circumstances,
such illegality, invalidity or unconstitutionality, or inapplicability shall not affect or impair any of the
remaining provisions, clauses, sentences, sections, words or parts of the chapter or their applications to
other persons or circumstances. It is hereby declared to be the legislative intent that this chapter would
have been adopted if such illegal, invalid or unconstitutional provision, clause, sentence, section, word or
part had not been included therein, and if the person or circumstance to which the chapter or part thereof
is inapplicable had been specifically exempted therefrom. (Ord. No. 9-4, § 1; Ord. 1159.)
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Sec. 24A-13. Historic preservation easement program.

(a) There is a county easement program to preserve historic resources in Montgomery
County. The commission must administer the program in accordance with this section.

(b) (1) An owner of an historic resource may offer the county a preservation easement
to protect or conserve interior or exterior features of the historic resource and its
environmental setting or appurtenances by making application to the
commission.

(2) Upon receipt of an application, the commission must immediately forward the
application for review and comment to:

(3)

(A) the planning board if the historic resource is located within the
Maryland-Washington Regional District; and

(B) the appropriate agency of a municipality if the historic resource is
located within a municipality.

Review and comment under this paragraph must be made within 45 days and
should include an evaluation of the proposal using the criteria specified in this
section as well as identification of competing or supporting land use priorities or
other relevant factors or issues. Recommendations may include proposed
easement terms and conditions.

The commission must review the application to determine if acceptance of the
preservation easement would further the county's historic preservation goals. In
making its determination, the commission should consider, among other relevant
factors:

(A) the relative significance of the historic resource;

(B) the structural condition;

(C) the owner's planned or completed preservation efforts;

(D) the existing zoning and nature of the surrounding neighborhood; and

(E) whether an easement will promote long-term survival of the historic
resource.

(c) If the historic resource is designated as an historic site in the county master plan for
historic preservation, either as an individual site or located within an historic district, the
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county may acquire an easement upon positive recommendation of the commission and
approval of the county executive. If the historic resource is not designated as an historic
site in the master plan, the additional approval of the county council is required prior to
any acceptance by the county. The commission must forward any comments received
under subsection (b)(2) to the county executive and the county council, as appropriate.

(d) A preservation easement under this section should be granted in perpetuity and include
appropriate terms and conditions that:

(1) restrict changes and alterations;

(2) require maintenance, repairs, and administration;

(3) authorize public access;

(4) provide a right of governmental inspection;

(5) provide for a right of assignment to the Maryland Historical Trust or other
appropriate agency or entity; and

(6) establish enforcement remedies.

(e) The county may hold a preservation easement jointly with the Maryland Historical Trust.

(f) A preservation easement must be recorded by the grantor among the land records of the
county at the grantor's cost. The grantor must notify the supervisor of assessments and
the Office of the Public Tax Advocate of the recordation of the preservation easement.

(g) Reserved.*

*Editor's note—As originally enacted, 1989 L.M.C., ch. 4, contained no subsection (g).

(h) A preservation easement may be extinguished by judicial proceeding if an unexpected
change in the conditions applicable to the property, such as casualty, make it impossible
or impractical to continue to use it for preservation purposes. The terms of an easement
related to extinguishment should identify appropriate changes in condition, provide that
the county share in any proceeds from a subsequent sale or exchange of the property
after the easement is extinguished, and be in accordance with any applicable executive
regulations. The sharing in proceeds may include the recapture of property taxes saved
by the grantor or its successor in interest, either in part or in full, as a result of the
easement.
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(i) The commission may enter into a cooperative agreement with the Maryland Historical
Trust or other appropriate agencies or entities for technical assistance in administering
the historic easement program. This may include assistance in property evaluation,
negotiation, and inspection.

(j) (1) The easement program authorized under this section is in addition to, and does
not supersede or otherwise affect, any other county or municipal program or
policy requiring the donation of a preservation easement as a condition of
financial assistance. It must operate in conjunction with other county or
municipal easement programs.

(2) The grant of an easement under this section does not eliminate or otherwise alter
any county or municipal regulatory requirement applicable to the historic
resource, including any requirement to obtain an historic area work permit.

(k) The county executive, with the advice of the commission, may adopt regulations under
method (2) to administer the historic preservation easement. (1989 L.M.C., ch. 4, § 1;
Ord. No. 11-59.)

Editor's note—Section 24A-13, relating to the applicability of this chapter within incorporated
municipalities, derived from Ord. No. 9-4, § 1, was repealed by § 15 of 1985 L.M.C., ch. 31. See § 2-96.
Subsequently, § 1, of 1989 L.M.C., ch. 4. added a new § 24A-13. Section 2 of that act reads as follows:
Sec. 2. To assist the County in its administration of the historic preservation easement program, the supervisor of
assessments is requested to maintain records of both the assessmentof the property as restricted under this program
by easement and the assessment that would apply if the property was not subject to an easement.
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HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

of

MONTGOMERY COUNTY

8787 Georgia Avenue
',Silver Spring, Maryland 20910

301-563-3400

Case No. 32/05-03A Received August 1, 2003

Public Appearance September 24, 2003

Before the Montgomery County Historic Preservation Commission

Application of Ms. Renata Gould
9904 Colesville Road, Silver Spring

DECISION AND OPINION OF THE COMMISSION

Decision of the Commission: DENY the Applicant's proposal to construct a rear frame addition.

Commission Motion: At the September 24, 2003 meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission

(HPC), Commissioner Harbit presented a motion to deny the proposed

Historic Area Work Permit application to construct a rear frame addition.

Commissioner Fuller seconded the motion. Commissioners 11arbit,

O'Malley', Williams, Velasquez, Burstyn, Fuller, Anahtar, Watkins and

Breslin voted in favor of the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

BACKGROUND:

The following terms are defined in Section 24A-2 of the Code:

Appurtenances and environmental setting: The entire parcel, as of the date on which the

historic resource is designated on the master plan, and structures thereon, on which is located

a historic resource, unless reduced by the District Council or the commission, and to which it

relates physically and/or visually. Appurtenances and environmental settings shall include,

but not be limited to, walkways and driveways (whether paved or not), vegetation (including

trees, gardens, lawns), rocks, pasture, cropland and waterways.

Commission: The historic preservation commission of Montgomery County, Maryland.



Director: The director of the department of permitting services of Montgomery County,
Maryland or his designee.

Exterior features: The architectural style, design and general arrangement of the exterior of
an historic resource, including the color, nature and texture of building materials, and the
type and style of all windows, doors, light fixtures, signs or other similar items found on or
related to the exterior of an historic resource.

Historic District: A group of historic resources which are significant as a cohesive unit and
contribute to the historical, architectural, archeological or cultural values within the
Maryland-Washington Regional District and which has been so designated in the master
plan for historic preservation.

Historic Resource: A district, site, building, structure or object, including its appurtenances
and environmental setting, which is significant in national, state or local history,
architecture, archeology or culture.

On August 1, 2003, Ms. Renata Gould completed an application for a Historic Area Work Permit
(HAWP) to enlarge the size of her house by constructing a 6'9" by 16' 11" frame rear addition.

9904 Colesville Road is an Outstanding Resource within the Polychrome Historic District
designated on the Master Plan For Historic Preservation in Montgomery County in 1985 and on the
National Register of Historic Places in 1996.

HISTORY OF RESOURCE:

The National Register nomination for the Polychrome Historic District includes the following
description:

The five single-family dwellings that comprise the Polychrome Historic District were built in 1934-35

by master craftsman John Joseph Earley (1881-1945). These unique houses are outstanding examples
of the Art Deco-style and reflect Earley's artistry and craftsmanship. Conventional wood frames were
clad with prefabricated "mosaic concrete" panels utilizing a process Earley developed and patented in
which the concrete was stripped to expose the brilliantly colored aggregate particles, creating an effect
similar to impressionist or pointillist painting. In addition to their striking, richly ornamented
appearance, these houses represent a relatively rare example of pre-cast concrete panel construction in
single-family housing for the time period. Earley's patented structural system led to the widespread use
of pre-cast architectural concrete as a major exterior cladding material. The legacy of the Polychrome

houses can be seen in thousands of curtain-wall buildings nationwide.

Earley was a master builder who culminated nearly three decades of engineering and architectural
experience in the design and construction of the Polychrome houses. From 1906 to 1933, he was
responsible for such complex and demanding projects as the stucco work for Meridian Hill Park

(Washington, D.C., 1916); the casting of Lorado Taft's sculpture, "The Fountain of Time" (Chicago,
1920-22); the rebuilding of the replica of the Parthenon at Nashville (1925); and the Baha'i Temple of
Light in Wilmette, Illinois (begun in 1932). Earley created a new medium for the decorative arts--
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mosaic concrete--in designing the richly detailed interior of the Shrine of the Sacred Heart (Washington,

D.C. 1923), the same material used in executing the intricate design of the ceilings for the Department

of Justice (1933) and in the Polychrome houses. Earley wrote eloquently about the social changes

taking place in the United States during the 1930s and the demand for what he termed "social justice."

The polychrome houses represent his attempt to solve the "small house problem" by providing

innovative housing at modest cost during the economic and social upheaval of the Great Depression.

Polychrome H, built by John Joseph Early, is a one-story six-room house consisting of a main block

running north to south and a attached garage extending beyond the north end of the main block to the

west, and a small wing at the south end of the front elevation facing east. The gable roof, originally

tiled, is now clad in asphalt shingles. There is a loft room over the one-car attached garage [area which

is the subject of this HAWP]. The exterior walls are comprised of two-inch thick pre-cast mosaic

concrete panels, each four to eight feet wide and nine feet high. Metal casement window and door

frames were imbedded in the panels before casting. The panels are attached to a conventional wood
frame and anchored to the foundation by u-shaped hangers and threaded with reinforcing rods, with
reinforced concrete columns cast in place behind each joint. The panels are rosey-pink in color, the

result of exposing surface aggregates of red jaspente. There are three large metal-frame porthole

windows, two in the front overlooking the open porch, and one at the rear on the west wall of the living

room. The circular frames are inset with standard casement windows. The front porch is partially

enclosed by a low concrete mosaic wall with decorative geometric inserts in deep red. The same

decorative wall treatment is used on a small porch and the side door on the north side of the house.

A driveway runs along the north property line to the entrance of the attached garage, which faces north.

Large decorative mosaic concrete planters are affixed to the south and west walls of the wing attached

to the south end of the main block.

EVIDENCE IN THE RECORD:

The applicant originally came before the HPC on September 24, 2001 with a Historic Area Work

Permit (HAWP) application for a frame rear addition, identical to the current proposal, which is the

subject of this report. The Commission denied that HAWP application at the 2001 meeting. They

noted that the house was designated for its unique pre-cast concrete panel construction and design.

As such, destroying these architectural features destroys the integrity of the historic resource.

Subsequent to this meeting, historic preservation staff asked a local architect in the area to assist the

homeowner (pro bono) in developing some design alternatives for the proposed addition. The

architect developed drawings that provided a rear addition with the required square footage for the

owner, but which required minimal penetration into the house's important character defining

features. The applicant reviewed the proposed drawings and did not find them acceptable.

The applicant submitted a second HAWP application on August 1, 2003. This application, as stated

above, is identical to the original proposal reviewed and denied by the HPC on September 24, 2001.

A written staff recommendation on this case was prepared and sent to the Commission on

September 17, 2003. At the September 24, 2003 HPC meeting, staff person, Michele Nara showed
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a Powerpoint presentation of photos of the site and presented an oral report with staff

recommendations. Staff recommended the HAWP application be denied.

The staff's specific concerns were:

1. The house is an Outstanding Resource within the Polychrome Historic District and

the building is subject to the highest level of design review.
2. The proposal would require original decorative elements to be lost.
3. The alterations would not be reversible. The original building would never be able to

be restored to its original configuration.
4. The proposal would radically change and destroy the character defining materials that

characterize the building.

The applicant, Ms. Gould, attended the meeting. Ms. Gould testified that the issues that brought the

original proposal to the Commission in September of 2001 have not improved. In her assessment,

the addition has become more necessary than before. She indicated that the addition is to be

constructed to provide an additional bathroom and closet space, since the existing house was built

with only one bathroom. She further explained that the proposed addition would be completely to

the rear of the house and not visible from the street. Additionally, Ms. Gould admitted that one of

the cast concrete pediments would be irreversibly altered as a result of this project, yet noted that the

majority of the pediment would remain behind the new roof of the addition. The applicant's

position is that the proposed sacrifice of the subject historic fabric provides a substantial gain for her

and her family and in the monetary value of the house.

The applicant's neighbor, Ursula Allen, also attended and testified the meeting. The neighbor's
testimony focused on her viewpoint as a Realtor. She indicated that from a real estate perspective,

having one bathroom in was considered a hardship. She additionally noted that a one-bathroom

dwelling has a resale disadvantage and encouraged the Commission to approve the project so it will

improve her neighbor's lifestyle and value of the property.

The President of Montgomery Preservation, Inc., who is also the Preservation Chair of the Art Deco

Society of Washington and a Montgomery County resident, Wayne Goldstein, also attended and

testified at the meeting. Mr. Goldstein spoke first of being a resident of Montgomery County and an

owner of a two-bedroom, one-bath, 672 sq. ft. house in Kensington. His testimony focused on his

property value increase since he purchased the property in 1993 — from $120,000 to $240,000. Mr.

Goldstein further testified about the remarkable resources the Polychrome Houses are to

Montgomery County's history. He expressed concern over the owner's desire to destroy the

resource's integrity. He stated that it was his opinion that if families have outgrown a historic

property and if you cannot enlarge the building without destroying its integrity then the family

should move to a larger house. Mr. Goldstein concluded his testimony asking the Commission to

deny the proposal and asking the applicant to accept an alternate version for the addition — as

developed by the architect who provided pro bono design services - which will have minimal impact

to the historic property or to think about relocating to a house more suitable to her family's needs.

Commissioner Anahtar questioned the applicant about the habitability of the proposed addition in

terms of building codes. Based on her knowledge as an architect, she explained that the proposed
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ceiling height at the ridge is 8 feet, leaving less than 6' along the sides of the gable, which is not

acceptable by building code requirements. Commissioner Anahtar questioned whether the drawings

submitted by the applicant were accurate.

Commissioner Fuller stated that he did not want the Commission to do anything to discourage the

owner from staying in the house. He further expressed that he felt that the owner was a good

steward of the property and supports the owner's desire to build an addition behind her house. His

concerns about the proposal were the applicant's desire to destroy permanently one of the most

unique parts of the house, namely the highly ornate pediment. He further indicated that he would

like to see the owner utilize a design that would add an addition to the house without destroying one

of the pre-cast panels. He recommended that the Commission deny the application as presented but

encouraged the applicant to re-examine other design alternatives for the rear addition.

Commissioner Harbit made the motion to deny the Historic Area Work Permit for Case 32/05-03A,

noting that he was sorry to do so since the applicant was such an excellent steward of the property.

He further noted that he felt that the Commission has gone to extraordinary lengths over the last

couple of years to try to help this applicant to find a solution that would work. He felt that the

Commission had heard and seen several alternatives to the currently proposed addition, which

would meet the applicant's needs and would be appropriate from a historic preservation perspective.

He further expressed that he felt that the reasons that the proposal was denied two years ago are still

valid today. Commissioner Fuller seconded the motion. Commissioners Harbit, O'Malley,
Williams, Velasquez, Burstyn, Fuller, Anahtar, Watkins and Breslin voted in favor of the motion.

Motion passed unanimously.

CRITERIA FOR APPROVAL AND FINDINGS OF THE COMMISSION:

The criteria which the Commission must evaluate in determining whether to deny a Historic Area

Work Permit application are found in Section 24A-8(a) of the Montgomery County Code. 1984,  as

amended.

Section 24A-8(a) provides that:

The Commission shall instruct the director to deny a permit if it finds, based on the evidence

and information presented to or before the commission that the alteration for which the

permit is sought would be inappropriate or inconsistent with, or detrimental to the
preservation enhancement or ultimate protection of the historic site, or historic resource

within an historic district, and to the purposes of this chapter.

In analyzing whether the criteria for issuance of a Historic Area Work Permit have been met, the

Commission also evaluates the evidence in the record in light of the Amendment to the
Approved and Adopted Master Plan for Historic Preservation in Montgomery County, Maryland _

Polychrome Historic District.

The Commission also evaluates the evidence in light of generally accepted principles of historic

preservation, including the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation and
Guidelines, adopted in the Commission's Executive Regulations on November 4, 1997. In

5



0

particular Standards #2, and #9 are applicable in this case:

Standard 2: The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The
removal of distinctive materials or alterations of features, spaces, and spatial
relationships that characterize a property will be avoided.

Standard 9: New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not
destroy historic materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize
the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and will be
compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion,
and massing to protect the integrity of the property and its environment.

Based on this, the Commission finds that:

1. The proposed rear addition will destroy the historic materials and features that define
this historic property.

2. The proposal constitutes changes that specifically impair the existing integrity of the
resource, which through its architectural fabric and design, contributes to the historic
character of the Polychrome Historic District as a whole.

CONCLUSION:

The Commission was guided in its decision by Chapter 24A, by the Amendment to the Approved
and Adopted Master Plan for Historic Preservation in Montgomery County, Mar ly and, - Polychrome
Historic District, and by the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation.

Based on the evidence in the. record and the Commission's findings..  as required by Section 24A-8(a)
of the Montgomery County Code, 1984, as amended, the Commission must deny the application of
Ms. Renata Gould for a Historic Area Work Permit (HAWP) to construct a rear frame addition at
9904 Colesville Road in the Polychrome Historic District.

If any party is aggrieved by the decision of the Commission, pursuant to Section 24A-70(h) of the
Montgomery County Code, an appeal may be filed within thirty (30) days with the Board of
Appeals, which will review the Commission's decision de novo. The Board of Appeals has full
and exclusive authority to hear and decide all appeals taken from the decision of the Commission.
The Board of Appeals has the authority to affirm, modify, or reverse the order or decision of the
Commission.

1 ! 3 D3
Susan Velasquez, Chairperson ate
Montgomery County Historic Preservation Commission
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HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION STAFF REPORT

Address: 9904 Colesville Rd, Silver Spring

Resource: Outstanding Resource
. Polychrome Historic District

Review: HAWP

Case Number: 32/05-03A

Applicant: Renata Gould

PROPOSAL: Rear Addition

PROJECT HISTORY:

Meeting Date: 09/24/03

Report Date: 09/17/03

Public Notice: 09/10/03

Tax Credit: None

Staff: Michele Naru

RECOMMEND: Denial

The applicant came before the HPC on September 24, 2001 with a Historic Area Work
Permit (HAWP) application for a frame rear addition, identical to the proposal being presented in
this current HAWP application. The Commission denied the HAWP application at this meeting.
(circles 30-55). They noted that the house was designated for its unique pre-cast concrete panel
construction and design. As such, destroying these architectural features destroys the integrity of the
historic resource.

Subsequent to this meeting, staff asked a local architect in the area to assist the homeowner
(pro bono) in developing some design alternatives for the proposed addition. The architect
developed drawings that provided a rear addition with the required square footage for the owner,
which also did not require penetration into the house's historic fabric — which would help to retain
the historic integrity of the existing resource (circles 25-29). The applicant has reviewed the
proposed drawings and does not find them to accomplish the needs and requirements of her current

household. She has applied for the attached HAWP application in the hopes that since she has
explored all potential viable alternatives, the HPC will determine that the homeowner's needs
outweigh the need to maintain the historic integrity of the subject building.

BACKGROUND:

"The five single-family dwellings that comprise the Polychrome Historic District were built
in 1934-35 by master craftsman John Joseph Earley (1881-1945). These unique houses are
outstanding examples of the Art Deco-style and reflect Earley's artistry and craftsmanship.
Conventional wood frames were clad with prefabricated "mosaic concrete" panels utilizing a process

Earley developed and patented in which the concrete was stripped to expose the brilliantly colored
aggregate particles, creating an effect similar to impressionist or pointillist painting. In addition to

their striking, richly ornamented appearance, these houses represent a relatively rare example ofpre-
cast concrete panel construction in single-family housing for the time period. Earley's patented



structural system led to the widespread use of pre-cast architectural concrete as a major exterior
cladding material. The legacy of the Polychrome houses can be seen in thousands of curtain-wall
buildings nationwide."

"Barley was a master builder who culminated nearly three decades of engineering and
architectural experience in the design and construction of the Polychrome houses. From 1906 to
1933, he was responsible for such complex and demanding projects as the stucco work for Meridian
Hill Park (Washington, D.C., 1916); the casting of Lorado Taft's sculpture, "The Fountain of Time"
(Chicago, 1920-22); the rebuilding of the replica of the Parthenon at Nashville (1925); and the Baha'i
Temple of Light in Wilmette, Illinois (begun in 1932). Earley created a new medium for the
decorative arts--mosaic concrete--in designing the richly detailed interior of the Shrine of the Sacred
Heart (Washington, D.C. 1923), the same material used in executing the intricate design of the
ceilings for the Department of Justice (193 3) and in the Polychrome houses. Earley wrote eloquently
about the social changes taking place in the United States during the 1930s and the demand for what
he termed "social justice." The polychrome houses represent his attempt to solve the "small house
problem" by providing innovative housing at modest cost during the economic and social upheaval
of the Great Depression." — from National Register Nomination

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

SIGNIFICANCE: Outstanding Resource in the Polychrome Historic District.
STYLE: Art Deco
DATE: 1935

"Polychrome H, built by John Joseph Early, is a one-story six-room house consisting of a
main block running north to south and a attached garage extending beyond the north end of the main
block to the west, and a small wing at the south end of the front elevation facing east. The gable
roof, originally tiled, is now clad in asphalt shingles. There is a loft room over the one-car attached
garage [area which is the subj ect of this HAWP] . The exterior walls are comprised of two-inch thick
pre-cast mosaic concrete panels, each four to eight feet wide and nine feet high. Metal casement
window and doorframes were imbedded in the panels before casting. The panels are attached to a
conventional wood frame and anchored to the foundation by u-shaped hangers and threaded with
reinforcing rods, with reinforced concrete columns cast in place behind each joint. The panels are
rosey-pink in color, the result of exposing surface aggregates of red jasperite. There are three large
metal —frame porthole windows, two in the front overlooking the open porch, and one at the rear on
the west wall of the living room. The circular frames are inset with standard casement windows.
The front porch is partially enclosed by a low concrete mosaic wall with decorative geometric
inserts in deep red. The same decorative wall treatment is used on a small porch and the side door on
the north side of the house."

"A driveway runs along the north property line to the entrance of the attached garage, which
faces north. Large decorative mosaic concrete planters are affixed to the south and west walls of the
wing attached to the south end of the main block." — description from National Register Nomination

PROPOSAL:

The applicant is proposing to construct a one-story bathroom addition at the rear of the house.
The addition will be constructed of 2x6 wood frame construction with exterior painted wood siding
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and asphalt roof shingles to match existing. The addition will be supported by steel support
columns, which will be placed in reinforced concrete footings. The existing steel casement window
from the rear elevation will be salvaged and reused in the new addition. Connection to the new
bathroom will be though the existing window opening in the existing bedroom exterior wall.

The proposed new addition would not be visible from the front fagade. No existing trees will
be removed with the construction of the proposed addition.

STAFF DISCUSSION

This house has been in continuous use as a single-family residence on the original site
since construction and has not undergone any major exterior alterations.

As an outstanding resource within a Historic District, this building is subject to the
highest level of design review.

The proposal being presented requires that original decorative elements including the
cornice detail, the window surrounds, a portion of the rear panel and the rear gable with its highly
decorative details will be lost. In rehabilitation, historic building materials and character-
defining features are protected and maintained. This resource was designated as part of a historic
district. It as well as the rest of the houses in the district identifies a form and detailing of
architectural features that are important in defining the structure's historic character, and these
features must be retained in order to preserve this character. The character of these buildings is
defined by the form and detailing of their interior and exterior features and structural systems.
The Historic Preservation Commission has jurisdiction on the exterior features only.

It is a concern of staff that this alteration, though to the rear of the resource, will be
detrimental to the existing structure. As explained above, the house was built with concrete
panels. These panels were designed in such a way to support each other. If a weak point is bored
into the panels....what effect will this alteration have on the structural integrity of the resource?
The architect and his engineer have worked extensively on this method of construction and have
assured staff that an appropriate header and door surround will support the remaining panel and
will not negatively affect the surrounding panels.

The Polychrome Houses were designated as historically significant because of their
distinctive physical characteristics of design, construction and form as well as their association
with the Art Deco movement in this country. Staff has struggled with this project, mainly
because of the nature of the existing building materials and their importance to the integrity and
historic significance of this resource. It should be noted that because of the uniqueness of the
building materials any cut through the building will cause irreparable damage and will be
destroying historic materials that characterize the property which include the cornice, gable
detail, the concrete panel and original window.

Staff is aware that generally we do approve additions to outstanding resources within our
historic districts if they are located at the rear of the historic site, are not visible from the right-of
way and the proposed addition would be constructed in such a manner that "if removed in the
future the essential form and integrity of the historic property would be unimpaired."
Additionally, staff does realize that exterior alterations to a historic building are generally needed
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to assure a building's continued use, but emphasizes the fact that such alterations should not
radically change or destroy character defining materials, features or finishes. Staff feels that the
proposal as presented will do irreparable damage to the historic materials and the distinctive
details that characterize the building. These alterations will not be reversible and once complete
the original building will never be able to be restored to its original configuration.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Commission deny the HAWP application as not being consistent with

Chapter 24A-8(b)2:

The Commission shall instruct the director to deny a permit if it finds, based on the evidence and information
presented to or before the commission that the alteration for which the permit is sought would be inappropriate or
inconsistent with, or detrimental to the preservation enhancement or ultimate protection of the historic site, or historic
resource within an historic district, and to the purposes of this chapter,

nor with the Secretary of the Interior Guidelines 92, #5, #6, and #9:

The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of distinctive materials or
alteration of features, spaces, and spatial relationships that characterize the property will be avoided.

Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or example of craftsmanship that characterize a

property shall be retained and preserved.

Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of deterioration requires
replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities
and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated by documentary physical, or
pictorial evidence.

New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic materials, features, and
spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and will be
compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the
property and its environment.
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APPLICATION FOR
HISTORIC AREA WORK PERMIT

Contact Person: ~%1 Q J E ' -5tj

Daytime Phone No (~ O'1 (ry ~~"J ~G' % CC E~

Tax Account No.: O rr~ O q i 

Name of Property Owner: A/I R_S ~2c~ } l ~.C~(~yL/~ Daytime Phone No.:J7 

Address:

Contractorr:ti D  G -Ale Phone No.:

Contractor Registration No.: 
7

Agent for Owner:~~ i~~ oS Daytime Phone No.: 7 (%''  ̀  ~~

House Number: q 0 Street C r t C -S' (111-4- L4. E—

S p 
7

Town/City:  

n
.~~ Nearest Cross Street: U~ I 'vE/C U 1 TY Re-ra~ a

Lot:p fi Block: 7'h Subdivision: S t-C

Liber: 

Folio:---fff ~f~ 

Parcel:

PART  ONE: TYPE Of PERMIT ACTION AND USE

IA. CHECK ALL APPLICABLE: CHECK ALL APPLICABLE:

onstruct ❑ Extend ❑ .After/Renovate ❑ A/C ❑ Slab Room Addition O Porch ❑ Deck O Shed

/ ❑ Move ❑ Install O Wreck/Raze ❑ Solar ❑ Fireplace ❑ Woodburning Stove ❑ Single Family

❑ Revision O Repair O Revocable O Fence/Wall (complete Section 41 ❑ Dthen

1B. Construction cost estimate: 1; v /

IC. If this is a revision of a previously approved active permit, see Permit #/ (~

2A. Type of sewage disposal: 01 VWSSC 02 ❑ Septic 03 ❑ Other:

2B. Type of water supply: 01 O WSSC 02 ❑ Well 03 O Other:

PART THREE: COMPLETE ONLY FOR FENCE/RETAINING WALL 
/

3A. Height feet inches d!

39. Indicate whether the fence or retaining wall is to be constructed on one of the folio/wVin locations:

❑ On party line/property line ❑ Entirely on land of owner O On public right of way/easement

/ hereby certify that I have the authority to make the foregoing application, that the application is correct, and that the construction will comply with plans
approved _y all agencig~ listgd and I hereby ackrAwledge and accept this to be a condition for the issuance of this permit.

or

Approved:_

Disapproved:

Chairperson, Historic Preservation Commission

Application/Permit No.: — Date Filed:

Edit 6/21/99 SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR INSTRUCTIONS

Date

(5)



1. WRITTEN DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

.2

a. Description of existing structureis) and including thgir
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b. General description of project and its effect on the historic resourceis), the environmental setting, and, where applicable, the historic district:
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Site and environmental setting, drawn to scale. You may use your plat. Your site plan' must include:

a. the scale, north arrow, and date;

b. dimensions of all existing and proposed structures; and

c. site features such as walkways, driveways, fences, ponds, streams, trash dumpsters, mechanical equipment, and Jandscaping.; .

3. PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

You must submit 2 copies of plans and elevations in a format no larger than 11" x 17". Plans on 8 1/2" x 11 " paper are preferred.

a. Schematic construction plans, with marked dimensions, indicating location, size and general.type of walls, window and door openings, and other
fixed features of both the existing resource(s) and the proposed work.

b. Elevations (facades), with marked dimensions, clearly indicating proposed work in relation to existing construction and, when appropriate, context.
All materials and fixtures proposed for the exterior must be noted on the elevations drawings. An existing and a proposed elevation drawing of each
facade affected by the proposed work is required.

4. MATERIALS SPECIFICATIONS

General description of materials and manufactured items proposed for incorporation in the work of the project. This information may be included on your
design drawings.

5. PHOTOGRAPHS :TIC

a. Clearly labeled photographic prints of each facade of existing resource, including details of the affected portions. All labels should be placed on the
front of photographs. 1 .. _ „

b. Clearly label photographic prints of the resource`es viewed from the public right-of-way and of the adjoining properties. All labels should be placed on
the front of photographs.



HAWP APPLICATION: MAILING ADDRESSES FOR NOTIFING
[Owner, Owner's Agent, Adjacent and Confronting Property Owners]

Owner's mailing address Owner's Agent's mailing address
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~EROSAJ 'L-'
RCHITECTURE

M.N.C.C.P.C.
Historic Preservation Society
1109 Spring Street
Suite 807
Silver Spring, MD

DATE: August 31, 2001

ATTN: Michelle Naru

Project Description:
9904 Colesville Road
Silver Spring, MD 20901
"Polychrome District"

Mrs. Renata Gould, home owner of the historic residence located at 9904 Colesville Road
plans to add a one story bathroom addition (16'-11" wide x 6'-9'/s" deep) connected to
her existing rear bedroom located at the rear of the existing residence.

The proposed one story bathroom addition would be constructed of 2 x 6 wood frame
construction with exterior painted wood siding and asphalt roof shingles to match
existing. The addition would be supported by steel support columns placed in reinforced
concrete footings. The existing steel casement window from the rear elevation would be
salvaged and reused in the new addition. Connection to the new bathroom addition will
be through the existing window opening in the existing bedroom exterior wall. The
proposed new addition would not be visible from the front of the residence. No existing
trees will be removed with the construction of the proposed addition.

JOSEPH D. DEROSA, A.I.A. 10120 PIERCE DRIVE SILVER SPRING, MD 20901 '(301) 593-0366 FAX: (301) 593-4079
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00 GTMTRANSMITTAL Architects
10415 Armory Avenue, Kensington, MD 20895 • Tel: (301) 942-9062 • Fax: (301) 942-3929

Date: 9/16/03

To: Historic Preservation Review Board
Michele Naru
8787 Georgia Avenue
Silver Spring, MD 20910-3760
Phone: 301-563-3407
Fax: 301-563-3412

Project #:

Project Name: Rinata Gould- Polychrome House

Regarding:

We are sending you:

®ATTACHED ❑ UNDER SEPARATE COVER VIA ITS Mail THE FOLLOWING
ITEMS:

❑ SHOP DRAWINGS ❑ PRINTS ❑ SAMPLES ❑ SPECIFICATION

❑ COPY OF LETTER ❑

COPIES: DATED: DESCRIPTION:

1 set schematic design drawings

THESE ARE TRANSMITTED:

❑ FOR YOUR APPROVAL ❑ APPROVED AS SUBMITTED
❑ FOR YOUR USE ❑ APPROVED AS NOTED
❑ AS REQUESTED ❑ RETURNED FOR CORRECTIONS
❑ FOR REVIEW & COMMENT ❑

REMARKS:

COPY TO:

SIGNED: C"'
George N
GTM Arc

ext: 13

Inc.

w w w. g t m a r c h i t e c t s. c o m
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July 22, 2002

Dear Renata,

As you requested, I contacted the local Historic Preservation Office in Silver Spring about your
concerns and they suggested that we set up a meeting to discuss the situation. I have been asked
to sit in on the meeting to act as a facilitator, which I am very happy to do.

The hope is that we can all sit down together some time between now and August 15. Please let
me know what dates and times would be convenient for you and I will coordinate with the local
office.

I look forward to hearing from you soon. Feel free to call me at 410/740-4424

With best wishes,

L~7~rue,

cc_ Gwen Wright, Historic Preservation Coordinator
M-NCPPC
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F 255 RO(a .ALE PIKE. 2nd FLOOR, ROCKVILLE. MD 2D850

it/~1Li 2401771-6370 a

76 HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION
301/563-3400

APPLICATION FOR
HISTORIC AREA WORK PERMIT

Contact Person:

Daytime Phone No.:

Tax Account No.: ©~ ( D qo  

Name of Property Owner: ~Ci(/r %'~ l4 , ~()V Daytime Phone 

t

No~.: V 
~r~

Address: L C-5 V I LCE kT P L VF—;C ~T IC f 
'Street Number 

City, / 

Staer `—Zip Code 
G~

Contractors: G 1 /V Phone No.:

Contractor Registration No.: n 

c° ~` 

ff

Agent for Owner: _ ' "  team Daytime Phone No.: ~ ̂~ 3 , 0,3 ~

House Number: q _/ O ks 

//~
Town/City: L (%~ S~R~ Nearest Cross Street: U AL I V E R 9 i TY
Lot: f r Block: Subdivision: _S O
Liber: Folio: Parcel:

PART ONE: TYPE OF PERMIT ACTION AND USE

1 A. CHECK ALL APPLICABLE: CHECK ALL APPLICABLE:

onstruct O Extend ❑ Alter/Renovate ❑ A/C ❑ Slab Room Addition ❑ Porch O Deck ❑ Shed

❑ Move O Install O Wreck/Raze ❑ Solar ❑ Fireplace O Woodburning Stove ❑ Single Family

❑ Revision ❑ Repair ❑ Revocable ❑ Fence/WalllcompleteSection 4) O Other:

1B. Construction cost estimate: $i(2. 0 OD
1C. If this is a revision of a previously approved active permit, see Permit # Y10

2A. Type of sewage disposal: 01 IVWSSC 02 ❑ Septic 03 ❑ Other:

2B. Type of water supply: 01 ❑ WSSC 02 ❑ Well 03 ❑ Other:

PART THREE: COMPLETE ONLY FOR FENCE/RETAINING WALL

3A. Height feet inches dr

38. Indicate whether the fence or retaining wall is to be constructed on one of the followin locations:

❑ On party line/property line O Entirely an land of owner ❑ On public right of way/easement

I hereby certify that 1 have the authority to make the foregoing application, that the application is correct, and that the construction will comply with plans
approved _y all agenciqistgd and I hereby ackrAwledge and acceA this to be a condition for the issuance o/ this permit.

or

Approved:

Disapproved: _

Application/Permit

For

Date Filed:

Commission

Date

7., W,,&'7&

L

Edit 6/21/99
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WRITTEN DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT ,

a. Description of existing structure(s) and environmental ,#
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b. General description of project and its effect on the historic resource(s), the environmental setting, and, where applicable, the historic district:
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Site and environmental setting, drawn to scale. You may use your plat: Your site pla'rr must include:

a. the scale, north arrow, and date;

b. dimensions of all existing and proposed structures; and

c. site features such as walkways, driveways, fences, ponds, streams, trash dumpsters, mechanical equipment, and landscaping A`

3. PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

You must submit 2 copies of plans and elevations in a format no larger than 11"x 17". Plans on 8 1/2"x 11" paper are preferred.

a. Schematic construction plans, with marked dimensions, indicating location, size and general type of walls, window and door openings, and other

fixed features of both the existing resource(s) and the proposed work.

b. Elevations (facades), with marked dimensions, clearly indicating proposed work in relation to existing construction and, when appropriate, context.
All materials and fixtures proposed for the exterior must be noted on the elevations drawings. An existing and a proposed elevation drawing of each
facade affected by the proposed work is required.

4. MATERIALS SPECIFICATIONS

General description of materials and manufactured items proposed for incorporation in the work of the project This information may be included on your

design drawings.

5. PHOTOGRAPHS

a. Clearly labeled photographic prints of each facade of existing resource, including details of the affected portions. All labels should be placed on the

front of photographs.

b. Clearly label photographic prints of the resource as viewed from the public right-of-way and of the adjoining properties. All labels should be placed on
the front of photographs.
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M.N.C.C.P.C.
Historic Preservation Society
1109 Spring Street
Suite 807
Silver Spring, MD

DATE: August 31, 2001

ATTN: Michelle Naru

Project Description:
9904 Colesville Road
Silver Spring, MD 20901
"Polychrome District"

Mrs. Renata Gould, home owner of the historic residence located at 9904 Colesville Road
plans to add a one story bathroom addition (16'-11" wide x 6'-9 1/2" deep) connected to
her existing rear bedroom located at the rear of the existing residence.

The proposed one story bathroom addition would be constructed of 2 x 6 wood frame
construction with exterior painted wood siding and asphalt roof shingles to match
existing. The addition would be supported by steel support columns placed in reinforced
concrete footings. The existing steel casement window from the rear elevation would be
salvaged and reused in the new addition. Connection to the new bathroom addition will
be through the existing window opening in the existing bedroom exterior wall. The
proposed new addition would not be visible from the front of the residence. No existing
trees will be removed with the construction of the proposed addition.

JOSEPH D. DEROSA, A.I.A. 10120 PIERCE DRIVE SILVER SPRING, MD 20901 -(301) 593-0366 FAX: (301) 

593-40790
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